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Product Pipeline

MorphoSys’s Product Pipeline as of December 31, 2004:

Research - e Precelinicali

Clinical "7 .

war  Proprietary Therapeutic
Antibody Programs

wwe  Partnered Therapeutic
Antibody Programs

Revenues (2004): Licenses vs. Milestones

Achievement of milestones 6%

Licensing revenues 94 %

Revenues by Region (2004)

U.8,A.&Canada 55%

Europe 45%

‘PIGUVRLES A PRODUCT PIPELINE
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. BUSINESS MISSION"

;MMorphoSys is one of the world s Ieadmg blotechnology com-

g “panies focusmg on fully human antibodies.-With its propnetary;f;ﬁ.ﬂ;;,o‘

E technologies, MorphoSys is developmg the next generatlon

of antrbodles not onIy for research and d|agnost|cs purposes

“but also as hnghly effectlve and precnse therapeutlcs, HuC L®
(Human Comblnatonal Antlbody lerary) isa very  powerful S
~ technology for the rapid and automated productnon of-spe flc

antibodies. The- most distinctive feature of the hbrary isits
unique capabllfty to optnmlze fully human antlbodles to pre— |
r‘deﬁned specnfucanons allowmg MorphoSys researchers and
- their partners to “Engmeer the Medlcmes of Tomorrow”

‘MorphoSys has been successful in estabhshlng a number of !

partnershlps with renowned pharma and brotech compames

- as well as research. mstltutes and untversntles MorphoSys s R
;‘goal is to establish HuCAL® as the technology of chor fo
“antibody generatlon in all market sectors.
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MANAGEMENT BOARD

4 Management Board
of MorphoSys AG

Dr. Simon E. Moroney
Chief txecutive Officer

Dr. Moroney is one of MorphoSys's co-found-
ers. He studied in New Zealand and gradu-
ated with a Master of Science degree. He
received a D. Phil. in chemistry from Oxford
University while visiting as a Commonwealth
scholar and subsequently worked for two
years at ImmunoGen, Inc., Boston, cn the
development of antibody-based cancer
drugs. From 1986 through 1989, he was
employed by ETH in Zurich. Subsequently,
Dr. Moroney was an assistant prbfessor

for chemistry at the University of British
Columbia (Canada).

Dave Lemus
Executive Vice Prasident and
Chiel Financial Officer

Dave Lemus has an M.B.A. from the MIT
Sloan School of Management. He is also a
C.P.A. (certified public accountant) in the
U.S.A. Dave Lemus joined MorphoSys from
F.Hoffmann-La Roche, where he served as
Controller and Operations Manager of 90
pharmaceutical markets. Prior to this posi-
tion, he was Treasurer of Lindt & Spriingli in
Zurich, Switzerland, and worked in treasury
management at Efectrolux AB. Dave Lemus
joined MorphoSys in February 1998.




LETTER YO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Dear shareholders,

| have great pleasure in presenting this, our annual report for 2004, following a very success-
ful year for MorphoSys. During the year, MorphoSys continued the highly positive perfor-
mance already evident in 2003 and returned to the dynamics of a technology-oriented growth
company. An increase in revenue of 44 %, a positive net result for the first time in the Com-
pany’s history and an increase in our cash position to € 37 million all provide an impressive
demonstration of our success. We ended the year secure in the knowledge that MorphoSys is
in a better operational and financial condition than ever before in the Company’s 13-year his-
tory. In 2005, we intend to build on this upward trend, and expect to post a significant profit
for the entire year. MorphoSys is opening a totally new chapter in its growth.

Key drivers in the Company’s excellent development were newly concluded alliances together
with very good progress in our existing partnerships. [n May 2004, we gained a new interna-
tional partner from the major league of the world's largest pharmaceutical groups, in the
shape of Novartis AG. Together with our partners Pfizer, Roche, Centocor/Johnson & Johnson
and Bristol-Myers Squihb, the new agreements mean that five of the top 10 pharma compa-
nies are now working with MorphoSys’s antibody technology. The collaboration with Novartis
is the largest and most extensive we have entered to date. Novartis is committed to exploiting
the potential of therapeutic antibodies as key weapons in the medical armamentarium, and is
intensifying its activities in this area. The statement from Dr. Mark Fishman, President of the

-
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Dr. Simon E. Moroney
Chief Sxeeutive Officer

LETTER TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Novartis [nstitutes of BioMedical Research, that Novartis chose MorphoSys “because of the
highly differentiated HuCAL® technology” is praise indeed, and also further validation of our
central strategy—establishing our technology as the method of choice for companies develop-
ing new antibody therapeutics.

At the end of the year, there was another significant development for the company when GPC
Biotech received regulatory approval from the Swiss authorities to commence clinical trials
with 1D09C3, a HuCAL® antibody for the treatment of [ymphoma, When the trial commenced
on January 31, 2005, this became the first antibody based on our HuCAL® technology to be
administered to human patients. This development presages further advances in our pipeline:
based on information received from our other partners, we believe that human trials with
three more HuCAL® antibodies may commence in the next 12 months, thus potentially extend-
ing our clinical pipeline to four projects.

In early 2005, we successfully concluded the acquisition of two privately held companies, UK.-
based Biogenesis Ltd. and its U.S. sister Biogenesis, Inc. The acquisitions have a clear purpose:
to help build our existing Antibodies by Design unit, which markets HuCALY technology in
areas outside our core human therapeutics business. Since its foundation in 2003, Antibodies
by Design has significantly raised awareness of our innovative technology in the research mar-
ket and forms a heachhead for further growth. Going forward, we are convinced that HuCAL®
will change the way research antibodies are produced and can replace many, if not all other,
technologies in this market segment. The acquisition of the Biogenesis Group will help us turn
this conviction into reality. Together with Biogenesis, we are now one of the top five European
research antibody suppliers.

It is important to mention that the acquisition of Biogenesis will not distract MorphoSys from
our primary focus on therapeutic antibodies, which will remain the key driver of our busi-
ness in the years ahead. The two parts of our business—therapeutic antibodies and research
antibodies—will run alongside each other and we will report on each unit separately.




LETTER TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

I am sure that you, our shareholders, will share my satisfaction in the development of our
stock price during 2004. On the back of our agreement with Pfizer in December 2003, our
share price doubled in value in the first few months of the year. A major milestone for the
Company was reached in September 2004, with our inclusion in the TecDAX index, which
tracks the performance of the 30 largest technology companies of the Prime Standard listed
at the Frankfurt Stock Exchange.

To close, | would like to reflect on the targets that we set ourseives at the beginning of 2004.
As well as entering at least one long-term contract with a new partner, we pinpointed the
advancement of ongoing therapeutic antibody programs plus the commencement of at least
five new programs as priorities. Another objective was to continue to build our new business
unit Antibodies by Design in a targeted manner following its successful launch in 2003. In
the research field, we aimed to present positive pre-clinical data from our internal cancer
project MOR202. [n economic terms, these operational targets were to be accompanied by a
20% annual increase in revenues. [ am happy to report that not only did we meet all of these
targets, but we also significantly exceeded some of them.

These outstanding achievements would not have been possible without the dedication and
expertise of our staff. I would like to thank all of our employees and my senior management
colleagues, who enabled this success through their commitment and hard work during the
past year. | also extend special thanks to you, our shareholders, for your loyalty and contin-
ved confidence in MorphoSys. Together with you, I look forward to what we expect to be an
equally, if not more, successful year in 2005.

23

Dr. Simon E. Moroney
Chief Executive Officer
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MARKET & STRATEGY

Market & Strategy

Therapeutic antibodies, once the pursuit of only a handful of smaller
biotechnology companies, have become mainstream drugs and are the
object of intense research and development activity throughout the
pharmaceutical industry. Novartis, Pfizer and many other pharmaceuti-
cal companies have recognized the potential of therapeutic antibodies,
and are committing large investments to this field. Looking ahead, anti-
bodies may well occupy a dominant position in the product ranges of
many pharmaceutical companies. Currently, five of the ten largest phar-
maceutical companies use the MorphoSys technology and the expertise
of its researchers.

Over the last few years, antibodies have won a secure position as an important element of
modern disease therapy. Their natural properties allow a more targeted, specific and thus
less invasive treatment of life-threatening diseases. Diagnosis is often a necessary prerequi-
site to therapy. In this regard, MorphoSys faces a multifaceted market in which antibodies
are frequently utilized in tandem with other technologies. In addition to the areas of therapy
and diagnostics, antibodies have also traditionally played a key role in biological research. In
all fields of application, MorphoSys benefits from considerable market opportunities, whether
directly, thanks to the advantages of its proprietary core technology HuCAL®, or indirectly,
via transfer of the Company’s expertise in the field of antibodies to new fields of application.

The Company’s aim for the future is to continue expanding its already extensive expertise in

the antibody sector. The two principal fields of application of HuCAL® technology are current-
ly therapeutic applications and the so-called reagent market, i.e. the sale of antibody products

as tools for researchers in the life sciences.

‘\O
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MARKET & STRATEGY

The Market for Therapeutic Antibodies

Of the following three fields of application—therapeutics, diagnostics and research reagents—
the market for therapeutic products is by far the largest. In 2004, manufacturers of thera-
peutic antibodies generated estimated annual sales in excess of US$ 6 billion. Thus, thera-
peutic antibodies remain the fastest growing segment of the pharmaceutical market. Two
new antibodies gained market approval in 2004, thereby increasing the number of therapeutic
antibodies currently on the market from 16 to 18. Looking at activities that will give rise to
therapeutic antibodies in the mid to long-term future, the year 2004 saw a boost in partner-
ing deals. MorphoSys, as well as other representatives from its peer group, succeeded in
striking cash-rich, multi-year partnerships with big pharmaceutical companies. MorphoSys is,
and has been, active in this dynamic, rapidly growing market for several years, and is thus
strategically well placed to exploit this growth. The unique features of the MorphoSys tech-
nology, which enables the creation of tailor-made antibody drugs, are expected to increase
the probability of development success. This is a key factor in explaining why the technology
is so highly regarded in the pharmaceutical industry.

Therapeutic antihodies have the potential to improve the therapy of a specific disease signifi-
cantly. Genentech's antibody Avastin is one of the recently representatives of drugs in this
class, and received market approval in February 2004. The antibody, used for treating ad-
vanced bowel cancer, prevents a process that is “vital” for tumors; the supply of oxygen- and
nutrient-rich fresh blood to the rapidly growing cancer. The tumor achieves this objective

by inciting the surrounding blood vessels to grow new veinlets and hranches. The growth
factor VEGF has been identified as the key molecule in this process of “angiogenesis”. Avastin
successfully blocks this mechanism and could therefore be effective against many types of
cancer. Since obtaining market approval, Genentech has generated US$ 555 million in rev-
enue from Avastin.
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Product Origin Indication Approved
OKT3 Muring Transplant rejection 1986

ReoPro . _Chimeric Cerdiovasculer 1994 ..
1997

Transplant rejection - 1997

Rituxan i

 Simulect Chimeric . . .Trensplantrejection 1998 .

Remicade o Chimeric inflammation/ 1998
et o Autoimmune diseases
Synagis A!:Iymanized VIFUS ipfgp{io 1698

Herceptn  Humenized  Cancer e

Mylotarg Humanizegww Cancer’ 2000 )
Compath Humanized Camcer 2001 o
Zewln . Muine-radiolabeled  Cencer 2002
Humira Human (PCR library) Inflammation/ 2002

e Autoimmune diseases e
Bexxar Murine—radiolabeled Cancer 2003

Xo Homanized  Alergiossthma 2003

Raptiva Humanized inflammation/ 2003
Autoimmune diseases

Erbitx  Chimeric - C8NCE e o

Tyedbri (Antegren]*  Humenized  Mutiplesclerosis 2004

* Suspension of marketing on February 28, 2005

1. HuCAL® Therapeutics Market

MorphoSys's core technology HuCAL? accelerates the development of new antibody drugs to
fight a multitude of diseases which are presently inadequately treated. HuCAL GOLD™ is the
latest and most technologicaily advanced generation of the Company’s proprietary antibody
library. In collaboration with biotech and pharmaceutical partners, MorphoSys is developing
a comprehensive range of antibody drugs that will provide the pbasis for significant future
growth. In addition to these pure partnership programs, MorphoSys has created further value
by developing its own product portfolio. In this regard, MorphoSys is focusing on therapeutic
antibodies to treat cancer and inflammatory diseases. This strategy is predicated on MorphoSys’s
ability to demonstrate the effectiveness of the antibody candidates in animal models, and then
out-license these candidates to development partners, Such alliances are intended to exploit
the maximum potential financial vatue of the Company’s own projects. Under this scheme,
MorphoSys bears all development costs incurred until the product is cut-licensed to a partner.
However, as a consideration, the Company receives higher fees from prospective partners, in
the form of advance payments, milestones and royalties once the commercialization of the prod-
uct begins.

11




MARKET & STRATEGY

12 MorphoSys Business Model—Partnered Therapeutics Business Segment

Within its Therapeutic Antibodies business segment, MorphoSys generates therapeutic anti-
bodies against target molecules provided by its partner companies. The partner is responsible
for pre-clinical and clinical drug development, as well as the commercialization of any drugs
coming to market. The business model of MorphoSys AG in this segment comprises three dis-
tinct chapters.

- Through existing collaborations with pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies such
as Bayer, Centocor, Pfizer, Novartis and Schering, MorphoSys generates revenue from pay-
ments for access to technology, project-specific license fees, payments for research con-
ducted, and, when research goals are met, success-based milestone fees. This discovery
stage is break-even or generates a slight profit, and represents the first chapter of the
project cycle.

— During the development of each partner project, so-called clinical milestone payments
are made once the developed products enter the different stages of clinical trials in human
patients. Milestones are typically achieved at the beginning of phase 1 studies, marking
the entry into human patients, the beginning of phase 3 studies, which investigates the
efficacy of the compound and finally the filing of a Biologics License Application, leading
to market approval of the drug. At the same time, new projects are constantly being devel-
oped, thus creating the basis for further milestones in the future. On the hasis of a discov-
ery business which continually expands the pipeline of possible product candidates, this
second chapter of company development should be increasingly driven by an inflow of
milestone payments which provide a lucrative added value to the first, discovery stage
described above.

= The third chapter of the Company’s business development is driven by royalties. When a
product based on the MorphoSys HuCAL® technology is sold, MorphoSys receives a per-
centage of net sales in the form of royalty payments, which is typically in the middle single-
digit percentage range. This third and last chapter of the project cycle offers additional
growth potential over and beyond both the discovery and milestone-payment stages of the

Dr. Barbara Krebs business model. As such, it represents the largest upside value for both investors and the

Senior Director Company in terms of relative payment sizes, as well as sustainability and duration of pay-
Business Dovelopment
ment terms.
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GeneFrontier: please see also
the Interview on pages 28-31.

MARKET & STRATEGY

2. HUCAL® in Research and Diagnostics:
MorphoSys Research Antibodies Segment

MorphoSys’s business unit “Antibodies by Design”, the brand for the MorphoSys Research
Antibodies segment, was launched in 2003. The aim of this segment is to further develap the
market for non-therapeutic applications. With the recently concluded Human Genome Project,
hiomedical and pharmaceutical researchers worldwide are turning their attention towards the
exploration of proteins. The proliferation of such projects is driving an increasing demand for
novel research antibodies to study these newly characterized proteins. To this end, MorphoSys’s
initiative strives to establish HuCAL™ as the industry standard for the manufacture of new
types of antibodies in research and diagnostics applications. A key focus of the MorphoSys
Research Antibodies segment is the manufacture of custom-made antibodies for research appli-
cations. Due to the advantages of the HUCAL® technology, Antibodies by Design is able to sup-
ply its clientele with highly specific antibodies within eight weeks—significantly faster than
from other technologies. This key advantage has thus far allowed the business unit to acquire
customers from 17 different countries including the U.S,, the U.K., Germany, Canada, Switzer-
land and several other markets in both Asia and Europe.

During 2004, the Company continued development of the MorphoSys Research Antibodies
segment, by adding new products and expanding into new geographic markets. One target of
these efforts to form new sales partners in the reagent market are antibody catalogue sup-
pliers. These companies provide antibodies to their partners through catalogues and are there-
fore known to a broad client base of researchers as a source of research antibodies. MorphoSys’s
first contract of this type was concluded in November 2004 with EMD Biosciences, Inc. In
this way, MorphoSys recombinant antibodies from the HuCAL¥ library are made accessible
to an extremely broad client base with minimal marketing investment for MorphaSys.

Finally, MorphoSys announced the acquisition of the U.K and U.S.-based Biogenesis Group early
2003, a supplier of antibodies to the life sciences research community. The acquisition pro-
vided MorphoSys with immediate access 1o new market channels for its HUCAL® technology.
MorphoSys will continue to support Biogenesis’s product portfolio and at the same time uti-
lize all opportunities to further market HuCAL" to Biogenesis’s worldwide customer and glob-
al distributor network. The acquired Biogenesis companies will be integrated with MorphoSys’s
existing research antibody business unit, Antibodies by Design. The new unit will run alongside
the existing therapeutic antibodies unit, which comprises the largest part of the MarphoSys
business.

In 2004, MorphoSys also expanded its business activities in new geographic regions. In
order to develop the Japanese market, presently considered the second largest life science
market in the world, MorphoSys formed a strategic marketing cooperation with the Tokyo-
based GeneFrontier Corporation. With this cooperation, the objective is to establish our
HuCAL®Y technology as & premium brand for both research and therapeutic antibody genera-
tion in Japan. The first research projects with Japanese customers have heen successfuily
completed and revenues received.

13
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DOING
BUSINESS

with Antibodies

Collaborations with pharmaceutical and biotech companies to develop new innova-
tive drugs are essential to the business model of MorphoSys. The contractual frame-
work of these collaborations allows MorphoSys to contribute to and benefit from the
success of all projects initiated with partners while also minimizing the financial risks
of any setbacks. The contracts consist of license and milestone payments as well as
of royalties on marketed products.

DOING BUSINESS WITH ANTIBODIES




Within the scope of collaborations to generate thera-
peutic antibodies, MorphoSys identifies human anti-
body drug candidates from the HUCAL GOLD® library
for its partners. This activity continues to be the main
source of income for MorphoSys, generating nearly
88% of all revenue in 2004. In these partnerships,
MorphoSys undertakes the generation and optimiza-
tion of antibodies, which are sourced from MorphoSys
HuCAL GOLD® antibody libraries. The resuiting anti-
body project is then handed over to the partner who is
responsible for the pre-clinical and clinical drug devel-
opment, as well as the commercialization of any.drugs
coming to market. In this form of cooperation, the
partner bears the brunt of the financial burden and as
such, most of the non-performance risk, if a2 drug can-
didate does not produce a successful result in the dif-
ferent development trials. In all cases, MorphoSys par-
ticipates in successful developments of these projects
by means of participation in milestones and royalties,

Contract Structure of Partnered Projects

MorphoSys operates various types of business and
cooperation agreements through which partners are
given access to the Company’s technology and to

DOING BUSINESS WITH ANTIBODIES

5

therapeutic antibodies.emerging from the technology.
In the most typical deal for MorphoSys, where a part-
ner has employed the Company to generate an anti-
body against its target molecule, there are 5 financial
pillars upon which the deal is built. The respective
size of these components depends on the nature,
size and scope of the respective deal. Larger deals
typically involve all 5 components, while smaller ones
may include less.

On signing a therapeutic antibody deal, MorphoSys
generally receives a payment for access to its tech-
nology, known as the upfront payment, and repre-
sents a financial consideration for access to propri-
etary technology, prior to working on any partner-
specific project. In addition to this fee, MorphoSys
often receives annual license payments for the use
of its HUCAL® antibody library, representing yearly
access fees during the time frame of the coopera-
tion. In virtually all of these cooperations, the partner
also finances all funded research work carried out by
MorphoSys personnel at its premises on behalf of
the partner. Another type of payment includes mile-
stone payments. Such payments involve perfor-
mance-related remuneration, triggered upon attain-
ment of predefined events relating to the develop-
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Milestone payments and royalties to MorphoSys

Research

Development steps in drug development

Market
approval

MorphoSys benefits financially from the successful deveiopment of each HuCAL"”—denved antibody, from th : reseanch stage to'mar-
keted approval and beyond through mnestone payments and royaltnes Attamment of agreed mile ’

ment of the antibody into a drug. An initial milestone
of this kind is generally triggered when an optimized
antibody or a set of antibodies is delivered to the
customer meeting predefined criteria. Other pre-clini-
cal milestone events could include completion of
investigation data on an animal model.

More significant milestones are post-completion of the
MorphoSys work, when antibodies begin their journey
through the clinical development process. Typically,
at the start or successful conclusion of at least two
of the three phases of clinical drug developments,
these Iarger milestone payments are made. Finally,
once a drug makes it to the market, MorphoSys re-
ceives the last and most signficant set of payments,
know as royalties. Royalties represent a percentage
share of ownership of the revenue generated by
drug products, which have been paid Dy end users.
Such payments are standard for each antibody-based
product arising from any coliaboration. Within this
basic contractual structure, MorphoSys has significant
deal structure flexibility in its discussions with poten-
tial collaboration partners, participating in near-term
revenue generation, while at the same time capturing

DOING BUSINESS WITH ANTIBODIES

long-term upside or added value through milestones
and royalties.

MorphoSys works on the principle of “target exclusiv-
ity,” i.&. our partners can ensure by means of a pay-
ment that they are the only company to develop

a HuCAL® antibody for any specific antibody target.
For many pharma companies, exclusivity is an essen-
tial condition for concluding a long-term partnership,
given the very large sums of investment involved in
developing a drug. Depending on the contract, this
exclusivity may be permanent, or time-limited. Time-
limited exclusivity may be renewed, thus triggering
potential additional payments to MorphoSys,

At present, MorphoSys has 24 active programs, which
our pharmaceutical and biotechnology partner com-
panies are presently advancing in the drug develop-
ment continuum, These 24 projects represent work
on 24 different target molecules provided by the
partners. Exclusivity is assigned on the basis of the
“first come, first served” principle, meaning a part-
ner that has obtained (through payment) exclusivity
for a specific target molecule blocks other parties
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from retaining this same right for a specific target
molecule.

Through commercialization in this fashion, MorphoSys
has been able to spread the technology over a broad
and diverse series of applications with a number of
partners, which would have been impossible for any
single company for obvicus commercial, financial and
technological constraints.

Antibody Development at MorphoSys

The journey of a MorphoSys antibody, from the start
of & project to becoming a finished drug used by
patients, can be roughly divided into three different
phases—the research phase, the pre-clinical phase
and the clinical trials phase.

At the beginning of a therapeutic antibody partner-
ship, the research phase, the partners must choose
an appropriate disease-relevant target molecule, also
called the target. The target is the biological focal
point of an antibody drug, as it represents a mole-
cule which is assumed to play a role in a specific

DOING BUSINESS WITH ANTIBODIES

disease. Blocking such a target could soothe the
corresponding ailment or stop the progress of the
disease.

MorphoSys is usually asked by the partner to create
a fully human antibody which then meets several
predefined criteria—usually criteria which increase
the effectiveness of the antibody in a given disease
setting. With this predefined specification, MorphoSys
would then employ its HUCAL GOLD® antibody library

. to generate an antibody against the target molecule

provided by the partner. Suitable antibodies are iso-
lated, and then optimized by MorphoSys as required.
Such modifications could include a particularly high
binding affinity of the antibody to its target or the
absence of cross-reactions. After optimization and
first characterization of the antibody in various labo-
ratory tests, the project is delivered to the partner,
which performs confirmation tests. Upon confirma-
tion of the predefined characteristics for the anti-
body being met, the drug would then head into the
pre-clinical investigations stage, which is decided by
the partner company. {n the pre-clinical phase, the
antibody is tested in various settings in animal models
as well as in laboratory essays.
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MorphoSys and its dartners have 2 product pipeline that will eventually result in 3 certain number of products entering the market.

MorphoSys benefits firancially from the success of these products through revenue-dependent royalties. Milestone payments to
MorproSys are triggered by projects that overcome hurdles to gaining market approval of proziucts in the clinical phases of develop-

mert. Newly initiated

Ultimately, the time spans and speed of both pre-clini-

cal and clinical development are determined by the
needs of the partner. However, even after completion
of all work by MorphoSys, MorphoSys continues to par-
ticipate in the success of the advanced antibodies
which head into the clinical development phase. Clinical
milestone payments, representing success payments
which correspond to progression of the antibody
through the clinical development process, are signifi-
cant upside or added value to the Company, as no
costs from the MorphoSys side are associated with
the related revenue. Commen milestones in the bio-
pharmaceutical sector include commencement of the
clinical trial in human patients, clinical demonstration of
the mode of action {“proof of efficacy”) after completion
of phase 2, and the application for market approval. The
total of all milestone payments in the clinical phases
often ranges from approximately € 7 miflion to € 11 mil-
fion in the biopharmaceutical industry, depending on
deal structure and the enabling technologies involved.

DOING BUSINESS WITH ANTIBODIES

development programs ensure a future supply of these milesione payrents.

Royalty payments to MorphoSys on end products sold
to patients also represent significant potential upside
or added value to the Company. Using industry aver-
ages, royalty rates for an approved product on the
market generated by an enabling technology generally
represent a medium single-digit percentage of the
sales revenue generated from the relevant antibodies.
As in the case of milestones, these represent signi-
ficant potential upside to the business model of
MorphoSys, as no direct costs are associated with
the same.

The business model that MorphoSys employs illus-
trates the considerable benefits of working on as
many active programs as possible with its partners:
a higher number of projects simultanecusly increases
the probability that several of these antibodies will
make it to the most financially lucrative phase, namely
commercialization as a drug.
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Growth in Antibody Pipeline

In 2004, the number of antibody development programs based on HUCAL® tech-
nology signficantly increased. These programs are developed by MorphoSys working
together with partners. Overall, the number grew from a pipeline of 17 projects at
the beginning of 2004 to 24 active antibody programs at the end of the year.

21




22

R&D REPORT

HuCAL® Technology—
the Core of MorphoSys

The HuCAL® antibody technology, the world’s most advanced method
of producing antibodies, lies at the core of MorphoSys’s development
activities. The Company's strategy is to use the advantages of HuCAL®
to provide the pharmaceutical industry, research institutions, and uni-

versities with the opportunity to develop innovative antibody thera-

peutics and diagnostics. HUCAL® technology also has the potential to

enhance and accelerate academic research. [n the longer term, the
Company strives to expand the possible applications of HuCAL® tech-
nology for life science researchers.

May 19, 2004:
Strategic collaboration
with Novartis

1. Progress within Partner Business

1.1 New Partners and Progress within Existing Partnerships

Pharmaceutical companies are constantly seeking innovative active substances, particularly
for diseases with unmet medical need. Moreover, these companies have the financial re-
sources for clinical development of drugs, and the ability to market such products with their
global sales forces. For these reasons they are the preferred partners for MorphoSys. At the
end of 2003, MorphoSys signed an agreement with Pfizer, the world’s largest pharmaceutical
group. Collaborative work within this agreement began in 2004. In May 2004, MorphoSys
started a callaboration with another pharmaceutical group, Swiss-based Novartis AG, which
is MorphoSys's largest collaboration thus far. The signing of this deal means that MorphoSys
now has active partnerships with five of the ten largest pharmaceutical companies world-wide.
Moreover, eight of the largest 20 pharmaceutical companies are working with MorphoSys’s
technologies. This market penetration illustrates not only the successes achieved thus far, but
also, the scope for new potential partnerships with larger pharmaceutical firms.




July 14, 2004:

MorphoSys and Novoplant
sign veterinary medicine
collaboration

December 9, 2004:
MorphoSys-generated
antibody approved to
enter clinical trials
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Novartis has made a significant commitment to the development of therapeutic antibodies,
and the collaboration showcases the central role of MorphoSys in these efforts. Scientists at
MorphoSys are working directly with Novartis scientists in the U.S.A. and Europe. In addi-
tion, the HuCAL GOLD® technology is being installed at two sites for in-house use within the
Novartis Group. The agreement also provides an option for Novartis to integrate the entire
MorphoSys technology platform. This is the first time the Company has made such an option
available to any partner. Should this option be exercised, Novartis would make a further
multi-million dollar payment to MorphoSys.

New applications for HuCAL® technology present MorphoSys with further possibilities for
growth. An example of such new applications is demonstrated by the three-year collaboration
with Novoplant GmbH, signed in July 2004. As part of this collaboration, HuCAL GOLD® tech-
nology is being used in the wholly new application of veterinary medicine. Under the agree-
ment, Novoplant uses HuCAL® to identify antibodies against pathogens of the digestive tract
that can infect poulitry, pigs, and cattie. The aim is to produce these antibodies in crops such
as peas and potatoes and as such, incorporate them directly into animal feedstock. These
measures are aimed at protecting animals against diseases of the gastrointestinal tract, mak-
ing breeding of fivestock for food more cost-effective. Currently, antibiotics are used for this
purpose, although the European Union plans to ban the use of antibiotics in agricultural ani-
mal breeding by 2006. These impending measures create the need for alternative solutions:
HuCAL® antibodies produced in the collaboration with Novoplant could be one such solution,

in addition to finding new partners and applications for the technology, another very impor-
tant corporate goal is to maximize the number of therapeutic antibody projects being worked
on by existing partners. Through such expansion, the number of possible products hased on
the HuCAL® technology, and the benefits accruing from milestones and royalties, are thereby
maximized. In the 2004 calendar year, the number of active therapeutic partner programs
increased from 17 at the beginning to 24 at the end of the year. New coilaborations, including
those with Pfizer and Novartis, contributed to the increase in the total number of active proj-
ects. The start of new programs within existing alliances made a further contribution to this
increase. More specifically, in August 2004, MorphaSys, together with its partner Boehringer
Ingelheim, initiated a new program for the development of a therapeutic antibody against

a cardiovascular target molecule. The start of a further antibody project within the Centocor
collaboration was also announced in March 2004.

Finally, regulatory approval for the start of clinical trials in human patients with an antibody
from the HuCAL® library late in 2004 marked a significant milestone in the corporate devel-
opment of MorphoSys. In December 2004, GPC Biotech received regulatory clearance from
the Swiss Agency for Therapeutic Products, Swissmedic, to commence a Phase 1 clinical trial
with the anti-cancer antibody 1D09C3. The antibody, generated in the context of a partnered
program with GPC Biotech AG, is the first HuCAL®-derived molecule to enter clinical trials.




Strong progress in collaboration
with Centocor during 2004
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The HuCAL®-derived antibody is expected to enter clinical trials in human patients at sites in
three European countries. In Switzerland, the Phase 1 study will be conducted at the Oncology
Institute of Southern Switzerland (I0SI), a world-renowned oncology center highly experienced
in Phase 1 studies. The commencement of clinical trials triggers a milestone payment from
GPC Biotech to MarphoSys. The human monoclonal HuCAL® antibody is expected to improve
the current therapy of various forms of leukemia and has thus far generated promising
results in animal models. In January 2004, GPC Biotech extended its exclusive license for cer-
tain HuCAL® antibodies, including 1D09C3, and made a license payment to MorphoSys.

1.2 Operational Successes and Extensions of Agreements

In addition to signing new agreements and the expansion of MorphoSys’s antibody drug pipe-
line with existing partners, excellent performance was also evidenced in ongoing projects
with existing partners. The collaboration between MorphoSys and Centocaor, initiated in De-
cember 2000, is exemplary of the significant progress made in these types of partnerships.
The two companies’ collaboration is aimed at developing fully human therapeutic antibodies
for a wide range of conditions. Centocor, a subsidiary of the pharmaceutical group Johnson &
Johnson, is an industry leader in the field of antibody drugs. Centocor has already developed
two therapeutic antibodies: Remicade®, used for treatment of inflammatory diseases, and
ReoPro®, administered for cardiovascular diseases. Together, these generated more than US$
2 billion in revenue last year.

In March of this year, MorphoSys and Centocor initiated a new program for the development
of a therapeutic antibody against a Centocor target molecule in the field of autoimmune dis-
ease. MorphoSys also reached a fourth development-dependent milestone within a further
program in April when the Company applied its HuCAL GOLD™ technology to generate sev-
eral optimized fully human antibodies against a disease-related target molecule from Centocor.
The antibodies delivered back to Centocor fulfilled nine predefined success criteria, for which
a milestone payment was received.

Additionally, in August 2004, Centocor extended a commercial license for a further antibody
program. In this program, MorphoSys developed certain HuCAL® antibodies for treatment of
various inflammatory diseases.

This chain of positive events culminated in an early three-year extension of the ongoing collabo-
ration between Centocor and MorphoSys in December. MorphoSys will continue to include the
U.S. company among its partners until at least the end of 2007, On signing the agreement,
the two partners committed themselves to initiating at least two new programs in 2005. More-
over, the terms of the agreement specify that Centocor will fund more scientists at MorphoSys
doing research work on its behalf.
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Another existing partner also extended its collaboration with MorphoSys at year-end~Schering
AG. The agreement, originally signed in December 2001 and due to expire at year-end 2004,
was extended by a further three years. Within the realm of this coliaboration, therapeutic anti-
bodies and in vivo diagnostic agents have been developed, primarily for use in the area of
oncology—a therapeutic indication central to Schering’s core activities. Furthermore, as part
of the contract expansion, Schering acquired exclusive licenses for some of the therapeutic
antibodies generated by the two partners over the past three years, as well as a license to an
antibody for the field of in vivo diagnostics. The number of researchers funded by Schering
compared to the prior contract was also increased under the new contract.

2. Promising Data for Cancer Antibody

MorphoSys has not only made significant progress within its partnerships, but also in the de-
velopment of HuCAL® antibodies for its own proprietary programs. At a scientific conference
in October, MorphoSys presented to an international audience the first promising data for the
Company’s proprietary cancer antibody program, MOR202. The fully human antibodies from
the HuCAL GOLD® library are directed at the target molecule CD38, which is over-expressed
on the surface of certain cancer cells. The MOR202 program is currently in pre-clinical devel-
opment for the treatment of multiple myeloma and certain other forms of leukemia, Multiple
myeloma is characterized by an uncontroiled increase in degenerated plasma cells, mainly in
the bone marrow. Plasma cells belong to the leucocyte group and are important components
of the human body’'s immune system. The causes of the condition are not yet completely under-
stood, nonetheless, the number of cases continues to rise worldwide each year. Despite the
forms of therapy currently available, there is still a large unmet medical need for improved
treatments. Presently, approximately 30% of patients treated with the conventional therapy
survive for more than five years after being diagnosed with the disease.

To investigate the effectiveness of the HuCAL™ antibody, tumor cells containing the target
molecule CD38 were implanted in a mouse model. The MorphoSys antibody was then tested
in two different regimens. In the first study, treatment of the mice began 14 days after they
had been injected with the cancer cells, but before a distinct tumor was evident. The MorphoSys
antibody was administered every second day over the following three weeks. In a second study,
treatment of the mice began once the tumor was clearly detectable. The HuCAL® antibody
was administered at two different doses over a period of three to five weeks and tumor devel-
opment was ohserved and compared with the untreated control group. In both studies, treat-
ment with the MOR202 antibody significantly slowed tumor growth. In one group of treated
animals, remarkably, it was no longer possible to detect a tumor at the end of the observa-
tion period.
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September 8, 2004:
MorphoSys obtains license
on Crucell human cell line
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On the basis of these very promising results, the MOR202 antibody program, in line with the
MorphoSys corporate strategy, will be licensed out to an industrial partner hefore the start of
clinical development.

As part of the company’'s MOR102 proprietary development program for treatment of psoria-
sis, a comparative study was initiated, in order to compare the effectiveness of the HuCAL®
antibody versus the leading marketed therapeutics for psoriasis, Amevive™ and Raptiva®.
MorphaSys expects to be able to present the results of this direct comparative study at the
end of the first quarter of 2005. Results of this study will determine the future of this project
in finding a suitahle partner for the development of MOR102 as a treatment for psoriasis.

The molecular marker CD386 is heavily

s surface of D38 expressing cancey cells, marking !

azainst D33 bino i {1 Killer oells from the

hody's immune system recngnize the antibody dound nolls and Hied the o5 via structures on thor

aniibodies marks the ¢annar colls aul tor cell ardth,

The resulting arossinkirg of carcor and kiler colls by 1he HuCA
a ¥

Messonper subslances produced and secratad by the ke anll fead o the disirustion of sancer onlls 13/4)

3. Maintaining the Company’s Technological Edge

Maintaining a leading technological position in human monoclonal antibody technology is an
important element in the Company’s strategy. As part of this strategy, MorphoSys is constant-
ly testing and investigating cutting-edge innovations and trends in the field of human mono-
clonal antibody development. Where appropriate, such new features are integrated into the
Company’s technology platform. As an example, an area in which MorphoSys was active over
the last year was the production of antibodies. With the acquisition of a license from the Dutch
biotechnology company Crucell N.V. and its partner, the contract producer DSM Biologics,
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MorphoSys gained access to Crucell’s fully human cell line technology PER.C6*. The Company 27
received a second fully human cell line for the production of antibodies, HKB 11, as part of a
cross-licensing agreement with Bayer AG in January 2004. The aim of these callaborations

is to use the two cell lines for the production of antibodies within the Company’s proprietary

projects and partnered programs. There are several advantages of using a human cell line,

and these advantages include higher antibody production yields and relatively rapid production

cycles. Mareover, use of a human cell line ensures that antibodies are glycosylated in a human

pattern, as opposed to traditional animal glycosylation. HuCAL® antibodies, which in terms of

their amino acid content are already fully human, would thus even more closely resemble

their natural counterparts after the production process.

4. Strengthening the Patent Protection of HUCAL® technology

In 2004, MorphoSys significantly improved its patent protection of the HuCAL® technology. A
key patent among a number of newly granted patents issued to MorphoSys by the U.S. Patent
and Trademark Office in June 2004 protects MorphoSys’s proprietary CysDisplay™ technology.
CysDisplay™ is a central and unigue component of the HuCAL GOLD® antibody library intro-
duced by MorphoSys in November 2001. [n essence, CysDisplay™ is an innovative technology
that permits very efficient isolation of high affinity and highly specific antibodies from an
antibody collection. CysDisplay™ accelerates and simplifies the process, making HuCAL GOLD™
particularly well suited for high-throughput automated antihody identification in combination

Stephen Scott Yoder with the MorphoSys proprietary AutoCAL™ system,
ok 2|

During the year, there was also progress as it relates to the patent infringement case launched
by Applied Molecular Evolution (subsequently acquired by Elli Lilly). In October 2004, the
District Judge presiding over the case declared that he would not agree with the positive rec-
ommendation (“Report and Recommendation”) of the Magistrate Judge at this point in time,
due to lack of information on certain key legal facts. In January 2003, the Magistrate Judge
had recommended allowing MorphoSys’s claim for non-violation of the patents. For the present,
the District Judge has applied for a so-called Markman hearing in order to define more pre-
cisely and better understand the claims of each party before making a decision. The suit was
commenced by Applied Melecular Evolution in 2001, and the suit revolves around a single
U.S. patent.
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In September 2004, MorphoSys formed a strategic marketing coopera-
tion with the Tokyo-based company, GeneFrontier Corp., in order to
access the Japanese life science market as part of a wider MorphoSys
effort to expand geographically into new markets. The objective of the
cooperation is to drive new business opportunities by establishing the
HuCAL® technology of MorphoSys as the premium brand for both re-
search and therapeutic antibody generation in Japan. Meanwhile, sev-
eral research projects conducted with Japanese partners have been
successfully completed and resulted in the first Japanese-based reve-
nues for MorphoSys.

Mr. Makoto Ogasawara serves as President and CEO of GeneFrontier Corporation—an innova-
tive solution provider for genome-based drug research & development—since February 2003,
Prior to this assignment, Mr. Ogasawara served as CFO and VP Life Science in ITX’s U.S. sub-
sidiary, ITX International Holdings, Inc. In this capacity, he led the strategic investments in
U.S.-based biotechnology and medical device start-up companies. Mr. Ogasawara has a B.S. in
Engineering from Sophia University, Tokyo, Japan.
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Mr, Ogasawara, can you give us an idea how the Japanese market ticks?

Japan traditionally is a difficult market for western companies to enter. Language and cultur-
al barriers are substantial. Entering via local partners that are experienced in the home mar-
ket as well as in the West is a typical way to build a beachhead in this market. For western
companies possessing innovative technologies, Japan provides a lucrative opportunity, as
there is great activity in life science research.

Do you see a particularly high need for research antibodies in Japan?

Now that the deciphering of the human genetic code has been completed, scientists worldwide
are turning their attention towards analysis of the proteome, the protein repertoire of an
organism, which of course triggers a broad need for new antibodies. Japan is no exception
here. What distinguishes the Japanese life science market from any other is the very large com-
mitment, both strategic and financial, from the Japanese government to supporting research in
this sector. Looking back at the human genome project, it is safe to say that the U.S.A. and
Europe led the race, although Japan contributed heavily in sequencing the human chromosome
21 and 22. That was partially due to the fact that research in Japan in this sector was not suffi-
ciently supported or coordinated in the past. In contrast, [ believe the Japanese government is
now committed to spearheading the analysis of the human proteome.

Regarding this new trend in research, what is Japan's strategy?

Researchers in Japan are pursuing a holistic approach: the goal is to synthesize and analyze
all human proteins. A similar approach proved successful in deciphering the human genetic
code. At least three big Japanese research centers, the RIKEN headquartered in Tokyo, the
AIST and the renowned KAZUSA Research Institute in the Chiba prefecture are collectively
devoting some 10,000 researchers to focus on that task. As antibodies are the standard tool
for doing research on the protein level, we see a huge potential customer base in Japan.
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How big is the overall market for research antibodies in Japan?

That’s very difficult to say, but Japan is estimated to be 15% of the world's life science
research market, which, for antibodies, has a volume of some € 800 million. Particularly for
protein research, we estimate Japan to have a higher share of the world market.

Besides the research sector, are there further apportunities to market HuCAL®?

Absolutely! Especially the pharmaceutical industry in Japan is currently directing huge efforts
to implement the latest generation of platform technologies. Japanese pharmaceutical compa-
nies are traditionally strong in their home market, not to mention Asia as a whole. In the light
of globalization and worldwide competition, Japan's pharmaceutical companies are, at the same
time, on the verge of expanding into new markets in the western hemisphere. Also, Japanese
pharmaceutical companies, R&D budget is growing fast in order to catch up with western
mega pharmas, and the some of the big pharmas in Japan are increasing the budget dramatic-
ally by restructuring, such as Yamanouchi and Fujisawa’'s merger planned in April 2005.
Technological leadership is considered to be the key when trying to step up to U.S. and Euro-
pean competitors and Japan’s pharma companies are well aware of this.

What is GeneFrontier’s strategy, in terms of marketing HuCAL® in the Japanese market?

Since signing the agreement with MorphoSys, GeneFrontier, has invested in business devel-
opment and specific marketing in Japan. Qur good contacts in the research community and

pharmaceutical industry worked well in raising general awareness of the technology. Going
forward, as the first successful projects in Japan using HuCAL® antibodies become published
and passed by word of mouth, we will intensify our marketing and broaden the customer base.
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MorphoSys ~ Why was a marketing agreement with MorphoSys of interest for GenelFrontier?

Mr. Ogasawara  We see a huge potential for HuCAL® technology in the Japanese market, since the key capa-
bilities of HUCAL®, namely speed and high differentiation of products, are easily communi-
cated und thus marketable. Thanks to the many partnerships MorphoSys has forged with big

. pharmaceutical companies, potential customers realize instantly that the technology has
already been validated and established on the market. Concrete advantages such as the offer-
ing of specific research product in just 8 weeks, rather than the usual 3—6 months, further
raise confidence for the technology. Thus, we see a golden opportunity for both MorphoSys
and GeneFrontier by marketing HuCAL® in Japan.

MorphoSys  What do you see as the biggest chances and challenges in future?

Mr. Ogasawara  Japan is the most important market for life science companies in Asia. It may, at the same time,
serve as a door opener for other markets in the region, including China, Singapore and others.
Modern technologies are much appreciated and the research community is longing for innova-
tive approaches in the life sciences such as HuCAL® to accelerate their research projects, as
well as diagnostic and therapeutic product development programs. Anticipating developing
trends in the research antibody market, which will result in new customer needs, is probably
the biggest challenge we are currently facing.

MorphoSys  Thank you for the interview, Mr. Ogasawara.
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Inclusion in the TecDAX

On September 20, 2004, MorphoSys was included in the technology
index TecDAX, which tracks the performance of the 30 largest technology
companies of the Prime Standard listed at the Frankfurt Stock Exchange.
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The MorphoSys Share

Behind the relatively positive picture relating to the capital markets in
2004 were quite different stories in individual sectors and countries.

For example, in the U.S. technology stocks accounted for six of the 20
best performers in the S&P 500 index, but also the 10 of the 20 worst-
performing stocks. In Europe, most of the major national stock indexes
showed a positive development. The DAX increased by 7.3%, as did the

CAC in France and the U.K. FTSE. In contrast, however, the German

technology index TecDAX fell by 3.9 %, impacted by the weak perform-

ance of heavily market cap-weighted stocks within the index.

The MorphoSys Share

Development of the MorphoSys share in 2004
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Development of Share

On the back of operational success during the year, the MorphoSys share experienced a strong
increase of 242% in 2004 —a significant contrast to the 30% decline experienced in 2003. In
comparison, the TecDAX decreased by 3.9%, and the NASDAQ Biotechnology index increased
by 6.1%. MorphoSys outperformed its international antibody peer group, which increased by
only 70%. Moreover, the MorphoSys share experienced a significant increase in trading vol-
ume in 2004. For the full year, 14 million MorphoSys shares were traded; an increase of 22%
compared to the prior year.

On the basis of increased market capitalization and the rise in trading volume, MorphoSys
was accepted into the TecDAX in September 2004. The TecDAX covers the 30 largest technology
values of the Prime Standard segment of the Deutsche Borse. Within this index, MorphoSys
was 24th in terms of market capitalization and 14th in terms of share volume turnover, meas-
ured at year-end. Inclusion into the index has benefited the Company in terms of attracting
greater attention from the financial market and media, but also inclusion into index-tracking
funds, which helped to stimulate demand.

Capital Measures in 2004

In May 2004, MorphoSys signed a strategic collaboration with Novartis AG in order to jointly
develop therapeutic antibodies for various indications. As part of this partnership, Novartis
acquired a non-interest-bearing convertible bond for € 9 million which was converted into
490,133 MorphoSys shares on June 15, 2004. At the end of 2004, Novartis possessed 9.0% of
MorphoSys AC’s capital stock.

Shareholder Structure

The MorphoSys share is a no-par bearer share traded on all German stock exchanges, and is
also represented in XETRA trading.

On December 31, 2004, the number of ordinary shares issued was 5,438,852, stockholders’
equity amounted to € 16,305,523,

The free float, which affects the weighting of the MorphoSys share in various indexes, was
73.6% at the end of 2004. The remaining 26.4% is distributed over three companies, namely
Cambridge Antibody Technology (CAT), with 10.8%, Novartis AG with 9.0% and Schering AG
with 6.6%. Members of the Management Board and the Supervisory Board hold approximate-
ly 3.2% of the free float.
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36 Conversion to IFRS

In 2002, the LU Commission decided that with effect from 2005 all European companies listed
on the stock exchange must compile their consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the “International Financial Reporting Standards” (IFRS). MorphoSys converted its Group
accounting to IFRS from U.S. GAAPD standards in 2004. The quarterly accounts for 2004 were
compiled in accordance with U.S. GAAP whilst the year-end consolidated financial statements
were compiled according to IFRS, with reconciliation back to U.S. CAAP for comparative pur-
poses. The IFRS consolidated financial statements and related footnotes, as well as the recon-
ciliation back to U.S. GAAP can be found on pages 61 and following pages of this annual report.

Corporate Communications

One of the most important aims of corporate communications at MorphoSys is to provide all
shareholders and capital markets with prompt and extensive information on the Company
and its activities. This should enable all market participants to make an appropriate evaluation
of the Company and its financial situation, and to assess the possible perspectives.

MorphoSys reports to its shareholders about the financial and earnings situation four times in
the course of the fiscal year, which are predefined dates listed in the Company’s corporate cal-
endar, which is published prior to the beginning of each financial year. Quarterly reports are
published within 30 days, and annual financial statements within 60 days of each respective
reporting period ending. The Company believes that compliance to its policy of fair disclosure,
i.e. providing the same information to all target groups in the investment community at the
same time, is a very high priority. MorphoSys uses its website to provide current information
promptly and directly to all interested parties. In addition to the legally required ad hoc an-
nouncements, all material events within the Company are announced with press releases. All
publications are also written and published in German and English. Moreover, the Company
offers all interested parties the opportunity to be added to the Company’s mailing list.

In 2004, MorphoSys appeared at 14 national and international investor conferences. More
than 10 roadshows took place in Europe and the U.S.A. and a number of individual discus-
sions were held with investors and analysts. In 2004, the MorphoSys share was covered by
more than fourteen analysts, as was the case the year before. At the end of 2004, six gave a
positive assessment of the share (2003: five), five were neutral (2003: five), two negative
(2003: four) and one rating was under review, mirroring both the gperational successes and

Mario Brkulj stock price performance for the year,
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2004 General Meeting

The Annual Shareholders’ Assembly was held in Munich on May 11, 2004. More than 200 share-
holders attended the meeting, and voting attendance increased in comparison with the previ-
ous year by 57 %—more than a quarter of all common stock voting rights were represented at
the meeting. As in previous years, MorphoSys offered shareholders the option of authorizing
a proxy commissioned by the Company—an arrangement accepted by increasing numbers

of shareholders. All proposals tabied for approval by the Management Board were accepted
by overwhelming majorities. Dr. Metin Colpan was elected as a new member of the Super-
visory Board, following the decision by Dr. Jorg Reinhardt to stand down. All information on
the 2004 Ceneral Meeting can be found on the Company’s website (www.morphosys.com).

At the 2004 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting, the Articles of Association were amended to pub-
lish certain corporate announcements in the electronic version of the Federal Gazette. Planned
changes to these Articles of Association in 2005 include the authorization to broadcast the
Annual Shareholders’ Meeting online.

Legal Changes in 2004

On October 30, 2004, the Investor Protection Improvement Act (AnSVG) came into effect. The
change in the law includes changes to the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG). The aim of
the new law is to ensure the integrity of Germany’s financial markets and to enhance in-
vestor confidence,

This bill improves investor protection relating to capital market information and protection
against unacceptable market practices. The most important changes comprise the new regula-
tions relating to insider information and trading, which serve to tighten the prohibition of
insider trading. Other aspects of the law that have been intensified relate to ad hoc publicity
regulations, market price manipulations of securities and directors dealings. In light of these
new regulations, MorphoSys has adapted its internal guidelines accordingly. Additionally, all
Company employees have been duly informed and agreed to the new insider guidelines. The
Company’s current insider guidelines are available on the Company’s website under
Investors—Corporate Governance.

Risk Management

Prompt identification and appropriate management of corporate risk is an important element
of internal controls and good corporate governance, The auditors review the risk management
system of MorphoSys annually. The risk management system in place at MorphoSys is continu-
ally reviewed and adapted to changing conditions throughout the year. All relevant risks were
documented and the probability of their occurrence was assessed in the 2004 fiscal year. Further
details can be found in the risk report on pages 56 - 58 of this report.
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Revenue Growth

In 2004, the total revenue of MorphoSys was € 22 million,
an increase of 44 % over the previous year. Additionally, MorphoSys
achieved net profitability for the first time in the Company's history.
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Macroeconomic Development

European economic development improved in 2004 in comparisoen with the previous year.
However, the growth rate was considerably slower in selected E.U. countries in the second
half of the year. A significant increase in the price of oil and the weak dollar were important
factors influencing the European economy during the year. Although oil price increases sub-
sided following the record high of more than US$ 50 in October 2004, the euro’s continued
advance against the dollar negatively impacted business sentiment in Furcpe. As a result,
important economic indicators in Germany such as the [fo Business Climate index evidenced
large drops at year-end.

The U.S. economy recovered in the second half of the year following a weaker performance in
the first half. The high current account deficit, which has now increased to over 6% of the
gross domestic product, remains a structural problem for the U.S. economy, and weighs heav-
ily on the minds of U.S. dollar investors. The U.S. Federal Reserve Bank has gradually raised
the Federal Reserve lending rate to its present level of 2% in 5 increments, in order to counter-
act the continuing risk of inflation, and also, to thwart the possible creation of an asset bub-
. ble in the residential housing markets.
Global capital markets continued their recovery in 2004. However, the development of global
stock markets, particularly in the second half of 2004, was characterized by high price volatil-
ity due to interest rate and oil price uncertainty. Looking at the year as a whole, stock market
indexes developed positively, with the German DAX increasing by 7%, the NASDAQ Composite
and U.S. Standard & Poor’s 500 index by 9% each, and the Japanese Nikkei index by approxi-
mately 8%.

Development Within the Biotech Sector

There was both good and bad news from the pharmaceutical and biotechnological sector dur-
ing the year. The approval of Erbitux (Imclone/BMS/Merck} in the U.S.A., excellent phase 3
results for Tarceva {OSI/Genentech/Roche) and a positive assessment regarding the safety
and effectiveness of Macugen (Eyetech/Pfizer) all helped to contribute to the positive news.
However, the sector also experienced somewhat more disappointing news. Five years after it
had been approved, Merck was forced to withdraw its analgetic blockbuster, Vioxx, from the
market in September 2004 on account of safety concerns. Since the withdrawal, Merck has
lost approximately 30% of its market capitalization. Additionally, in October 2004, it was
announced that Chiren would have to temporarily close its influenza vaccine production plant
in Great Britain due to safety issues. Adding further woe to the sector, AstraZeneca faced
issues concerning its anticancer drug Iressa. The Company's shares dropped by over 7% after
it announced that {ressa failed to prolong survival in a lung cancer study.
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The year 2004 also brought gratifying news from the therapeutic antibodies sector. Two fur-
ther therapeutic antibodies were approved for market—Avastin (Genentech) and Tysabri or
Antegren (Biogen Idec/Tlan). In addition, the sector posted a number of large and cash-rich
antibody collaborations—a sign of the confidence and interest in antibodies as successful
therapeutics. This confidence was exemplified in deals with fully human antibody providers
including Medarex’s deal with Pfizer, Cambridge Antibody Technology’s deal with AstraZeneca,
and MorphoSys's deal with Novartis and Pfizer.

In 2004, the German biotechnology sector reported a divergence of fortunes. While the per-
formance of most publicly listed companies was relatively strong during the year, conditions
for fundraising in private companies did not improve significantly compared to prior years.
Underscoring this trend, several privately held Cerman hiotech companies declared bankrupt-
¢y during the year. Nevertheless, the relevant hiotechnology indexes for publicly listed com-
panies have rebounded from the low of August 2004 and since then have enjoyed a healthy
upturn. Since the beginning of the year 2004, the German Prime Pharma & Healthcare index
increased by 19.5%~in comparison, the U.S. NASDAQ Biotech index increased by 6.1 %.

There were several biotechnology IPOs during 2004. In the U.S.A., there were 30 biotech 1POs,
most of which were consummated in the first seven months of the year. A total of 11 [POs
were completed in Europe during the year, with one in Germany. The aftermarket trading of
newly listed companies in Europe was disappointing, and impacted on other potential biotech-
nology initial public offerings. More specifically, at the end of 2004, of the 11 IPOs launched
during the year, 4 of the companies quoted below their issue price. Nonetheless, overall
European biotech fundraising in 2004 was at the second-highest [evel ever, with a few European
companies raising money in follow-on offerings. Globally, biotech company fundraising sur-
passed the US$ 20 hillion mark for only the second time in the industry’s history.

Financial Analysis

Operating Revenues
Compared to the same period of the previous year, revenues for the full year 2004 increased
by 44% to € 22.0 million (2003: € 15.3 million).

The majority of revenues recorded in 2004 relate to partnered target research. In this regard,
milestone revenues amounted to € 1.4 million or 6% for the full year 2004 compared to 3% in
the prior year. The Company also recorded grant revenues, arising from the German Federal
Ministry of Education and Research (“Bundesministerium fiir Bildung und Forschung”), amount-
ing to € 0.1 million during the reporting period, and remained essentially unchanged to the
same period in the previous year,
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Of total revenues, approximately 88% refated to therapeutic antibody collaborations, 8% to
antibody research collaborations, and 4% to the “Antibodies by Design” initiative. For pur-
poses of classification, the following partners were considered to be therapeutic antibody co)-
laborations: Bayer, Centocor, GPC Biotech, ImmunoGen, Roche, Schering, Pfizer, Novartis and
Boehringer Ingelheim U.S.A. Target research collaborations consisted of: Biogen, Bristol-Myers
Squibb {formerly DuPont), ImmunoGen (expansion), Oridis Biomed and Novoplant. Approxi-
mately 71% of total Company revenues arose from MorphoSys’s three largest alliances with
Centocor, Bayer and Novartis (2003: 81%: Centocor, Bayer and Schering).

Geographically, 55% of MorphoSys’s commercial (non-grant) revenues in the amount of
€ 12.0 million were generated with biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies located in
the United States and Canada, 45% in Europe (2003: 81% and 19%, respectively ).

Operating Expenses

For the full year 2004, total operating expenses, including stock-based compensation ex-
penses, increased by 16% to € 21.3 million (2003: € 18.4 million), an increase of € 2.9 mil-
lion. Higher expenses for intangibles and personnel expenses, partially offset by lower exter-
nal services costs, served to increase operational expenses as compared to the prior year.

Research and Development Expenses

Costs for research and development rose by € 3.4 million to € 12.4 million (2003: € 9.0 mil-
lion). Higher personnel and material costs resulting from cooperations recently signed were
only partly offset by lower costs for external lab funding. An additional increase in expense
comparing 2004 versus the prior year arose from a revaluation of the CAT license resulting
in an accounting estimate change in 2003, which reduced research and development expense
by € 2.3 million.

Sales, General and Administrative Expenses
Sales, general and administrative expenses amounted to € 7.5 million compared to € 7.2 mil-
lion in the previous year and thus remained comparatively stable.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation in the amount of € 1.4 million for the year 2004 was recorded as

a non-cash charge (2003: € 2.2 million), resulting from application of [FRS 2 “Share-Based
Payments” under IFRS accounting. The decrease in stock-hased compensation was mainly due
to declining expenses from options and convertible bonds granted in prior periods. Stock-
based compensation for new grants was mainly lower through forfeitures and reduced num-
bers of the same.
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Cost by Expenditure Type 43
Personnel costs {excluding expenses arising from stock-hased compensation) amounted to
€ 9.1 million (2003: € 7.5 million) or 43% of total costs, and were the largest cost block within
operating expenses in 2004, The higher personnel cost level arose from higher operational
activity and thereby higher revenues in 2004. Intangible costs, which include patent litiga-
tion costs and amortization of licenses and patents, amounted to € 3.3 million (2003: € 1.1
million), or 16% of total operating expenses in 2004 and were impacted by revaluation of the
CAT license in 2003 and full-year amortization in 2004, External services, which include exter-
nal lab funding and various outsourced administrative services, amounted to € 2.7 million
(2003: € 3.8 million}, or 13% of total costs and were primarily reduced by lower levels of exter-
nal lab funding, legal expenses and other costs associated with the Company’s two capital
increases in 2003. Infrastructure costs, which mainly include rent, utilities and equipment
depreciation costs, amounted to € 2.1 million (2003: € 1.7 million) or 10% of total operating
costs, and were slightly higher due to increased equipment depreciation levels associated
with higher investment in the same.

Costs by Expenditure Type

Casts for

Costs for personnel 43% externa! services 13%

Costs forintangioles 16 %

Costs
for infrastructure 10%

Others 18%

Non-Operating Items

Non-operating loss increased by € 0.3 million to € 0.4 million (2003; € 0.1 million), and was
mainly due to higher losses arising from foreign currency transactions in connection with the
weakening of the U.S. dollar against the euro, partially offset by the Company’s foreign cur-
rency hedging activities.

Net Income /Loss

For 2004, a net operating profit of € 0.6 million resulted (2003: operating loss of € 3.1 mil-
lion}. Additionally, a net income of € 0.3 million in 2004 resulted (2003: net loss of 3.1 mil-
lion)—the Company’s first full fiscal year of profitability. The resulting net income per share
for the full year 2004 amounted to € 0.05 (2003: loss of € 0.72).
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EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and stock-based
compensation) amounted to € 4.6 million (2003: € 1.8 million).

Liquidity / Cash Flows

On December 31, 2004, the Company had € 37.2 million in cash, cash equivalents and mar-
ketable securities compared to a € 23.2 million balance at December 31, 2003 ~an increase of
more than 60% compared to the prior year. [n 2004, cash provided by operating activities was,
as in the previous year, positive, amounting to € 4.7 million (2003: 5.8 million).

During the year 2004, the Company’s current assets increased by € 14.2 million to € 40.4 mil-
lion compared to € 26.2 million at December 31, 2003, primarily as a result of the issuance
of a convertible bond to Novartis of € 9.0 million in connection with the strategic antibody col-
laboration signed in May 2004. Positive cash inflows from operations also served to increase
the year-end cash amount.

Assets

Largely as a result of the increased cash position, and to a lesser degree investment in equip-
ment, total assets rose and amounted to € 55.8 million in the year 2004, compared to € 42.9
million at December 31, 2003.

Liabilities and Provisions

During the year 2004, total current liabilities increased by € 2.4 million. The increase was
mainly due to higher accruals made for license payables as well as for employee-related bene-
fits. In connection with milestone and exclusive license payments received in the fourth quar-
ter of 2004, VAT payables also increased current liabilities. Furthermore, provisions amount-
ing to € 0.6 million were made for pending trials.

The long-term portion of liabilities amounting to € 0.9 million decreased for the year ended
December 31, 2004, (2003: € 1.7 million) by € 0.8 million due in large part to license pay-
ments made to CAT in 2004.

Equity
At year-end 2004, the total number of shares issued was 5,438,852, of which 5,408,790 were
outstanding, compared to 4,901,332 and 4,841,570 respectively in the prior year.

The increase in outstanding shares arase from the conversion of a convertible bond issued to
Novartis in May. These mandatory convertible debentures were converted into 490,133 com-
mon MorphoSys shares in June 2004, Additionally 47,387 shares were issued as a result of
the exercise of options and convertible bonds granted to employees as part of the Company’s
equity incentive schemes.
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Capital Expenditure

During 2004, total investment in intangibles amounted to € 0.2 million (2003: € 8.5 million).
A large majority of the decrease related to the acquisition of the CAT license in 2003. Amorti-
zation of capitalized intangibles for the year 2004 was correspondingly higher at € 2.0 mil-
lion compared to € 1.5 million in the previous year.

Investment in property and equipment amounted to € 1.5 million in the year 2004 compared
to € 0.5 million in the previous year. Depreciation for 2004 of € 0.7 million compared to € 0.5
million in the same period last year. The increase in equipment was mainly due to investments
made in connection with the antibody reagent business unit.

Subsidiaries / Segments / Organizational Structure

MorphoSys's global headquarters is located in Martinsried, Munich, Germany. The Company's
R&D center and all administrative departments are presently located at its headquarters. The
Company possesses four wholly owned subsidiaries:

MorphoSys U.S.A., Inc.

MorphoSys U.S.A., Inc. was formed in the year 2000 for the purpose of assisting MorphoSys
AG in marketing and commercializing its technologies. The U.S. subsidiary, with its office in
Charlotte, North Carolina, was responsible for all marketing and corporate development activ-
ities at MorphoSys. In line with the restructuring measures in 2002, the activities of MorphoSys
U.S.A., Inc. were transferred to MorphoSys AG in Germany and the operations in Charlotte,
NC, were substantially closed by year-end 2002.

MorphoSys IP GmbH

In November 2002, MorphaSys formed MorphoSys 1P GmbH, whose purpose is to administer
the internally generated intellectual property of MorphoSys AG. To this end, MorphoSys AG
sold at fair market value the rights to certain internally generated intellectual property in
2002. MorphoSys IP GmbH is a wholly owned subsidiary of MorphoSys AG, and & profit pool-
ing agreement exists between those two companies. In order to fulfill its operational needs,
MorphoSys [P GmbH has contracted administrative services from MorphoSys AG and entered
into a sublicensing agreement with MorphoSys AG in order to enable MorphoSys AG o com-
mercialize said patents/technologies.
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Biogenesis U.K. Ltd. and Biogenesis U.S.A., Inc,

On January 20, 2005, MorphoSys acquired two privately held companies, Biogenesis Ltd.
(Poole, UK.) and its sister company Bicgenesis, Inc. (Brentwood, New Hampshire, US.A.). The
final agreements specify the purchase of 100% ownership of Biogenesis Ltd. and Biogenesis,
Inc. by MorphaSys for GBP 5.25 million, less net debt of approximately GBP 700,000, in cash.
The two Biogenesis companies will become wholly owned subsidiaries of MorphoSys AG.

The acquisition of the Biogenesis Group is an expansion of the Company's efforts in the non-
therapeutic applications for its HUCAL® technology. Additionally, it provides MorphaSys with
immediate access to new market channels through Biogenesis’s worldwide customer and global
distributor network for the Company's existing portfolio of products and services.

Commercial Partnerships and Alliance Development

In 2004, the Company expanded existing partnerships and signed new collabarations. The
following partnerships were either established or expanded in the 2004 fiscal year (in alpha-
betical orderj:

MorphoSys Research Antibodies Unit

In February 2004, MorphoSys unveiled a new business unit to market HuCAL® as a source
for research products used in non-therapeutic applications. This business segment is present-
ly known as the “research antibodies unit.” The range of products and services offered by the
business unit primarily targets industrial and academic institutions requiring custom-gener-
ated antibodies. More than 150 different customers in more than 15 different countries have
heen acquired to date, thus demonstrating the significant market potential for custom-gener-
ated research antibodies as well as an increasing awareness of the HuCAL® brand.

The HUCAL® technology has been traditionally employed at MorphoSys in therapeutic anti-
body collaborations with renowned pharmaceutical and biotechnology company partners. The
research products unit was originally conceived in order to further expand the market for
MorphoSys’s core competence in the generation of fully human antibodies using its well-
established HuCALY technology.
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In January 2005, MorphoSys acquired two companies, Biogenesis Ltd. (Poole, U.K.) and its sis- 47
ter company Biogenesis, Inc. (Brentwood, New Hampshire, U.S.A.). With more than 20 years of
experience in antibody development and manufacturing, and a comprehensive antibody cata-

logue, the combined Biogenesis Group represents ane of the larger European suppliers of anti-

badies to the life sciences research community. Combined with MorphoSys’s existing efforts in

this area, the acquisition has established MorphoSys as one of the top 5 European suppliers

of research antibodies. While the therapeutic antibodies unit remains the key driver of the

MorphoSys business, the expanded research antibpdies unit becomes a more significant sec-

ond pillar in the Company’s overall commercial strategy.

Biogen ldec, Inc.
The research cooperation with Biogen Idec, which was signed in December 2000 and extend-
ed in fanuary 2002, was successfully concluded at the end of September 2004,

Crucell N.V.

MorphoSys AG, Dutch biotechnology company Crucell N.V. and allied contract manufacturer
DSM Biologics signed a non-exclusive license agreement in August 2004. Under the terms of
the agreement, MorphoSys receives rights to Crucell's PER.C6® fully human cell line tech-
nology for use in its own and partnered antibody research programs conducted at MorphoSys.
Furthermore, MorphoSys and its partners have an option to obtain a license for the clinical
and commercial production of antibodies isolated from the MorphoSys HuCAL® library. The
human cell line has been shown to be suited to the development and large-scale manufactur-
ing of a wide range of biologics including antibodies. With the deal in place, MorphoSys is
better positioned to broaden its technology base and further diversify its manufacturing offer-
ings for existing and new partners.

GeneFrontier Corp.

In order to access the Japanese life science market, MorphoSys signed a strategic marketing
cooperation with the Tokyo-based company, Genel'rontier Corporation, in September 2004,
The objective of the cooperation is to drive new business opportunities by establishing the
HuCAL® technology as the premium brand for both research and therapeutic antibody gener-
ation in Japan. As part of an ongoing pre-marketing agreement between the two companies,
several research projects were conducted with Japanese partners and successfully completed,
generating MorphoSys’s first ever Japanese revenues. Under the Company’s multi-year collabo-
ration, both parties will continue to invest in customer development and marketing in Japan
as part of a wider MorphoSys effort to expand geographically into new markets. Japan repre-
sents the second largest life science market in the world in terms of revenue size.
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Novartis AG

MorphoSys and Novartis AG formed a significant strategic collaboration to discover and develop
antibody-based biopharmaceuticals as therapeutic agents, in order to address unmet medical
need across a variety of disease indications. In the collaboration which commenced in June
2004, MorphoSys brings validated and robust human antibody technologies (HuCAL GOLD¥)
to Novartis’s new strategic research directions, building a collaboration that is expected to iden-
tify and develop novel therapeutic agents rapidly and efficiently.

MorphoSys scientists will work directly with Novartis scientists at various global sites of the
Novartis Institutes for BioMedical Research (NIBR). As such, MorphoSys's HuCAL GOLD® tech-

nology is to play a central role in Novartis's antibody drug discovery and development efforts.

During the three-year term of the agreement, which provides for an additional two-year exten-
sion beyond the original term, Novartis will fund internal research at MorphoSys that will
generate and optimize HUuCAL GOLD® antibodies. In addition, Novartis will have access to
the current MerphoSys HuCAL GOLD® library at two of its research sites.

Under the terms of the collaboration, Novartis will be MorphaSys's first partner to receive a
non-exclusive option on internalization of the entire MorphoSys technology platform, which
would trigger an additional payment by Novartis to MorphoSys. As part of the agreement,
MorphoSys will also receive over US$ 30 million in committed R&D funding and technology
license fees for the first three years. MorphoSys also stands to receive technology license
payments, research and developmental milestones, as well as royalties on marketed antibody
products.

Underscoring the strategic nature of the collaboration, Novartis made an approx. € 9 million
investment in MorphoSys by purchasing non-interest bearing convertible bonds of the
Company. The convertible bonds were converted into 490,133 common MorphoSys shares,
issued from conditional capital, on June 15, 2004. At December 31, 2004, Novartis owned
9.0% of the issued common stock of MorphoSys.

Novoplant GmbH

MorphoSys AG and Novoplant GmbH signed a collaboration for the development of therapeu-
tic antibodies in animal health applications in July 2004, Under the three-year agreement,
Novaplant received a license from MorphoSys for the development and commercialization of
therapeutic antibodies as feed components for use in veterinary medicine. In addition to
annual licensing fees, Novoplant pays a technology access fee to MorphoSys for the utiliza-
tion of the HUCAL GOLD™ technology. Moreover, MorphoSys receives milestone fees and roy-
alties for the suhsequent development and marketing of any resulting products.




Silvia Dermietzel

Senior Dirnclor
Human Resources

GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT

In the context of the coaperation, Novoplant will use MorphoSys’'s HuCAL GOLD® technology
to generate antibodies against viruses, parasites and pathogenic micro-organisms such as E. coli
or salmonella. The addition of such MorphoSys antibodies ta animal feed stack intended for
poultry, pigs or cattle may offer protection against infectious diseases in the respective ani-
mal’s gastrointestinal tract. MorphoSys retains all rights in any human therapeutics or diag-
nostics emerging from the collaboration.

Oridis Biomed
The research cooperation with Oridis Biomed, which was signed in September 2001, ended at
the end of September 2004 and was not extended.

Production

As a result of its partnership with Lonza Biologics, MorphoSys has gained a competent part-
ner in the production of antibody material. Lonza has many years of experience in the field of
process optimization and production of biological agents. The production of clinical antibody
material is a time-consuming and expensive procedure, which is strictly controlled by the rele-
vant authorities.

For its own pre-clinical investigations, MorphoSys produces antibodies in milligrams. The
MorphoSys business segment “research antibodies unit” also produces antibodies for its cus-
tomers in this quantity. The current MarphoSys capacity is fully capable of producing anti-
bodies in these amounts, when these materials are used exclusively for research. MorphoSys
currently has no plans to build its own production facilities for the manufacture of clinical
antibody material due to the investment and expense involved with such production sites.

Human Resources

People at MorphoSys

With their commitment, expertise and experience, the employees of MorphoSys are the basis
for the Company’s success. It is of central significance to hire the most highly qualified and
motivated employees and to be able to retain them for the long term.

Performance-Related Compensation and Stock Option Programs

MorphaSys’s success is based on the high motivation of its employees. In this vein, all em-
ployees take part in a “management by objectives” program, which includes both personal and
Company goals. The achievement of the goals is linked to the annual benus program. Addi-
tionally, all employees have the chance to participate in a stock option or convertible bonds
program as part of a long-term equity incentive scheme. The aim of this program is to give
employees a long-term stake in the success of the Company.
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Defined Contribution Pension Fund

During 2004, MorphoSys introduced a company pension for all employees under the umbrel-
la of the German pension law (“Altersvermogensgesetz”). The pension plan is a defined con-
tribution pension fund, which is provided by an independent third-party provider for the indi-
viduals concerned. The plans are portable, and contributions are financed by voluntary salary
reductions by the employees. Both employees and employers benefit, as the German federal
tax authorities do not tax employee contributions, and thus taxes are deferred until pensions
are actually withdrawn. The Company benefits through savings on social insurance payments
which are lower due to the reduced salaries paid to employees. The pension plan is seen as
an important element and building block in helping employees diversify and build their finan-
cial retirement assets.

Significant Changes

Supervisory Board of MorphoSys AG

At the Annual Shareholders’ Assembly of May 11, 2004, Dr. Gerald Moller, Dr. Daniel Camus
and Dr. Geoffrey N. Vernon were re-elected as members of the Supervisory Board. Dr. Gerald
Maller, Managing Director of HBM BioCapital Management GmbH, is Chairman of the Super-
visory Board and has been on the MorphoSys AG Supervisory Board since 1999. Dr, Daniel
Camus, CFO and member of the Lixecutive Committee of Flectricité de France (EdF), France,
has heen on the Supervisory Board of MorphoSys since 2002. Dr. Geoffrey N. Vernon, Exec-
utive Chairman of Ziggus Holdings Limited, United Kingdom, has been on the Supervisory
Board since 1999,

Dr. Metin Colpan was appointed as new Supervisory Board member. Dr. Colpan replaced Dr.
Jérg Reinhardt, Director of Development and member of the Executive Committee at Novartis
Pharma. Dr. Reinhardt joined the Supervisory Board of MorphoSys in July 2001 and refrained
from seeking re-election due to other commitments. Dr. Colpan was co-founder, Chief
Executive Officer and Managing Director of QIAGEN for approximately 20 years.

Management Board of MorphoSys AG

On September 3, 2004, MorphoSys announced the departure of Dr. Thomas von Riiden from
the Company's Management Board. Until a successor is appointed, the Company will continue
to be managed by the other two Board members, Dr. Simon E. Moroney, Chief Executive Officer,
and Dave Lemus, Chief Financial Officer. Dr. Moroney added Research and Development to
his responsibilities, while Dave Lemus added Technical Operations to his responsibilities. The
Company thanks Dr. von Riiden for his significant efforts over the last several years in help-
ing establish the HUCAL GOLD® technology as the world’s premier fully human antibody
technology.
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Number and Qualification of Employees

On December 31, 2004, the MorphoSys Group employed 132 employees {(December 31, 2003:
95). The MorphoSys Group employed an average of 117 employees for the full year 2004
{2003: 93): for Q4 2004, the average was 132 employees {Q4 2003: 95).

|

Of the 132 employees, 108 worked in research and development and 24 in administration and
sales. At the end of 2004, 45 of MorphoSys’s employees had a Ph.D. degree (December 31,
2003: 35).

On December 31, 2004, MorphoSys employed 2 trainees as “technical information processors
in the area of information technology” (December 31, 2003: 2 trainees).

Environment and Health Protection

MorphoSys carries out its research in safety level “Bio I" and “Bio II” laboratories and under
observance of all relevant legal guidelines. Internal standards are more stringent than those
guidelines which are legally required. One designated full-time employee for work safety is
part of the expert team of employees specifically responsible for work safety, biological safety
and fire prevention. Employees are given regular training to inform them of the latest guide-
lines. To date, no official inspections have resulted in any requirement to change procedures.
Due to regular maintenance hy internal employees, all laboratory equipment adheres to the
highest possible standard of safety.

A detailed waste management concept has been extensively documented and ensures that
disposal of laboratory waste is always in line with valid limits and guidelines.

Regular medical checks are carried out for all MarphoSys employees. An initial medical check
is carried out for all new employees in the research department, Such checks are repeated
yearly. Furthermore, employees are routinely vaccinated against hepatitis A and B.
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Research and Development

MorphoSys uses its own HuCAL® technology for development of therapeutic antibodies and
research reagents. This technology has been thoroughly tried and tested in numerous part-
nerships.

In the course of its therapeutic antibody collaborations, MorphoSys generates human antibod-
ies for its partners which are then optimized according to their requirements. In the context
of these partnerships, MorphoSys is responsible for the manufacture and optimization of the
antibodies, whereas the partner is responsible for pre-clinical and clinical development.

More recently, MorphoSys has been developing its own proprietary therapeutic antibodies as
candidates for out-licensing to potential partners, prior to their entry into clinical develop-
ment,

Existing Collaborations
In the course of the 2004 fiscal year, MorphoSys made significant progress in various exist-
ing collaborations. For a description of all existing partnerships, please see pages 108-113.

Bayer AG

In the context of an agreement for the cross-licensing of certain technologies with Bayer
HealthCare, MorphoSys received the human cell line HKB 1! for production of HuCAL® anti-
bodies. The agreement was signed in signed in January 2004. MorphoSys received the right
to use the cell line for its own research and an option for the commercial production of anti-
bodies using the HKB 11 cell line. In exchange, Bayer switched its in-house R&D programs
to the MorphoSys HuCAL GOLD® antibody technology, triggering an installation fee from
Bayer HealthCare to MorphoSys.

Boehringer Ingelheim

In August 2004, MorphoSys and its existing partner Boehringer Ingetheim announced the start
of a new program for the development of a therapeutic antibody against an undisclosed target
molecule involved in cardiovascular diseases. MorphoSys is generating this antibody using its
proprietary HuCAL GOLD™ technology. Boehringer Ingelheim will carry out the pre-clinical
and clinical development, as well as subsequent marketing of all resulting products. MorphoSys
will participate in the successful progress of the project, receiving milestone payments and
royalties.
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Centocaor, Inc. 53
The collaboration agreement with Centocor was signed in December 2000, and was originally

planned to end in December 2005, One year ahead of schedule, the companies extended the

existing antibody cooperation which will now run until the end of 2007. Under the terms of

the expanded agreement, Centocor increased its levels of research and development funding

1o MorphoSys, and paid an upfront payment. Furthermore, Centocor is committed to com-

mence at least two new antibody development programs in 2005.

In August 2004, Centocor, Inc. exercised an option to retain a commercial license for HuCAL®
antibodies directed against an undisclosed Centocor target molecule involved in inflammatory
diseases. In exchange, MorphoSys received a license payment from Centocor. The cooperation
hetween MorphoSys and Centocor, initiated in December 2000, is aimed at the development
of human therapeutic antibodies in a range of indications. 1t inciudes an option for Centocor
on the development of antibodies against up to 30 different target molecules using MorphoSys's
proprietary technologies.

Prior to taking the commercial license, in April 2004, MorphoSys announced the achievement
of a fourth milestone in its caoperation with Centocor Inc. In meeting the milestone, MorphoSys
developed several highly optimized fully human [gG antibodies against a disease-associated
target provided by Centocor. As part of the collaboration milestone, MorphoSys applied its
proprietary HuCAL GOLD® antibody library in order to generate antibodies which passed nine
different predefined criteria. Achievement of the milestone resulted in a payment from Cento-
cor to MorphoSys. In the collaboration with Centocor, MorphoSys has achieved four performance-
related milestones to date.

In March 2004, Centocar, Inc. elected a new target molecule involved in autoimmune diseases,
marking the start of another therapeutic antibody program with MorphoSys. MorphoSys is
generating antibodies against the target provided by Centocor using its proprietary HuCAL
GOLD® technology. Centocor will carry out pre-clinical and clinical development and subse-
guent marketing of resuiting products. In exchange, MorphoSys stands to receive licensing
and milestone payments, in addition to royalties.
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GPC Biotech AG

MorphoSys's first HuCALP-generated antibody received clearance to go into the human clini-
cal development trials in 2004. More specifically, the Company announced in December 2004
that its partner GPC Biotech AG received regulatory clearance from the Swiss Agency for Thera-
peutic Products to commence a phase 1 clinical trial with an anti-cancer antibody generated
using MorphoSys’s HuCAL¥ technology. The HuCAL®-derived antibody is expected to enter
clinical trials in human patients at sites in three European countries.

The commencement of clinical trials will then trigger a clinical development milestone pay-
ment from GPC Biotech to MorphoSys, due on the first administration of the HuCAL"™ anti-
body in human patients.

Prior to receiving the regulatory clearance, GPC Biatech extended its exclusive license for
HuCALY antibodies directed against MHC class Il target molecules in January 2004, The
extension of the exclusive license was followed by a payment from GPC to MarphoSys.

Product Development at MorphoSys

MorphoSys’s proprietary pipeline of therapeutic antibody programs comprises actually three
candidates, MOR101, MOR102 and MOR202. MorphoSys plans to out-license all antibody pro-
grams hefore the start of clinical trials.

MOR202

In October 2004, MorphoSys presented promising initial in vitro and in vivo data for the inter-

nal cancer antibody program, MOR202, at the “Human Antibodies & Hybridomas” conference
held in Dublin. The fully human antibodies generated from MorphoSys's HuCAL GOLD® library
are directed against the target molecule CD38, which is heavily over-expressed on the surface
of certain cancer cells. The MOR202 program is currently in pre-clinical development for the

treatment of multiple myeloma and other blood cancer-related diseases. [n line with its corpo-
rate strategy, MorphoSys plans to out-license the MORZ202 antibody program prior to the start

of clinical development.

The MOR202 antibodies were initially characterized in detail in various in vitro assays. By
directing the MorphoSys antibodies against primary patient tumor material and specific
hematologic cancer cell lines, the assays demonstrated that the antibodies were able to kill
cancer cells efficiently. A MOR202 antibody also proved to be highly effective in an in vivo
animal model. The HuCAL® 1gG antibody was administered regularly to tumor-bearing mice
aver a period of between three and five weeks. In various experimental settings, different
antibody constructs, dosages and treatment regimens were examined. In all cases, treatment
with MOR202 antibedy led to a significant slowdown of tumor growth, in some cases no tumor
could be detected at the end of the observation period. MorphoSys has submitted several U.S.
patent applications. These patents relate to specific anti-CD38 antibodies and their use.
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Intellectual Property

A series of granted HuCAL®-related patents significantly strengthened the intellectual prop-
erty position of MorphoSys in 2004, MorphoSys AG announced in March that the U.S. Patent
& Trademark Office has granted the Company two new patents, which provide an extended
protection of the MorphoSys HuCAL® technology and enlarge the potential area of application
for MorphoSys’s technologies.

The first new patent {(U.S. 6,696,248) entitled “Protein/(Poly)Peptide Libraries” relates to
MorphoSys’s proprietary HuCAL® technology. The patent covers the genetic constitution of
synthetic, fully modular human antibody libraries based on in silico consensus sequences. In
addition, the U.S. Patent & Trademark Office granted a patent (U.S. 6,692,935 B1} entitled
“Targeted Hetero-Association of Recombinant Proteins to Multi-Functional Complexes.” The
patent covers certain methods for the development of multifunctional protein complexes,
such as the combination of antibedy fragments with different specificities. In April, the U.S.
Patent & Trademark Office granted a third patent (U.S. 6,706,484}, which covers the method
of obtaining an antigen-specific antibody or an antibody fragment from the HuCAL® library.

The fourth patent was one granted to MorphoSys by the U.S. Patent& Trademark Cffice in
June, covering the Company’s proprietary CysDisplay™ screening technology. CysDisplay™
is an important component of MorphoSys’s proprietary HuCAL GOLD® technalogy, and the
new patent provides additional protection for the same. The new patent (U.S. 6,753,136} titled
“Novel methods for displaying (poly)peptides/proteins on bacteriophage particles via disul-
fide bonds” describes a selection technology based on phage display for selecting high-affini-
ty antibodies.

MorphoSys’s first HRCAL® patent, which is now complemented by the aforementioned patents,
was issued by the U.S. Patent& Trademark Office in 2001, HUCAL® patents are currently grant-
ed in the United States, Australia and by the European Patent Office. Furthermore, MorphoSys

has received several notifications of allowance for further patent applications in the U.S. Present-

ly, MorphoSys has 13 granted patents and more than 50 applications pending worldwide.
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Risk Report

MorphoSys AG operates on a global basis. Its business activities comprise different risks,
which are relevant to many business functions. The business, financial condition and results
of operation of MorphoSys may be materially adversely affected by each of these risks. The
Company has established a risk management system that is used regularly to identify, meas-
ure and control such risks as an integrated part of normal business activities.

Product Development

MorphaSys is committed to generating therapeutic antibodies for its commercial partners
and, more recently, its own account. Thus, the Company’s product pipeline comprises both
partnered and proprietary therapeutic antibody development programs. These programs are
subject to a number of risks of failure inherent in the development of medical therapies.
Product candidates require pre-clinical studies and clinical trials in humans as well as regula-
tory approval prior to commercialization. To date, none of the Company’s licensees or part-
ners has commercialized a product hased on MorphoSys's HUCAL® technology, and HuCAL®-
derived therapeutics are not expected to be commercially available for a number of years. In
addition, none of the HuCAL®-derived product candidates has successfully completed all
stages of clinical testing and regulatory approval procedures. Pre-clinical studies may not pre-
dict and do not ensure safety or efficacy in humans, and are not necessarily indicative of the
results that may be achieved in pivotal clinical trials with humans.

Competition and Technological Change

MorphoSys’s business environment is characterized by rapid change and intense competition.
Its competitors include major pharmaceutical, chemical and biotech companies possessing
greater financial, technical and marketing resources than those available to MorphoSys. In
addition, certain biotech companies have formed collaborations with large established compa-
nies to support research, development and commercialization of products that may be com-
petitive with those of MorphoSys. Moreover, certain research and academic institutions are
also active in areas similar to MorphoSys. Some of MorphoSys’s competitors currently focus
their husiness efforts on gaining a share of the market and offer their technology at little or
no cost to collaboration partners. The first pharmaceutical product to reach the market is
often at a significant advantage to later entrants, particularly since subsequent potential
entrants must prove an advantage of their product over products already in the market.

There is a risk that MorphoSys’s competitors could succeed in developing technologies and
products that are safer, less costly and more effective than its technologies or products. In
addition, there is a risk that these technologies could produce products that reach the market
earlier and could be more successful than those developed by MorphoSys.
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Product Risks

The marketing and sale of antibody products and services for certain applications entail a
potential risk of product liability, and there can be no assurance that product liability claims
will not be brought against the Company. MorphoSys currently carries product liability insur-
ance coverage. There can be no assurance, however, that the Company will be able to main-
tain such insurance at reasonable cost and on reasonable term, or that such insurance will be
adequate to protect MorphoSys against any or all potential claims or losses.

Dependence on Health Care and Pharmaceutical Spending

MorphoSys is dependent on various sources of income, including, in particular, fees, mile-
stone payments and royalties from iicensees and partners, the financial condition of public
treasuries and the financial markets, the government and governmental health authorities,
research institutions, private health insurers and other organizations. Part of MorphoSys’s
revenue is derived from entering into collaborations with partners, including pharmaceutical
companies. Many collaborative and/or out-licensing agreements provide for milestone pay-
ments and fees to be paid subject to the satisfaction of specific criteria. MorphoSys has no
control over whether its partners or licensees will be able to meet such milestones, nor will
MorphoSys be able to control whether products derived from its technology are being devel-
oped at all by its partners. Moreover, certain pharmaceutical companies may be more likely
to seek to in-license products which have afready reached a relatively advanced stage of
development, such as phase 2 compounds, as opposed to less advanced product candidates
still in pre-clinical stages. Consequently, the products in MorphoSys's pipeline may not reach
a sufficiently advanced stage of development to be of interest to these pharmaceutical compa-
nies for some time, Therefore the Company can offer no assurance that there will he a guar-
anteed revenue stream from current or future coliaborations.

IP Risks

MorphoSys is or has been involved in legal proceedings in Germany and certain foreign juris-
dictions, including the United States, including claims brought by and against it for license
or patent infringement, which arise in the ordinary course of business. Presently, the Company
is in a patent dispute with Applied Molecular Evolution (AME), which was acquired by Eli Lilly.
AME filed a complaint against MorphoSys AG and its wholly owned subsidiary MorphoSys
U.S A, Inc,, alleging that MorphoSys AG and MorphoSys U.S.A., Inc. are willfully infringing
the Kauffman patent family under which AME holds an exclusive license. While the Company
cannot predict the ultimate cutcome of the still pending proceedings, management does not
currently helieve them to have an adverse material effect on the business, financial condition
and results of operations of MorphoSys. However, the field of recombinant antibody libraries
and phage display, in which the Company is active, is relatively new, and the intellectual prop-
erty position of the various parties involved is complex and litigious. Therefore, MorphoSys
can offer no assurance that further patent suits will not be brought by companies possessing
existing patents or patents which have not yet been granted or which the Company is cur-
rently not aware of. Any such proceedings, if brought and subsequently decided against
MorphoSys, could have an adverse material effect on the business, financial condition and
results of operations of MorphoSys.

-
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Additional Funding Requirements

MorphoSys’s future capital requirements will continue to be substantial and will be dependent
on many factors, including its ability to find licensees and to enter into satisfactory coltabora-
tion agreements as well as the success of such collaborations in generating revenues (e.g., li-
censing fees, milestone payments and royalties). The costs of pre-clinical testing of MorphoSys’s
products and technologies as well as the costs associated with filing, defending and enforcing
patent rights may exceed the returns from these products. MorphoSys may also need to raise
additional funds in future years. The Company can offer no assurance that adequate funds
will be available to MorphoSys when needed on satisfactory terms or at all.

If adequate funds are not available or are not available on acceptable terms, MorphoSys may
have to further reduce its expenditures for research and development, production or market-
ing. Any such development could have a material adverse effect on MorphoSys's business,
financial condition and results of operations. If additional funds are raised by issuing shares,
stockholders are likely to experience a dilution of their interests.

Currency Risk

The Group accounts are administered in euros. While the expenses of MorphoSys are pre-
dominantly paid in euros, a significant part of the revenues depends on the current exchange
rate of U.S. dollars and euros. The Company examines the necessity of hedging foreign
exchange transactions to minimize currency risk during the year and addresses them by
employing derivative financial instruments.

Dependence on Key Personnel

MorphoSys has net experienced any difficulties attracting or retaining key management or
scientific staff, but the continued ability to recruit and retain qualified skilled persennel is
critical to the Company's success. Due to the intense competition for experienced scientists
from numerous pharmaceutical and hiotechnology companies and academic and othsr research
institutions, there can be no assurance that MorphoSys will be able to attract and retain such
personnel on acceptable terms. Planned activities will also require additional personnel, inciud-
ing management, with expertise in different areas. The inability to recruit such personnel or
develop such expertise could have an adverse material impact on the Company's operations.
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Qutlook for 2005

Outlook for the Biotech Sector

For 2005, it is expected that biotechnology companies will continue to benefit from the oppor-
tunities arising from the pharmaceutical sector’s weak product pipelines. Innovative medica-
tions are hence still in high demand, meaning further possibilities should ahound for reward-
ing collaborations between pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies. Additional positive
impetus for the sector could result from new FDA approvals and positive clinical data. Other
catalysts which could positively impact the sector include the U.S.-originated “Bioshield” hio-
terrorism program, appointment of a new FDA head, and positive news relating to clinical
development projects across the industry as a whole.

Strategy
MorphoSys uses its antibody technology both for the development of medicines and the gen-
eration of reagents for research purposes and diagnhostics agents. Both business activities are
expected to continue a long-term growth trend. A stated goal of the Company is to establish the
technology as an industry standard for the generation of human antibodies in the life science
industry.

In this vein, MorphoSys expects to sign further therapeutic antibody collaborations in order
to expand a wide pipeline of therapeutic antibodies with new partners.

As part of the reagent business, MorphoSys endeavors to increase its market share through a
combination of further growth and exploration of further possibilities for inorganic growth.

For the year 2005, MorphoSys plans to out-license at least one of its proprietary drug devel-

opment programs, which currentty consist of MOR101, MOR102 and MOR202. No significant

expansion of these programs is presently foreseen, nor is a move into clinical development for
these projects envisioned. In addition, MorphoSys will strive for further improvements in the
efficiency of antibody generation capacity.

Revenues

There continues to be significant interest in human antibodies. Based on this, MorphoSys
expects its long-term sales growth to average at least 15%, in line with expectations for a life
sciences-based growth company.
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Sources of such revenues relating to the Therapeutic Antibodies business unit include long-
term partnerships with pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies. MorphoSys receives
annual license payments and research payments for provision of the technology and perfor-
mance, or milestone payments for intermediate goals achieved in the partnerships. Particularly
relevant in terms of financial size are clinical milestone payments. MorphoSys expects to
receive its first clinical milestone payment in 2005, triggered by the first antibody to enter
clinical phase 1 status. At least one additional antibody is expected to enter clinical testing
during the year from one of the Company's other partners.

Revenues from the reagent business unit are expected to experience a further increase in 2005.
The acquisition of the Biogenesis Group provides MorphoSys with immediate access to new
market channels for its innovative HuCAL® antibody technology. MorphoSys will continue to
support Biogenesis’s pre-existing portfolio of research products and at the same time utilize
all opportunities to further market the HuCAL® technology through Biogenesis's worldwide
customer and global distributor network. Additionally, the opening up of new geographical
markets, such as the marketing partnership with Japan-based GeneFrontier, are expected to
help support revenue growth looking ahead.

Expenses

Expenses are expected to increase in 2005 compared to the prior year, due to an increased
full-year total average headcount as compared to the previous year. Additionally, personnel
cost is expected to be impacted by increased stock-based compensation expense resulting
from the grant of stock options and convertible honds granted at year-end 2004. Further in-
creases in costs may arise from additional intangibles expense in conjunction with success-
based license payments.

Capital Expenditure

Investment in property and equipment is expected to remain at approximately the same level
as the previous year. Such investment js expected to focus on investment which increases the
efficiency of antibody generation at MorphoSys using the HuCAL® antibody library.

Human Resources

The total number of employees as measured at year-end is expected to stay at roughly the
same level in 2005. New employees required beyond presently foreseen business activities
are contingent upon new collaborations or expansions of existing business activities to sup-
port the same. However, the average number of total employees is expected to be higher in
2005, due to significant numbers of hires in mid-year 2004,

Dividends

Although MarphoSys expects to achieve a net profit in 2005, the Company believes that the
payment of dividends should be deferred until such time as its financial and liquidity posi-
tion supports the same. As such, any profits generated by the business shall be reinvested into
the operation of its business in order to create further growth opportunities for the future.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations (IFRS)

in € Note :‘ 12/31/2004 ‘;‘ 12/31/2003

Revenues 1p 21,978,796 15,308,465
Operating Expenses

Research and Development i 12,391,295 8,998,012

i Sales General and Admlmstr‘atlvem o e 7522188 """""""" 7202206

" Stock-Based Compensahon T T s 15 T 423 907 2 163707

~Total Operating Expenses " 7731337,390 18,363,925

Profit/{Loss) from Operations - 641,406 (3,055,460)

Interest Income 285695 212,461

(306,520)

) Profit/(Loss) before Taxes 282 112
Foreign Income Tax Expense 17 -
Net Profit/(Loss) T T 282042
Basic Net Profit/{Loss) per Share - 18 0.05
Gt ot ot o Sors T e

Shares Used in Computing Basic Net Profit/
[Loss) per Share 8 BISTA67

Shares Used in Computmg Diiuted Net Proflt/

{Loss) per Share B 5109,965

332,438

4,332,438
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Consolidated Balance Sheets (IFRS)

in€ Note 12/31/2003
Assets
Current Assets
_ Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 12,531,198 6,652,456

ale

Other Rece!vables S 6 o 392,035 - 479 929

Prepavd Expenses and Other Current Assetsmmw ) 77 o 430608 468 646

Total Current Assets ' 40,357,151 26,221,316
Non-Current Assets '

) Property and Equipment, Net ‘ 8 2,330,995 1,502,403
Patents, Net ST 9 2,790091 3,203,540
ML\cense Fees Net N o 9 o O 898 904.
- 'Séftware Net S 405 5,492
i “Other Assets S e 1O 647 212‘
~ Total Non-Current Assets 15438542 16,657,551
. Total Assets 55,795,693 42,878,867
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities
) Accounts Payable 11 3,838,144 2,732,293
“Current Portion of License Payable T 9 10243 677060
e e TV .
" Current Portion of Deferred Revenue - e 4,757,249 4272, 249"
" Total Current Lisbilities ] 10,106,243 7,681,602
Non-Current Liabilities
Licenses Payable, Net of Current Portion " 880,015 1,651,360
5100646 6,086,205

109,692 157,200

“Total Non-é&rren{‘ﬂiébiiiiiéé“W"'"'"""'"’"m” T 610,964 7,894,765
Stockholders’ Equity o 13

Common Stock, € 3.00 Par Valug;

9,597,400 and 8,626,344 Ordinary Shares

Authorized; 5,438,852 and 4,901,332 Ordinary

Shares Issued; 5,408,790 and 4,841,570

Ordinary Shares Qutstanding;

for 2004 and 2003 respectively

Treasury Stock {30,062 and 59,762 shares for

2004 and 2003 respectively), at Cost 16,305,523 14,682,062

Additional Paid-in Capital
Accumulated Other Comprehenswe Income/(Loss)

. fecumuatedDefict (58026196 (56,308,308
Total Stockholders’ Equity 39,378, 486 27, 302 500
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity 55,795,693 42,878,867
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Consolidated Statements of Changes
~in Stockholders’” Equity (IFRS)

Common Stock

Shares €
Balance at January 1, 2003 o 3,949,706 11,849,118
Compensation Related to the Grant of Stock
_ Options and Convertible Bonds T S
Equity Components of Convertible Bonds
JSranted to Employees e, - 3
Capital Increase against Contribution in Kind (XOMA},
Net of Issuance Cost of € 23,314 363,466 1,090,398

Capital Increase against Contribution in Kind (CAT),

Other Compreﬂhensive Loss:

Net of Issuance Cost 0f € 130,000 e e

588,180 o

L7OAA80

Change in Unrealized Gain on Available-for-Sale Securities

Foreign Currency Gain from Consolidation - -
Net Loss for the Year ] - -
Comprehensive Loss - -
Balance at December 31, 2003 4’,901’3,,32 14,703,996

Compensation Related to the Grant of Stock Options

and Convertible Bonds ) ) o - -
Equity Components of Convertible Bonds Granted
R e L SO,
Exercise of Options and Convertible Bonds Issued

to Related Parties ) ) ) ] 47,387 142,161
Exercise of Options from Treasury Stock issued

to Related Parties

Conversion of Convertible Bonds,
net of issuance Cost of € 126,583

Other Comprehensive Income:

L9088

LLA70399

Change in Unrealized Gain on Available-for-Sale Securities,
Net of Deferred Tax Asset

__ Foreign Currency Loss from Consoligasion -
NetprofitfortheYear -
_ Comprehensive Income ) S -
Balance at December 31, 2004 o 5,438,852 16,316,556
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05

Treasury Stock Additional © Translation Revaluation Accumulated
Paid-in Capital ~ Reserve : Reserve Deficit
Shares € € _ € S €

59,762 (21,934) 59,197,248 (556,227) 38,636 (53,177,328) 17,329,513

- - 2,163,707 - - - - 2,163,707

- - 17,570 - - - 17,570

T e - — : s
59,762 (21,934) 68,632,990 244,930 50,826  (56,308,308) 27,302,500

- - 1,423,908 - - - 1,423,908

- - 715,47 - - - 857,637

(29,700) 1090t 508,850 - - - - 519,751

N 4= S - 8,828,147

: i s D - P
30,062 (11,033) 78,646,377 403,229 49,553 (56,026,196) 39,378,486




6 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (IFRS)

in€ Note 12/31/2003

Operating Activities
Net Profit/({Loss) 282,12 (3,130,980)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Profit/(Loss)

to Net Cash Used for Operating Activities:
Depreciation L ) 656,805 544,584

Unreatized Net Gazin on Derivative Financial
Instruments (233,459) (315,929

Impairment of Marketable Securities o - 136,769

Net Gain from Accounting Estimate Change :

Net Expense from Share Issuance (XOMA) -

_Stock-Besed Compensation . .. 1,423,907
. Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:

Accounts Recelvable o e e (193,068) 8,621,080

202,488 1,068,937

Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets

“Accounts Payable and Provisions 1,381,447 (3,240,931

_ Lisenses Poyavle D) 9012
CDeferreqReene o TO#6sZ 10202200
Cash Generated from Operations 435848 5596033
Interest Paid cremsennsnsovnnime et L 2OLITO

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 4,676,455 ,5’797,2“
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Investing Activities:

in€

Note

12/31/2003

Purchases of Marketable Securities

(16,638,219)

B _Purchases of Property and Equrpment .

Additions to Intangibles

Net Cash Provided by/

(Used in) Investing Activities

_AProceeds from Drsposals of Property and Equrpment R

19 (9,289,278)

(12,075,587)
14.832,008.
(540,284

Financing Activities:

Proceeds from the Exercise of Options and
Convertrr'ble Bonds Granted to Related Parties -

interest Expense Due to the Issuance of

Convertrble Bonds )

Proceeds from the Issuangg_»of C_opvertible Bp__r_l_ds

Net of Proceeds and Payments from the Issuance

of Convertrble Bonds Granted to Related Parties

Purchases of Derryatrve Flnancra! lnstruments

Payment of Frnanced License Payable

Net Cash Provided by/

(Used in) Financing Activities

Proceeds from the Drsposal of Denvatrves -

8,954,730

& [186 847)
6 508,000

19 10,492,838

(2,043,202)

Effect of Exchange Rate Differenceson Cash

lncrease m Cash and Cash Equrvalents o

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Begmnlng

of the Period

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End

of the Period

R 273]_
) 5 878 742“

6,652,456

12190
) 5810374

842,082

12,531,198

6,652,456
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Business and
Organization

Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

MorphoSys AG (“the Company, MorphoSys CGroup”) is a biotechnology company using combi-
natorial biology in drug discovery with the principal objective of developing and commercially
exploiting new enabling technologies across a broad scientific spectrum. The Company was
founded in July 1992 as a German limited liability company. In June 1998, MorphoSys AG
was transformed into a German stock corporation. In March 1999, the Company went public
on Germany’s Neuer Markt, the stock exchange designated for high-growth enterprises. On
January 15, 2003, MorphoSys AG was admitted to the Prime Standard segment of the Frank-
furt Stock Exchange. ‘

Substantially all operations are located in Martinsried near Munich, Germany. The Company
has two wholly owned subsidiaries:

— MorphoSys U.S.A., Inc., which was incorporated in the United States on February 16, 2000.
The subsidiary’s purpose was to assist the Company in the sale and licensing of MorphoSys
.AG products. MorphoSys U.S.A., Inc. substantially ceased its operations in November 2002.

— MorphoSys IP GmbH, which was incorporated in Munich, Germany, on November 6, 2002.
The subsidiary’s purpose is to purchase, maintain and administer certain intangible assets
of the MorphoSys Group. The Company’s operations are physically located at the premises
of MorphoSys AG, and the operations of MorphoSys IP GmbH commenced on December
31, 2002.




General Information

Significant
Accounting Policies
a) Basis of Adoption

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004, were authorized
for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Management Board on February 13, 2005.
The Management Board is represented by: Dr. Simon E. Moroney (Chief Executive Officer)
and Dave Lemus (Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer).

The Supervisory Board is represented by: Dr. Gerald Méller (Chairman, Remuneration &

Nomination Committee), Prof. Dr. Jirgen Drews (Deputy Chairman, Remuneration & Nomina-
tion Committee), Dr. Daniel Camus (Audit Committee), Prof. Dr. Andreas Plickthun, Dr. Metin
Colpan Remuneration & Nomination Committee and Dr. Geoffrey N. Vernon (Audit Committee).

‘The registered offices are located at Lena-Christ-Str. 48 in 82152 Martinsried/Planegg,

Germany,

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with International

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) requires management to make certain estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented

in these consolidated financial statements and in preparing an opening IFRS balance sheet at °

January 1, 2003, for the purposes of transition to FRS.
The principal effects to this decision are discussed below.

IFRS 1 “First-Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards”

IFRS 1 has been applied before its effective date in the preparation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. As of December 31, 2004, the Group prepared its first consolidated fi-
nancial statements in accordance with IFRS. The accounting policies have been applied in pre-
paring the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 (the reporting period),
the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended De-
cember 31, 2003 (the transition period), and in the preparation of an opening IFRS balance
sheet January 1, 2003 (the date of transition), in accordance with 1FRS 1.47. Those assets and
liabilities not applicable for IFRS were eliminated from the opening IFRS balance sheet.

The Company made use of the following exemption following [FRS 1.13:

MorphoSys elected to use the initially measured fair value of certain licenses as deemed cost

in accordance with IFRS 1.13 b. It is expected that revaluating respective license agreements

had no significant impact on consolidated profits. Therefore, no adjustments were initiated for
the accounts as at December 31, 2004,
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IFRS 2 “Share-Based Payment™

IFRS 2 “Share-Based Payment” requires an expense to be recognized where the Group buys
goods or services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (“equity-settied transactions”),
or in exchange for other assets equivalent in value to a given number of shares or rights over

" shares (“cash-settled transactions”). The main impact of [FRS 2 on the Group is the expense

associated with employees’ and directors’ share options and other share-based incentives by
using an option-pricing model.

[FRS 2 is mandatory for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2005. However,
the Group resolved to adopt [FRS 2 early for the year ended December 31, 2004. In accord-
ance with [FRS 2.54, the Group has applied IFRS 2 to equity-settied awards granted on or
after January 1, 1999. '

In accordance with IFRS 2.56, options granted prior to January 1, 1999, are therefore not ex-
pensed. All information is nonetheless disclosed in line with 2.44 and 2.45. Further details
are given in notes 14 and 15.

IFRS 3 “Business Combination,” IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” and IAS 38 “Intangible
Assets”

[FRS 3 applies to accounting for business combinations for which the agreement date is on
or after March 31, 2004.

The useful economic life of intangible assets is now assessed at the level of individual asset
as having either a finite or indefinite life. The Company has identified no assets with indefi-
nite life. Intangible assets with a finite life have been amortized over its useful life. Amortiza-
tion periods and methods for intangible assets with finite useful economic lives are reviewed
annually or earlier where an indicator of impairment exists.

IAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” (revised 2004)
The Group elected to adopt 1AS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates early”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Early adoption of other International Financial Reporting Standards

In addition to the standards referred to above, the Group has resolved.to adopt the following
revised standards early during the year; comparative figures have been amended as required:
~ IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (amended 2004);

— TAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (revised 2004);
~ [AS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date (amended 2004);

-~ TAS 17 Leases {amended 2004);

= 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures (revised 2004);

- IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (amended 2004);

— [AS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation (revised 2004);

— [AS 33 Earnings per Share (revised 2003 and amended 2004) and

— 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (revised 2004).

1AS 38 “Intangible Assets” supersedes TAS 38 (issued in 1998) and will be applied for intan-
gible assets acquired or obtained for which the agreement date is after March 31, 2004, in

_ connection with the application of IFRS 3 and [AS 36 as revised in 2004. For all intangible

assets acquired or obtained before March 31, 2004, 1AS 38 (issued in 1998) is applied.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the International Accounting
Standards Board, London (IASB) in consideration of interpretations of the Standing
Interpretations Committee (SIC) and the [nternational Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC).

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2004,
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries {together referred to as the “Group”).

In preparing its opening IFRS balance sheet, the Group has adjusted certain amounts report-
ed previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. An explanation
of how the transition from U.S. GAAP to IFRS has affected the Group’s financial position and
financial performance is set out in the following tables and notes accompanying the tables.

The financial statements are presented in euros unless otherwise stated. They are prepared
on the historical cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their
fair value: derivative financial instruments, available-for-sale investments and certain licenses
(2004: Cambridge Antibody Technology PLC and XOMA Ireland Limited).

IAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements” shall be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2005. The Company decided to adopt IAS 27 for all financial
statements beginning January 1, 2003. The accounting policies have been applied consistent-
ly by Group entities following IAS 27.28.

7T
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72 Reconciliation of Equity in thousands of €

Caption

Cash and Cash EQUIVaIentS e

Marketable Securities

Accounts Receivable

Other Receivables, Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Total Assets

Current and Non-Current Liabilities

Stockholders’ Equit_y‘ e
Additional Paid-In Capital

Accumulated Other Comprehensiv

Accumulated Deficit

Liabitities and Stockholders’ Equity
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01/01/2003 12/31/2003

Adjustment from Adjustment from
U.S. GAAP Adjustment IFRS U.S. GAAP prior years current year . IFRS

B 17/ AL

~ 149,888) 3.289)  (53177)  (54,036) (3,289) 1,017 (56,308)

42,393 (3,286) 39,107 45,759 (3,286) 406 42,879
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ca) Software, Net

cb) Patents, Net

cc) Other Assets,
Additicnal Paid-In
Capital

cd) Accumulated
Other Comprehensive
Income/{Loss)

NOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Under U.S. GAAP, capitalized software with its net values of € 571,064 at January 1, 2003, and
€ (165,572) at December 31, 2003, was part of property and equipment. Under [FRS, software
is separated on the consolidated balance sheet and therefore both amounts were reclassified.

Under U.S. GAAP, certain expenses (i.e. costs associated with obtaining and maintaining
one’s own patent) are capitalized as patents and amortized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful economic lives. Under IFRS, all expenses relating thereto have to be record-
ed in the statement of operations after first assignaﬁon of the patent.

In accordance with TAS 38.7, IAS 38.60 and IAS 38.54 (c), issued in 1998, costs for protecting
granted patents from infringement of € 5,698 in 2003 (January 1, 2003: € 4,041,711) had to
be reclassified as patent expenses which decreased the initial value of a certain patent. Depre-
ciation for this patent had to be decreased by € 404,570 in 2003 (January 1, 2003: € 742,704).
Accordingly, patents were adjusted with the net amount of € (3,299,007 as of January 1, 2003,
and the net amortization of € 398,872 as of December 31, 2003.

Under U.S. GAAP, the nominal value of € 1.00 for each bond was shown as liability. The fair
value of the bond was expensed over the vesting period of one year and posted against equity.

Under IFRS, the equity portion of the bond has to be separated and presented as additional
paid-in capital in accordance with IAS 32.28. The equity component is deducted from the fair
value of the bond. The remaining value is recognized as stock-based compensation. Therefore,

. deferred interest expense of € 13,054 as of January 1, 2003, and € 7,029 as of December 31,

2003, had to be reclassified as other assets.

Under U.S. GAAP and IFRS, unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are
recorded as a component of stockholders’ equity. Unrealized losses are only recorded in the
statement of operations, when the unrealized loss is deemed to be other than temporary (im-
pairment). Under [FRS, unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities can either
be recorded in the statement of operations or as a component of equity. Accordingly,' impairment
charges from January 2003 to June 2003 of € 0.8 million were recognized in June 2003 and
recognized as impairment of marketable securities in the statement of operations. Under U.S.
GAAP, the amount recorded as impairment in prior periods may not be reversed, even if the
reasons for the impairment are no longer applicable.

Under [FRS and [AS 39.70, the amount recorded as impairment in prior periods should be
reversed to the extent that the fair value of the investment has increased and if the increase
in fair value can be objectively related to an event occurring after the loss was recognized.
Therefore, the impairment of marketable securities was adjusted by € 616,999 in the state-
ment of operations at December 31, 2003,
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Reconciliation of Loss Reported for 2003 (in thousands of €):

Caption U.S. GAAP " Adjustment IFRS

Revenues 15,308 - 15,308

Research and Deve\opment cbh 8,998 - 8,998

Seles, General and Administratie 7601 @ 8,998
Stock—BasedCompensat}on ......... SO U O USRS CC ....................... 2175 ...................... (11) e 2]64
{merestmco R e T 212 e 212
Interest Bxpense % e .1 8¢
impairment of Marketable Securities o o 7sa e g7
Otmer ncome,Net e B 734,
Total Loss before Taxes a4 07 3,131

d) Basis of Consolidation

e) Foreign Currency

ea) Foreign Currency
Transactions

eb) Financial Statements
of Foreign Operations

Intra-Group balances and transactions and any unrealized gains arising from intra-Group trans-

actions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements following 1AS 27.24.
Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains.

1AS 21 (*The Effects of Changes in Fofeign Exchange Rates”) prescribes how to include foreign
currency transactions and how to translate financial statements.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the

. date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at

the balance sheet date are translated into euros at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that
date following 1AS 21.23a. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognized
in the income statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curren-
cies that are stated at fair value are translated into euros at foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates the values were determined following [AS 21.23c.

The Group’s foreign operations for perpetuation of MorphoSys U.S.A., Inc. are not considered

an integral part of the Company’s operations. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are-translated into euros at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date
following TAS 21.44. The expenses of foreign operations are translated into euros at the aver-

age exchange rate for the year. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recog-
nized directly in equity. '

Any differences that have arisen since January 1, 2003, the date of transition to IFRS, are
presented as a separate component of equity.

7
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fy Interest

g) Derivative Financial
Instruments

h) Cash and Cash
Equivalents

i) Investments

NOTES TQ THE CONSOULIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MorphoSys uses interest rates to calculate fair values and discount certain lability. For stock-
based compensation calculation, MorphoSys uses the interest rate of a German government
bond with duration of two years at grant date.

To discount certain obligation in connection with the settlement agreement with CAT, the
Company uses a 13% interest rate to discount its liability.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange
rate risks. In accordance with TAS 39.9, all derivative financial instruments are held for trad-
ing and recognized initially at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivative financial instru-
ments are stated at fair value, which is their quoted market price at the balance sheet date.
Since the derivatives were not tested for hedge abcounting, any resulting gain or loss is recog-
nized in the income statement. According to the Company’s foreign currency hedging policy,
receivables which are definite and collectable within a twelve-month period will be hedged.

Following IFRS 1.28, all derivatives are stated with their fair values. Any resultant gain or
loss is recognized in the income statement.

The Company considers all cash at bank, in hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. The Company invests its
cash in deposits with two major German financial institutions, mainly HypoVereinsbank
Munich and Deutsche Bank AG.

All investments are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given
and including acquisition charges associated with the investment.

The Company accounts for its investments in debt and equity securities in accordance with .

- IAS 39. Management determines the proper classifications of investments at the time of pur-

chase and re-evaluates such designations as of each balance sheet date. At December 31,
2004, and at December 31, 2003, the investments held by the Group have been classified as
available for sale. These investments are recognized or derecognized by the Group on the
date it commits to purchase or sell the investments. Available-for-sale investments are stated
at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss reported directly in the revaluation reserve with-
in equity (IAS 39.55 b). After initial recognition, investments which are classified as available
for sale are measured at fair value. Gains or losses on available-for-sale investments are rec-
ognized as a separate component of equity until the investment is sold, collected or otherwise
disposed of, or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumula-
tive loss is reported in the income statement.
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The Company considers a decline in the fair value of available-for-sale investments which is
longer than six months in duration to be deemed other than temporary unless specific facts
and circumstances indicate otherwise. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value increases, the
impairment loss is reversed, with the amount of reversal included in net profit or loss for the
period.

j) Accounts Receivable  Accounts receivable are stated at their cost less any allowance for doubtful accounts (see
below) and impairment losses (see accounting policy m).

The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on the management’s assessment of the col-
lectibility of specific customer accounts and the aging of the accounts receivable. If there is a
deterioration of a major customer’s creditworthiness or actual defaults are higher than the
historical experience, the management’s estimates of the recoverability of amounts due the
Company could be adversely affected. Based on managemént assessment, allowances in the
amount of € 36,456 for December 31, 2004, and € 0 for December 31, 2003, were recognized.
The Company does not require collateral from customers for accounts receivable.

k) Property and  Property and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation (see note 7) and
Equipment  impairment losses (see accounting policy m). Replacements and improvements are capital-

" ized while general repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. Assets are
depreciated over their expected useful lives, which have been estimated to be three to ten
years using the straight-line method. Leasehold improvements are deprecviated over the esti-
mated useful lives of the assets or the related lease term, whichever is shorter.

I) Intangible Assets  Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development costs were expensed as incurred in
ia) Research and  accordance with 1AS 38.5 and JAS 38.11-38.23.
Development

Ib) Patent Costs  Patents obtained by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortization (see below)
and impairment losses {see accounting policy m). Capitalized costs principally relate to the
costs of legal counsel. Patent costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of
their estimated useful life (10 years) or the remaining patent term. Amortization commences
at the time the patent is issued. The Company’s patents covering its proprietary HuCAL®
technology were granted in Australia in October 2000, in the United States of America in
October 2001 and in Europe in June 2002. Further patent applications are pending in Canada
and Japan.
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Ic} License Rights

Id) Software

le} Subsequent
Expenditure

m) Impairment

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company acquired license rights by making upfront licensing payments, annual mainte-
nance fees and sublicensing payments to third parties. The Company amortizes upfront licens-
ing payments on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the acquired license
{10 years). The amortization period and method is reviewed at each balance sheet date (IAS
38.104). Annual maintenance fees are amortized over the term of each annual agreement.
Sublicensing payments are amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the contract or
the estimated useful life of the collaboration for those contracts without a stipulated term.

Software is stated at cost less accumulated amortization (see below) and impairment losses
(see accounting policy m). Amortization is charged to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of 3 years. Software is amortized from the date it is
available for use.

Subsequent expenditure on capitalized intangible assets is capitalized Only when it increases
the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Management evaluates the carrying value of the Group's assets for potential impairment at
each balance sheet date or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. If any indication of impairment exists,
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount of an asset. Impairment losses are rec-
ognized in the income statement..

The recoverable amount of the Group's receivables is calculated as the present value of
expected future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate inherent in the
asset. Receivables with a short duration are not discounted.

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate independent
cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. '




n) Trade and Other
Payables

0) Convertible Bonds

p) Revenue Recognition
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An impairment loss in respect of a receivable is reversed if the subsequent increase in the
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognized. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the car-
rying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized.

Trade and other payables are stated at their repayment amounts. Payables with repayment
dates exceeding one year are discounted to their net present values.

The Company issued convertible bonds to the Supervisory Board, Management Board and
employees of the Company. In accordance with 1AS 32.28, the equity portion of the bond has
to be separatedband presented'as additional paid-in capital. The equity component is deducted
from the fair value of the bond. The remaining value is recognized as stock-based compensa-
tion. The Company applies the provisions of IFRS 2 “Share-Based Payment” for all convertible
bonds granted to Supervisory Board, Management Board and employees of the Company.

The Company’s revenues include technology access fees; fees earned from research and
development collaboration agreements predominantly with companies based in the United
States.

Revenue related to non-refundable technology access fees, subscription fees and license fees
are deferred and recognized on a straight-line basis over the relevant periods of the agree-
ment, generally the research term or the estimated useful life of the collaboration for those
contracts without a stipulated term unless a more accurate means of recognizing revenue is
available. Research and development collaboration service fees are recognized in the period
that the services are provided. Milestone revenues are recognized upon achievement of cer-
tain criteria.

Investment grants from governmental agencies for the support of specific research and devel-
opment projects for which cash has been received are recorded as revenue to the extent the
related expenses have been incurred: under the terms of the investment grants, the govern-
mental agencies generally have the right to audit the use of the payments received by the
Company. h
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q) Expenses
qaj Stock-Based
Compensation

gb) Operating
Lease Payments

r) Interest Income

s) Interest Expense

t) Income Taxes

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with IAS 18.21, 18.25 and IAS 20.18, revenue arrangements with multiple deliv-
erables the total consideration will be allocated among the separately identifiable components
based on their respective fair values under application of 1AS 18.20, and the applicable reve-
nue recognition criteria will be considered separately for each of the separate components.

" Deferred revenue represents revenues received but not yet earned per the terms of the con-

tracts. Grant revenue in 2004 amounted to € 84,074 (2003: € 67,251).

The Company applies the provisions of IFRS 2 “Share-Based Payment” which requires the
Company to record the estimated fair value for stock options and other awards at the meas-
urement date as compensation expense over the period in which the employees render the
services associated with the award.

Payments made under operating leases are recognized in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

Interest income is recognized in the income statement as it occurs, taking into account the
effective yield on the asset.

Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
is recognized in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

. Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary

differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting pur-
poses and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is
based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantialiy enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits wiil be available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.
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Research

Reagent Business
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Segment Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in providing products or
services and that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other segments.

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and geographical seg-
ments. The primary format, business segments, is based on the Group’s management and
internal reporting structure. Segment results and assets include items directly attributable to
a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

The Group consists of the following main business segments:

MorphoSys possesses one of the leading technologies in the generation of human antibody
therapeutics and bespoke antibody research projects. The Company makes use of its technology
in collaborations with internationally renowned pharmaceutical and biotech companies.

The reagent business leverages MorphoSys’s core technological capabilities in the design and
manufacture of antibodies for research purposes. It commercializes HuCAL® technology focus-
ing on the custom generation of research antibodies for partners on an individual basts.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based
on the geographical location of the customers. Segment assets are based on the geographical
location of the assets.
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Partnered Target
Research

Reagent
Business

Unallocated

2003

Consolidated

Revenues 21,094 15,276 784 -3z - - 21,978 15,308
6,941 : (1,43¢) CEse0l | sal (3,085
_ ' '_._ _____________ - 286 T
S i SRR
Impalrment of
Marketable Securities T LTl T e T T “ T 187,
Other Income, Net Ll e - S 8o7) . 734
Foreign Income
Tax Expense. i S T - -
Total Proflt/(Loss) - - - - - - 282 (3,131)
Accounts Receivable 2,065 2,050 . 240 62 T T 2,305 jzt?* 2
Property and
Equipment, Net 1,090 938 DL ... 318 . 2381 1.0z
Sofwere Net @0 2% 8 A 9. .28 405
Total Segment Assets 3,365 3,287 320 51305 39,272 55796 42,879
D_efef(?d Revenue 9,815 - 10321 43 ;&7 ‘‘‘‘‘‘ - - 9,858 10,358
Total Segment Liabilities 9815 10,321 a3y ese0 5218 Tleats 15,576
Capital Expenditure 728 283 777 257 - - 1,605 540
Depreciation ke 400 B R e e 0

Intangibles are included in unallocated segment assets and not split since they are the basis
for both segments. Therefore, patents and license fees in the net amount of € 12.5 million
remain unallocated.

The following table shows the split of the Company’s consolidated sales by geographical markets:

in 000's €

Germany

Other i ) - 71

Total 21,978 15,308

Substantially, al] assets were located in Germany.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents 83

in 000's € 2003
G e e e
Bank Balences 12,281 205
TOIM DODOSHS et etreses e 250 647
Cash and Cash Equivalents L 12,531 6,652_
See note 1h.
Investments
Investments consist of the following as of December 31, 2004 and 2003:
Gross = = Realized
" Unrealized C " Holding Market
in 000's € Maturity © Cost Holding Gains " Losses Losses Vaiue
- 12/31/2004 o )
HVB Debentures 08 008 T T
DB Money Market Funds o dally 820 O T D L5
24,320 624 - - 24,944
24,698
12/31/2003 _
HVBBUrO BONd e e 0e/07/201 LB ] SR Vo 8,724
HVB Debentures . ....12/D6/2009 L2789 o ' (68) 2,723
DB Money Market Funds . .....uday 1088 A T ] T 10,426
16,764 245 - (136) 16,873
RSO0 BN e 384
16,509

The net unrealized holding gains of € 623,840 for the year ended December 31, 2004, and
€ 244,930 for the year ended December 31, 2003, were recorded as a separate component
of stockholders’ equity {revaluation reserve). In 2004, the Group has recorded gains of

€ 109,748 in the income statement on the sale of investments, which had previously been
recognized in equity (2003: € 198,463).
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Under IAS 39, both investments are designated as available for sale and are reported at fair
value on the Company’s balance sheet. Under the Company’s accounting policy, marketable
securities are presumed to be impaired if their fair value is less than their cost basis for more
than six months, unless specific facts and circumstances indicate otherwise. If the Company
deems these investments further impaired at the énd of any other period, an additional impair-
ment may occur. During 2003/2004, MorphoSys’s HypoVereinsbank investments had traded
below their cost hasis for more than six months and therefore the Company deemed that an
impairment of these investments had occurred. Accordingly, impairment charges from January
2003 to June 2003 of € 753,768 were recognized in June 2003 and recognized as impairment
of marketable securities in the statement of operations. Since June 30, 2003, the two impaired
investments have recovered and at December 31, 2003, the two investments had regained

€ 616,999 in market value. This increase in market value was treated as revérsal of the im-
pairment losses previously recognized in the statement of operations. Therefore, an impair-
ment loss of € 136,768 was recognized in the income statement for the financial year 2003.
In January and February 2004,Morph08ys sold both investments.

For further details of restricted cash items and investments, see note 10.

Accounts Receivable

All accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing and are generally due on a 30- to 45-day.

© term. On December 31, 2004 and 2003, accounts receivable included unbilled amounts of

approximately € 116,037 and € 119,360 respectively.

Qther Receivables

According to the Company’s hedging policy, definite foreign currency receivables which are
collectable within a twelve-month period are hedged and shown as other receivables with its
fair values. Starting 2003, MorphoSys entered into foreign currency options and forward con-
tracts to hedge foreign exchange exposure related to U.S. dollar accounts receivable.

At-December 31, 2004, options contracts in the notional amount of € 3,846,155 (December
31, 2003: € 4,690,583) or US$ 5,000,000 (December 31, 2003: US$ 5,250,000) were out-
standing, which mature in January 2005. The fair market value at December 31, 2004, was
€ 180,190 (December 31, 2003: € 479,929} and recorded in other receivables on the balance
sheet and classified as held for trading. Changes in fair value were recognized as other income.
At December 31, 2004, the contract premium for derivatives entered into in February 2004
amounted to € 138,000 (2003: € 164,000).
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In June 2004, MorphoSys AG entered into foreign currency forward contracts with the notional
amount of US$ 3.8 million, The fair maiket value at December 31, 2004 was € 211,845 (Decem-,
ber 31, 2003: € 0) and recorded as other recéivables. Changes in fair value were recognized
as other income. '

In December 2004, the Company received cash in the amount of US$ 1.25 million for the re-
spective amount hedged by a forward contract due on January 03, 2005. Therefore, the Com-
pany entered into a foreign currency swap. The swap was included in the fair market value
of foreign currency forward contracts as of December 31, 2004. For the period ending at
December 31, 2004, unrealized gains amounted to € 233,459 and included in total foreign
exchange losses of € 105,499 (2003: gains of € 315,929).

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
Prepaid expenses mainly include prepaid sublicense fees in the amount of € 0.1 million at De-

cember 31, 2004 and 2003, and other prepayments in the amount of € 0.3 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2004 (2003: € 0.2 million).

Property and Equipment, Net

Office and
Laboratory Furniture and

in. 000’s € : Equipment Fixtures Total
08 e e et e e e e
o1/01/2004 3,605 1,267 4,872
Additions a7 781505
Disposals g gy
273172006 T T 4986 1345 6,331
Accumulated Depreciaion
ot/01/2004 a3 s92 3370
Depreciation Charge for the Year A 523 ) 34 657
Disposals o S - AT -
v2/31/2006 T ago 706 4,000

Carrying AMOUNt
01/01/2004 o 827 675 1,502
12/31/2004 ] 1,712 619 2,331
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The depreciation charge is included in the following line items of the statement of operations:

in 000’s € 2003
Research and Development . 493 _________________ 408
S e e 168 137,
657 545
For more detailed information, see Appendix 1.
intangible Assets, Net
in 000’s € Patents License Fees Software Total
8 e e e e e ]
01/01/2004 3,725 12,140 1,185 17,050
AQAIIONS e eeeeeeneeee e T 8 222
12/31/2004 3,766 12,140 1,366 17,272
Accumulated Amortization e e e
01/01/2004 522 1,241 780 2,543
Amortization for the Year .. A% nezs 298 . ....1.980,
12/31/2004 976 2,469 1,078 4,523
Ty AT O e e e e
01/01/2004 - 3,203 10,899 405 14,507
12/31/2004 2,790 9,671 288 12,749




SCA Ventures, Inc., U.S.A,

Biosite Diagnostics,
Inc., U.S.A.

Genentech, Inc., U.S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMERNTS

The Company has entered into the following license agreements covering certain patented
technology which are capitalized {non-capitalized license agreements have not been disclosed
in detail): ‘

In December 1999, the Company concluded a non-exclusive product-derived license agreement
with SCA Ventures, Inc.,, U.S.A., in which the Company obtained a non-exclusive license from
SCA Ventures in order to design, discover, develop, make, use, sell, offer for sale and import
HuCAL®-derived products under SCA Ventures patent rights in single-chain antibodies. The
Company may use SCA Ventures's licensed technologies for the research and discovery of
novel therapeutic agents and targets, and may sublicense the technology to its commercial part-
ners. The Company may terminate this agreement for any reason upon 6 months’ prior writ-
ten notice to SCA Ventures. The Company pays an upfront license fee, annual maintenance

and transfer fees.

On' De¢ember 31, 2004,~the license had a refnaim’ng amortization period of 5 years.

In January 2000, the Company signed a collaboration agreement with Biosite Diagnostics, Inc.,
under which the Company receives a royalty-bearing, non-exclusive, worldwide license to
patents owned by Biosite and XOMA Corporation covering certain technologies relating to the
display and screening of multi-chain antibodies. The Company may use the licensed technologies
for research and discovery of novel therapeutic agents and targets, and may sublicense the
technology to its commercial partners. Unless terminated earlier, the term of this agreement
shall be the later of expiration of the parties’ respective obligations to pay royalties or the
expiration of the last patent right licensed by one party to the other. The Company pays an
upfront technology access fee, in addition to annual maintenance and transfer fees.

On December 31, 2004, the license had a remaining amortization period of 5 years,

In May 2000, the Company concluded a license agreement with Genentech, Inc., granting the
Company rights under Genentech patents relating to monovalent phage display screening tech-
nology. The Company may use the licensed technologies for research and discovery of novel
therapeutic agents and targets, and may sublicense the technology to its commercial partners.
The Company pays an upfront techﬁology access fee, in addition to annual maintenance and
transfer fees.

On December 31, 2004, the license had a remaining amortization period of 6 years.




88

@

XOMA ireland Limited

Cambridge Antibody
Technalogy PLC,
Cambridge, U.K.

10

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

In February 2002, the Company concluded a cross-licensing agreement for antibody-related
technologies with XOMA Ireland Ltd. Pursuant to the agreement, MorphoSys paid € 1.1 mil-
lion to XOMA with a second payment of € 4.6 million due September 2002. At the Company’s
option, the second installment could be paid in cash or with new shares of the Company’s
common stock equivalent to € 5.5 million. The Company recorded € 2.5 million as a charge
to research and development expenses in the year 2002. The remaining € 3.2 million repre-
sents the value of the license received and has been capitalized as an intangible asset and
will be amortized over its expected useful life of 10 years.

In October 2002, the Company exercised the option to pay the second installment with 363,466
new shares of its common stock, which was determined with reference to the market price
of the Company’s common stock at the time of the notice. The Company recorded a charge to
interest expense related to this exercise of the option at the time the shares were issued in
May 2003, which equaled € 0.7 million.

On December 31, 2004, the license had a remaining amortization period of 8 years.

In December 2002 and effective July 2003, the Company entered into a licensing and settle-
ment agreement with CAT. The settlement agreement covers MorphoSys's past, present and
future use, the commercialization of all versions of its HuCAL® libraries, and all patents in
the ongeing disputes between the two companies. This includes the litigation in the United
States regarding CAT’s Grifiths, McCafferty, Winterll and Winter/Lerner/Huse patents as well
as oppositions launched by MorphoSys at the European Patent Office against CAT's Winter 11
and McCafferty patents.

On December 31, 2004, the license had a remaining amortization period of 8 years.

For further information, see Appendix 1.

Other Assets

The Company has classified as restricted cash certain cash and cash equivalents and marketable
securities in other assets that are not available for use in its operations. At December 31, 2004
and 2003, the Company had commitments of € 245,500 and € 364,000 for guarantees issued
and € 59,778 and € 157,200 respectively for convertible bonds issued to employees. € 49,914
for convertible bonds issued to employees were outstanding at December 31, 2004.
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NOTES YO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accounts Payable

Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled within 30 days. License
payables are partly settled within 30 days, License payables which are expected to be set-
tled after more than 12 months are discounted to their net present value with an interest
rate of 13%. '

The residual maturity of liabilities is listed in the tabie below:

12/31/2003
ASCOUNES PBYADIE e e 335404 258,732
Aorved Bxpenses L L E58BME 2007887
Other Liabilities 914432 465,679
OfwhichTaxes T gaeg;s 172,721
Of which Related to Social Security 156,897 117,933
Total 3,838,144 2,732,293

- Accounts payable include accruals, which mainly contain accrued expenses for personnel pay-
- ~ments of € 1.0 millien-{2003;-€ 0.9 million}. Expenses. for cutstanding invoices include €0.9

million mainly for license compensation {2003: € 0.5 million), € 0.1 million for Supervisary
Board members’ compensation (2003: € 0.1 million), € 0.0 million for audit fees and costs relat-
ed there to (2003: € 0.1 million) and € 0.1 million for legal services (2003: € 0.1 million).

Provisions

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had provisions of € 600,607 and €.0 respec-
tively. ‘
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Common Stock

Authorized Capital

Conditional Capital

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

Stockholders’ Equity

On December 31, 2004, the common stock of the Company was € 16,316,556. This represent-
ed an increase of € 1,612,560 compared to the December 31, 2003, balance of € 14,703,996.
Each share of common stock is entitled to one vote. The increase arose mainly as a result of
the issuance of the conversion of bonds issued to Novartis on May 19, 2004. The bond was
converted into 490,133 MorphoSys shares on June 15, 2004. Through conversion and exercise

of 47,387 convertible bonds and options issued to employees, common stock increased by an

additional € 142,161 in 2004 In accordance with § 200 AktG, a contingent capital increase
becomes effective with the issuance of new shares. At January 27, 2005, the application of
the capital increase has not been filed. The registration has declaratory effect.

The increase of € 2,854,878 during the year ended December 31, 2003, arose as a result of
the issuance of 363,466 shares to XOMA for a capital increase against contribution in kind,
which was registered on May 6, 2003, in the commercial register and the issuance of 588,160
shares to CAT for a capital increase against contribution in kind, which was registered on
August 26, 2003, in the commercial register.

Treasury shares totaling € 11,033 (30,062 shares) at December 31, 2004, compared to € 21,934
(59,762 shares) at December 31, 2003, were subtracted from the Company’s common stock.

On May 11, 2004, the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting authorized the Company to increase
Authorized Capital [ by 823,424 shares to create a maximum of 1,960,533 new shares of
Authorized Capital I (December 31, 2003: 1,137,109 shares). Also approved was an increase to
Authorized Capital 1l of 58,816 shares to create a maximum of 490,133 new shares of
Authorized Capital I (December 31, 2003: 431,317 shares).

Unused Authorized Capital 1 equaled 1, %O 533 and 1,137,109 shares at December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively. Unused Authorized Capital Il equaled to 490,133 and 431,317 shares
at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. .

In 2004, 2,880 shares were raised from Conditional Capital I through exercise of the same
number of options by employees, increasing the subscribed capital by € 8,640. Furthermore,
17,385 shares were raised from Conditional Capital II through exercise of the same number of
options by employees, increasing the subscribed capital by € 52,155, and 27,122 shares were
raised from Conditional Capital IV through exercise of the same number of convertible bonds
by employees, increasing the subscribed capital by € 81, 366. At December 31, 2004, the sub-
scription notes for options and convertible bonds exercised were not signed. As of the end of
January 2005 the application for the registration of the conditional share capital increase has
not been filed.




Dividends

Additional Paid-in Capital

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On May 16, 2003, the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting authorized the Company to create g1
additional shares for Conditional Capital HI, IV and V in the maximum amount of 1,275,000,
450,269 and 111,447 shares respectively.

On May 11, 2004, the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting authorized the Company to create an
additional 58,816 shares for Conditional Capital V to create a maximum amount of € 510,789
(170,263 shares).

On May 19, 2004, MorphoSys issued a convertible bond (callable commeon shares) split into
seven partial debentures to Novartis, convertible into a total of 490,133 shares. On June 15,
2004, Novartis converted all debentures into 490,133 common shares from the Company’s
Conditional Capital IIL

Dividends may only be declared and paid from the accumulated retained earnings (after deduc-
tion of certain reserves) shown in the Company’s annual German statutory accounts. Such
amounts differ from the total of additional paid-in capital and accumulated deficit as shown
in the accompanying consolidated financial statements as a result of the adjustments made
to present the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS. As of December 31,
2004 and 2003, the Company's German statutory accounts reflected no accumulated earn-
ings availahle for distribution and accordingly, the Company’s ability to pay dividends would
depend upon the future earnings of the Company:.

On December 31, 2004, additional paid-in capital amounted to € 78,646,377 (December 31,
2003: € 68,632,990). The increase of € 10.0 million is due to stock-based compensation provi
sions in the amount of € 1,431,313, € 7,357,748 from Novartis’s capital increase through the

“grant of callable common shares in May 2004 and € 1,224,326 through the exercise of

options and convertible bonds in the year 2004.

In 2003, the additional paid-in capital was increased by € 9.4 million resulting from stock-
based compensation provisions in the amount of € 2,181,277 including the equity component
of convertible bonds, € 3,110,896 as a result of the XOMA share issuance, and € 4,143,569 as
a result of the CAT share issuance.
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Convertible Bonds

At the Company’s Annual Shareholders’ Mesting in July 2002, the Company was authorized
until June 30, 2006, to issue up to 300,000 non-interest-bearing convertible bonds with a
par/nominal value of € 1.00 each to employees and members of the Board of Management of
the Company and its affiliates. The preemptive rights of the stockholders were excluded. On
May 16, 2003, the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting authorized the Company to grant an addi-
tional 150,269 shares.

On January 15, 2002, pursuant to a Management Board decision, the Company issued 91,500
convertible bonds to the Management Board and employees of the Company.

The convertible bonds cannot be transferred or encumbered other than by inheritance/death.
In the event of disability to work, the Board of Management can allow the transfer with good
cause.

The conversion rights may only be exercised if termination of the employment agreement
with the owner of the convertible bonds has not been declared at the time of exercise and a
mutual termination agreement has not been entered into. In the event of non-exercise of the
conversion rights, beneficiaries are refunded amounts paid to acquire the convertible bonds
(i.e., € 1.00 per bond/share).

The beneficiaries may exercise the conversion rights only after the expiration of a waiting
period of one year from the grant date. Each convertible bond with a nominal value of € 1.00
allows the exchange into one share of ordinary no-par value common stock of the Company
against payment of the exchange price. The convertible bonds cannot be exercised beyond
December 31, 2004.

The exchange price for the convertible bonds issued on January 15, 2002, was € 57.56, repre-
senting the average closing price of a share of the Company in the final XETRA auction at the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange during the last five trading days preceding the resolution of the
Board of Management on the issuance of the convertible bonds.

The exercise of the conversion rights is only possible if the stock exchange price on at least
one day during the lifetime of the convertible bonds has amounted to € 63.31, or 110% of the
average stock exchange price in the final XETRA auction at the Frankfurt Stock Exchange
during the five trading days prior to the resolution of the Board of Management on the issu-
ance of the convertible bonds.
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Shares, which are issued by virtue of the conversion rights, may participate in the profits of
the Company at the first time in the business year for which no stockholders’ resolution on
the distribution of profits has been passed at the time of the issuance.

At December 31, 2004, all convertible bonds granted in 2002 expired. The nominal value of
€ 1.00 each was paid back to respective related parties.

In the year 2003, additional grants to employees were made under the 2002 Plan, with terms
identical to the 2002 stock convertible bonds grants. 70,700, 8,500 and 14,000 convertible
bonds were granted on April 1, 2003, May 17, 2003 and July 1, 2003, respectively to board
members, executive board members and employees of MorphoSys AG. The exercise prices for
the convertible bonds were € 11.69, € 10.00 and € 10.88 respectively. In the year 2004,
27,1227 bonds of the 2003 grant were converted into shares of ordinary no-par value common
stock with the same amount by employees of the Company.

In the year 2004, an additional grant to board members and employees was made under the
2002 Plan, with terms identical to the 2002 stock convertible bonds grants. On December 9,
2004, 49,914 convertible bonds were granted to hoard members and employees of MorphoSys
AG. Theexercise price for the convertihle bonds is € 38.40.

A summary of the activity under the Company’s employee incentive convertible bonds plan
for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, is represented as follows:

Weighted-

Convertible Average

Bonds- Price in €

Outstanding at 01/01/2003 74,800 57.56
B e et e ee oo 93200 .. 1
Forfeted . e A16200) 437
Outstanding at 12/31/2003 151800 30.68
Outstanding at 01/01,/2004 151,800 30.68
Granted 49914 \38,40
LBEOSRS 2722169
LFOEHEY 282003566
CEpited (50,700) 57.56

Qutstanding at 12/31/2004 99,692 24.83
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Range of
Exercise Prices

€ 10.00—€ 38.10

€3810-€3840

. NOTES YO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Convertible bonds exercisable at December 31, 2004 and 2003, amounted to 49,778 and
63,400 shares respectively. The weighted-average exercise prices of convertible bonds exer-
cisable were € 11.22 and € 57.56 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Furthermore,
the weighted-average fair value of bonds granted during 2004 and 2003 is estimated to be

€ 16.52 and € 5.04 respectively.

The nominal value of 10,000 forfeited convertible bonds was not reimbursed to respective
related parties by he balance sheet date.

The following table presents weighted-average price and information about contractual life for
significant convertible’s groups outstanding at December 31, 2004:

Remaining Weighted- Weighted-

Number Contractual Life ) Average Number Average

Qutstanding (in Years) Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price

________________ 49,778 1.00 Eenazz 7 49,778 €11.22
99,692 49,778

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with the provisions of
IFRS 2 and 1AS 32.28. The equity portion of the bond has to be separated and presented as
additional paid-in capital. The equity compoﬁént is deducted from the fair value of the bond.
The remaining value is récognized as stock-based compensation. Compensaﬁon expense record-
ed in 2004 and 2003 in connection with convertible bonds was € 184,327 and € 298,985
respectively. The fair value of the convertible bonds issued in 2004 was calculated using the
Black-Scholes option pricing medel using the following assumptions: risk-free interest rate of
2.74%; dividend yield of 0%; 78% expected volatility and an expected life of 2.0 years.

Valuation models require the input-of highly subjective assumptions. Because changes in the
subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in the management’s
opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair
value of its employee stock options. '
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1998 Employee Stock
Option Program

1999 Employee Stock
Option Program

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Stock Options , 95

Effective June 15, 1998, the Company introduced an incentive stock option plan (“1998 Plan”)
which provides for the grant of options to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock to
key employees and members of the Company’s Management Board. The 1998kPlan authorized
the grant of options to personnel for 96,075 shares of the Company’s common stock in the form
of 45,450 registered warrants each equal to one share of common stock and 50,625 shares
deliverable upon exercise of non-warrant option rights. The Company reserved 55,350 com-
mon shares plus 68,650 shares of treasury stock for stock options. All option rights granted
under this 1998 Plan havea 10-year term.

Each warrant entitles the holder to receive one share. Upon exercise of a warrant, the exercise
price, which equals the fair value of the shares on the date of grant, is due and payable. The
holder of warrants can exercise up to the full amount of warrants 6 months after the date of
grant. The holder of warrants also has the right to sell them. The warrants or shares obtained
upon exercise are vested annually oﬁ a graded basis over three years.

The non-warrant option rights are granted by way of an option agreement by the Company to
the employee. For all grants commencing after June 1998, a two-year holding period is required
after the date of grant, after which the holder of non-warrant option rights can exercise up to
the amount of vested option rights. -

For the full year 2004, 32,580 options from the 1998 Plan were exercised.

Effective July 21, 1999, the Company amended the incentive stock option plan (“1999 Plan”)
authorizing the additional grant of options to employees for up to 300,250 shares, arising
from conditional capital, and deliverable upon exercise of non-warrant option rights. On
October 31, 1999, a grant of 98,100 shares was made to Company employees, management
and the Supervisory Board. The option rights are non-transferable, and have a maximum life
of 5 years. Additionaily, a two-year holding period is required after the date of grant, after
which the holder of the option rights can exercise up to the amount of vested option rights,
under the condition that the value of the underlying stock has appreciated 10% per annum,
cumulatively, in the year of exercise.

In the year 2002, additional grants tb employees were made under the 1999 Plan, with terms
identical to the 1999 stock option grants. 5,500 options were granted on January 15, 2002, to
employees of MorphoSys AG.

In the year 2003, additional grants to executive board members were made under the 1999
Plan, with terms identical to the 1999 stock option grants. 36,000 options were granted on

July 7, 2003, to executive board members of MorphoSys AG.

For the full year 2004, 17,385 options from the 1999 Plan were exercised.
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Effective June 6, 2002, the Company amended the incentive stock option plan (“2002 Plan”)
authorizing the additional grant of options to employees for up to 74,556 shares, arising from
conditional capital, and deliverable upon exercise of non-warrant option rights. On July 9, 2002,
a grant of 7,500 shares was made to Company employees: The terms are very similar to those
of the “1999 Plan” employee stock option program. On May 16, 2003, the Annual Shareholders’
Meeting authorized the Company to grant additional 36,891 shares under the “2002 Plan”
employee stock option program with identical terms. |

In the year 2003, grants to employees were made under the 2002 Plan, with terms identical
to the 1999 and 2002 stock option grants. 2,500 options and 15,000 options were granted on
January 15, 2003, and July 1, 2003, respectively to employees of MorphoSys AG.

On January 15, 2004, 35,000 options were granted to employees with terms identical to the
1999, 2002 and 2003 stock option grants.

A summary of the activity under the Company’s employee incentive stock option plans for
the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, is represented as follows:

Weighted-

Average

Shares Price in €

Qutstanding at 01/01/2003 265,470 30.48
Cranted e 230300 1089 i
LB e |

Crertaieg T ey s

Outstanding at 12/31/2003 _ B a7ias 2640

Qutstanding at 01/01/2004 271,745 26.40

Granted o ) 35,750 .72

CBEOSed e (90968) 21

OB e e 163800 21,30

Outstanding at 12/31/2004 193,930 26.70

Stock options exercisable at December 31, 2004 and 2003, amounted to 106,518 and 179,295
shares respectively. The weighted-average exercise prices of stock options exercisable were
€ 36.51 and € 27.91 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Furthermore, the weighted-
average fair value of options granted during 2004 and 2003 is estimated to be € 6.99 and

€ 7.57 respectively.
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The following table presents weighted-average price and information about contractual life for
significant option groups outstanding at December 31, 2004:

Weighted-Average

Remaining Weighted- i Weighted-

Range of Number Contractual Life Average Number Average

Exercise Prices Outstanding (in Years) Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price

183,930 3.53 €19.06 67,518 €23.27

T e e T € 44’96

€5801-€21700 gooo o0 €19784 7500 €207.06
193,930 106,518

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with the provisions of
[FRS 2 “Share-Based Payment.” Compensation expense recorded in 2004 and 2003 in connec-
tion with stock options was € 1,239,580 and € 1,864,722 respectively. The fair value of the
options issued in 2004 was calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using the
following assumptions: risk-free interest rate of 3.1%, dividend yield of 0%, 78% expected
volatility and an expected option life of 3.0 years. For option grants in 2003, the following as-
sumptions were used: risk-free interest rates ranging from 2.96% to 3.61%, dividend yield of
0%, 115% expected volatility and identical option life as in 2004,

Option valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions. Because changes
in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in the man-
agement’s opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure
of the fair value of its employee stock options.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On September 1, 2001, the Company re-issued 94,100 options to employees, which had been
cancelled on July 5, 2001. The re-issued options have similar characteristics and vesting pro-
visions as the original options granted. In accordance with [FRS 2 “Share-Based Payment,”
the re-issued options were revalued at the date of re-issuance using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. An incremental fair market value of approximately € 5,950,000 was assigned to
the re-issued options, which will be recognized over the vesting period of the re-issued cptions.
During the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company recognized approximately
€ 535,741 and € 1,650,000 respectively of stock-based compensation expense relating to
these re-issued stock options.

On October 31, 1999, 98,100 options were granted under the 1999 options plan to employees,
Supervisory Board members and Management Board members. The originally anticipated
options term was five years. On October 14, 2004, the Management and Supervisory Boards
decided to extend the exercise period of 54,900 options granted to employees and the Man-
agement Board respectively until October 31, 2009. In accordance with [FRS 2 “Share-Based
Payment,” the extended options were revalued at October 14, 2004, using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. Stock-based compensation in the amount of € 518,585 was recognized
at full in the fourth quarter of 2004. '

Personnel Expenses

"in 000's € 2003
Wogesand Selaries 729 6,334,
Sodial Security Contributions T T T gy 99
Stock-Based Compensation Expense 4% 2,164
Temporary Staff (External) o 33
omer T 218
Other e A e

The average number of employees during the year ended December 31, 2004, was 117
(December 31, 2003: 93).
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income Taxes

The Company and its German subsidiary are subject to corporate tax, solidarity surcharge and
trade tax. Since 2001, a corporate tax rate of 25% plus 5.5% solidarity surcharge applies. In
2003 only, the corporate tax rate amounted to 26.5% with regard to the one-off effect of the
Flood Victims Solidarity Act applicable for 2003. Considering the multiplier rate of 300% for
municipal trade tax, the trade tax rate amounts to approximately 13.04% of the taxable income
and is deductible in the calculation of the corporate tax income.

The income tax of the current fiscal year comprises as follows:

Actual Tax Expense/Benefit for Previous Years - -

Deferred Tax Expense/Benefit resulting from the Existence

Deferred Tax Benefit with Regard to the Recognition of DTA on
Previously Unrecognized DTA with Regard to Future Reversal of
Differences between IFRS and Tax Balance Sheet 826 1,623

Total Amount of Deferred Taxes Resulting from Entries

- directly Recognized in Equity . (22i) -

Deferred taxes are recognized only to the extent that it is more likely than not that the relat-
ed tax benefits will be realized. Based on the income situation in the past and the business
expectations for the foreseeable future, valuation allowances are reported if this criterion is
not fulfilled.

Valuation allowances on deferred tax assets were reduced by € 826,000. The current assess-
ment with regard to the usability of deferred tax assets can change depending on the income
situation of future years and may result in higher or lower valuation allowances.

The following table reconciles the statutory income tax expense to the actual income tax ex-
pense presented in the financial statements. In order to calculate the statutory income tax ex-
pense, in fiscal year 2004, the combined income tax rate of 36% (2003: 36%) was applied to
income before taxes. The tax rate apblied in the reconciliation statement includes corporate
tax and solidarity surcharge, and amounts to 26.38% plus the effective trade tax rate based
on the multiplier rate of 300% for municipal trade tax which amounts to 9.60% taking into
account thaf the trade tax is deductible in the calculation of the corporate tax income.
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Reconciiiétion Statement ] in 000's € 2003
Profit Before Income Tax 282 (3,131)
Expected Tax Rate 36% 36%
Expected income Tax (102 1127
. Tax Effects Resulting from:

Deferred Income Tax Arising from the Recognition of DTA on

Previously Unrecognized DTA with Regard to Future Reversat of

Differences Between IFRS and Tax Balance Sheet  ......826 .. .162%
Non-Recognition of DTA on Current Year Tex Losses _ (224) (1,831)
étockBasedcompensat\on(SBc] [783)
interest Expense and Gain XoMA )
Expense of Cost/Capital Increase - 62
Non-TaxDeductible items @
Otherfffects R
Actual IncomeTax T -

No deferred tax assets were reported for corporate tax loss carry-forwards in the amount of

€ 33,363 thousand and trade tax loss carry-forWards in the amount of € 32,115 thousand. The

loss carry-forwards may be carried forward indefinitely and in unlimited amounts. From 2004,
German tax law restricts the offset of taxable income against existing tax loss carry-forwards to
an amount of € 1 million plus 60% of taxable income above € 1 million. Deferred tax assets on

assets and liabilities were only reported to the extent of existing deferred tax liabilities. A valu-
ation allowance for deferred tax assets with regard to future reversal of differences between IFRS
and tax balance sheet in the amount of € 4,510 thousand exists.

Significant components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

in 000’s € DTA 2003 DTL 2003
Intangible Assets 5,789 6,760 1,272
Veluation lowarice on Intanglble Assels — @s10) (533%) - -
Mentory 79 es e -
Receivables and other Assets e 523 155
Short-term Securities Investments Ty -
Other Acerusls T 6 s oo
Deferredincome .m0 o 22

Li
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Earnings Per Share
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the net profit for the year of € 282,112
(2003: €{3,130,980)) and a weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding

for the respective years (2004: 5,131,467; 2003; 4,332,438).

The weighted-average number of shares of common stock was calculated as follows:

2003
Shares Issued at January 3,949,706
E_f_fec_tuqf Tr?_asury Shares Held ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ (59762)
Effect of Shares lssued mApril 287 -
Effect o Shares Issued nMay o 238272
Effect of Shares lssued nlone g7y -

Effect of Shares Issued in August

Weighted-Average Number of Shares of Common Stock 5,131,467 4,332,438

The difuted profit per share is calculated taking into account the Company’s potential com-
mon shares from outstanding stock options and convertible bonds. For the year ended 2003,
these shares would have had an anti-dilutive effect.

The table below illustrates the reconciliation from basic to diluted earnings per share (in
thousands of €, except per-share data):

12/31/2003

Numerator:
Net Proﬁr/quss) - w3
UW_?,'Vg‘h_F?qAV.?.rf*,g,f%_ws_ﬁ?.f,?i}??z??.f?i,???{?,??@, ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 5131467 4332438

__ Dilutive Shares Ansmg from Stock Options
_ Dilutive Shares Arising from Convemb e Bondsﬂ_._ o

Total Denommator

Earmngs/(Loss) per Share (in €):
Basic ) o 005 (0.72)

Dllute& I - 005 (0.72)
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As of February 7, 2004, EPS would be calculated as follows (in thousands of €, except per-
share data):

Numerator:
Net Profit/{Loss) 282

Denominator:

\Neigrhted»Average Shares Used for Bgsjc EPS - - - B

Total Denominator: 5,174,749
Diluted Earnings/(Loss) per Share (in €): 0.05

Financial Risic Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments other than derivatives comprise debentures, con-
vertible non-cumulative redeemable preference shares, cash and short-term deposits. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial instruments such as trade debtors and trade creditors,
which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, principally forward currency contracts.
The purpose is to manage the currency risks arising from the Group's operations, as the
Company generates a substantial part of its revenues with U.S.-based companies.

Furthermore, the Company hedges its foreign exchange exposure only for receivables payments,
which are definitive and are due or will be collected within a twelve month period. To the
extent that foreign currency payables exist within the same time frame, they are to be netted
against foreign currency receivables whereever possible, and the resulting net position hedged.
The Company does not hedge the translation risk arising from the conversion of foreign affili-
ated companies into euros.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity
risk, foreign currency risk and credit risk. The Board of Management reviews and agrees pol-
icies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below. The Group also moni-
tors the market price risk arising from all financial instruments. The magnitude of this risk
that has arisen over the year is discussed in note 4. The Group’s accounting policies in rela-
tion to derivatives is set out in note 1.




Interest Rate Risk

Credit and Liquidity Risk

Foreign Currency Risk

Fair Value of
Financial Instruments

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The exposure of the Group to changes in interest rates relates mainly to investments in avail-
able-for-sale debt securities. Changes in the general level of interest rates may lead to an in-
crease or decrease in the fair value of these investments, With regard to the liabilities shown
in the balance sheet, the Group is currently not subject to significant interest rate risks.

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit and ‘
liquidity risk consist primarily of cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities and accounts
receivable. The Company's cash.and cash equivalents are principally denominated in euros
and U.S. dollars. Marketable securities are placed in high-quality securities. Cash, cash equiva-
lents and marketable securities are maintained principally with two high-quality financial
institutions in Germany. The Company continually monitors its positions with, and the credit
quality of, the financial institutions, which are counterparts to its financial instruments, and
does not anticipate non-performance.

It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. However, the Company’s revenues and accounts receivable are sub-
ject to credit risk as a result of customer concentrations. One customer individually accounted
for approximately 52 % of the Company’s 2004 accounts receivable balance. In addition, three
customers individually accounted for 28%,-26% and 17 % of the Company’s total revenues in
the year 2004. On December 31, 2003, one customer accounted for 88% of the prior year's ac-
counts receivable balance and three customers individually accounted for 41%, 27% and 14%
of the Company’s revenues in 2003, Based on the management’s assessment, allowances of
€ 36,456 and € 0 in relation to the newly formed reagent business unit were necessary on
December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Although the Company has significant customers in the United States, the Group contracts
the majority of transactions in eures. Part of the purchases and sales are denominated in U.S.
dollars, Swiss francs and pounds sterling. Generally, the amounts involved are not significant
or payment is effected within a short period, thus leading to no significant foreign currency
risks (see also note 6).

The carrying value of financial instruments such as cash énd cash equivalents, accounts receiv-
able and accounts payable approximate their fair value based upon the short-term maturities
of these instruments. The fair value of marketable securities is based upon quoted market
prices (see note 3). The fair value of license payables is determined by the effective interest
method. Convertible bonds are recorded at their accreted values, which approximate the cash
outlay that is due upon the note settlements.
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Operating Leases

The Company leases facilities and equipment under long-term operating leases. Total rent
expense amounted to € 898,292 and € 899,676 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively. In January 2004, MorphoSys amended the existing lease agreement of its
facilities. The new lease agreement expires in September 2009. Future minimum payments
under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:

in 000's € 2003

P10 One Year e L7e0 L9y
Between Oneand Five Years 3008 3,691
More than Five Years e e e 893
5,368 5,775

The Company’s total expenses under operating leases in the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2003, totaled approximately € 1,084,597 and € 1,092,953 respectively.

Contingencies

In June 2001, a lawsuit was filed against the Company by Applied Molecular Evolution, Inc.,
(“AME”) San Diego, U.S.A., at the United States District Court of Massachusetts in Boston,
U.S.A., alleging that the Company infringes the Kauffman-Ballivet patent family. These patents
cover the stochastic production of proteins and were granted in the late 1990s. In January 2003,
MorphoSys confirmed that it had received a positive “Report and Recommendation” from the
Magistrate Judge to the District Judge for the District Court in Boston, Massachusetts, U.S.A.,
in the legal action filed by Applied Molecular Evotution. The Magistrate Judge recommended
that MorphoSys’s motion for summary judgment of non-infringement be allowed and that
AME’s motion for partial summary judgment of infringement be denied. In September 2004,
the District Judge issued a “Memorandum and Order” wherein he declined to adopt the rec-
ommendation and denied the summary judgment motions. Instead, he ordered that a Markman
hearing for claim construction should be held. Thereafter, based on the facts at issue, it will
be determined whether the case can be decided by way of summary judgment or has to go to
trial. As a result, no provisions for contingent liabilities have been made in the Company’s
financial statements.
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In December 2002, the Company and Cambridge Antibody Technology (“CAT") entered intoa 105
settlement agreement pursuant to which they agreed to settle all patent disputes between the . o
two companies. Pursuant to the settlement agreement, the Company agreed to make annual

payments of € 1.0 million over the next five years as well as issue 588,160 new shares of

common stock and make certain ongoing royalty and milestone payments, and in return will

receive a license under certain CAT patents with respect to the previous and future develop-

ment of HUCAL® libraries. The Company has the option to buy out its cash obligations to CAT

for a predefined fixed amount at any time during the duration of the agreement. The Company
recorded an accrual for the settlement with CAT in the vear 2002, [n addition, the Company

recorded a net present value discount of approximately € 1.2 million on the annual payments

to record the liability at its estimated fair value of € 3.8 million. The discount of 13% on the

cash payments is being amortized to interest expense over the period of the payments. For

the full year 2003, € 0.2 million was charged to interest expense. The settlement agreement

was finalized in July 2003 and the Company engaged an external valuation expert to complete a
valuation, the basis of which provided the necessary information to finalize the accounting.

Based on the valuation analysis, the Company determined the fair value of the different com-
ponents of the agreement and allocated the total consideration paid for each component based
on the fair values of the consideration received. The completion of the analysis resulted in an
accounting estimate change, which reduced research and development expense by € 2.3 mil-
lion. Accordingly, a total of € 1.9 million was expensed for the release. The remaining € 8.3
million of consideration represents the value of the license received and has been capitalized
as an intangible asset and will be amortized over its expected useful life of 10 years.

The management is not aware of any other matters that could give rise to any material liability
to the Company that would have an adverse material effect on the Company's financial condi- |
tion or results of operations. !

The change in accounting estimate had the following effect on net loss and net loss per share
for the year ended 2003 (in thousands of €, except for per-share data):

Basic and Diluted Net

fity{Loss) per Share

Effect from Change in Accounting Estimate




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

106 22 Related Parties

The Group has related party transactions with its management and with members of the
Supervisory Board. In addition to the cash remuneration, the Group has issued stock options
and convertible bonds to the management and to members of the Supervisory Board.

The table below shows the shares, stock options and convertible bonds, and changes of own-
ership of the same, which were held by the management and the Supervisory Board during
the year 2004:
Shares , A . ‘
“ 01/01/2004  Additions _Forfeitures Expired Sales

Management

Dr. Simon E. Moroney {held
. through a controlled entity) 113,461 - - - - 113,461

Supervisory Board
Dr. Gerald Méller - 2,500 - - - 2,500

Stock Options

01/01/2004 Additions Forfeitures Expired Sales
Management L o ~
Dr. Simon E. Moroney 47,000_ ___________ - - ) - » -

Dave Lemus ) ) - ) - - -
Dr Thomas von Riden*** 64,700 - _ as00 - 29,700
Supervisory Board - B
Dr. Gerald Mlier . 6100 - - 3600 o500

3930

_______ 1,500

780

Dr. Geoffrey N.Vernon 3800 - - 2000 o 1,500

. D MetinColpan+ o e e s
‘ Total T T gsae T T s T 9600 o T 11180

*) Retired 05/11/2004  **) Entered 05/11/2004 >**) No longer with the Company since 09/03/2004
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Convertible Bonds
01/01/2004 Additions Forfeitures Expired Sales

Management

E. Moroney

Supervisory Board
Dr. Gerald Méller 2,500 - - T 2,500

P..E.G??Tfiey_N:,Yef_f_‘.?,”_.m, 00 T T 1,500
_Dr. Metin Celpan** e e T T R
Total 8,500 ~ 1,500 - - 7,000

Compensation for both the Management Board and Supervisory Board consisted of fixed and

variable components. Total compensation for the Supervisory Board excluding reimbursements
of travel expenses in 2004 amounted to € 169,500 (2003: € 152,500). The table below shows

the detailed compensation for the Management Board and the Supervisory Board:

Management Board Other
Fixed Variable Compensatory Total
Compensatlon Compensation Benefits Compensation
P 2004 JEEEETIEN 2008 .+ 2004
Dr. Simon B Moroney 227052 21200 63,630 94,500 59051 60,261 349,733 366,841
Davelemus 170,824 166,650 74993 57780 101,072 140,145 - 346,889 - 364,545
Dr Thomas von Riden*** 129,421 192336 75,661 80,530 53, 037 74,862 258119 347,528
] Total 527,297 570,886 214,284 232,780 213160 275,268 954,741 1,078,934
Supervisory Board Fixed Variable Total
Compensation Compensation Compensation

Dr. Gerald Mboller

Prof Jurgen Drews
Prof Andreas Piuckthun

12,000

Dr Jorg Reinhardt™ 491
Dr. Geoffrey N. Vernon

94,000 72,000 58,500 = 169,500 152,500

*) Retired 05/11/2004  **} Entered 05/11/2004  ***} No fonger with the Company since 09/03/2004
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NOTES TO THE CONSOQOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate Governance

The Company issued its statement according to Secticn 161 of the German Stock Corporation
Act (Aktiengesetz). This declaration has been published and made accessible to stockholders
accordingly on December 9, 2004.

Research and Development Agreements

The Company has a significant number of research and development agreements related to
its discovery and development strategy. The following is a brief description of these agree-
ments, which have had, or may have, a significant financial impact (in alphabetical order).

In December 1999, the Company announced a collaboration with Bayer AG encompassing a
research collaboration and license agreement for the application of the Company proprietary
technologies in a number of Bayer’s research and development programs. The agreement spec-
ified four areas in which the two companies apply the Company techno!ogles The Company's
HuCAL® (Human Combmatonal Anhbody Library) technology is being. used to generate fully
human therapeutic antibodies agamst up to ten targets provided by Bayer. In addition, Bayer
has an option to develop antibodies generated using the HuCAL® technology as in vitro diag—
nostics. Furthermore, HuCAL® is being used to identify antibodies for use in monitoring the
progress of clinical trials with selected drugs. The fourth and last area of application is the use
of MorphaSys technologies to identify and validate new targets emerging from Bayer’s geno-
mics program, which will be used by Bayer in screens for new drug candidates.

Under the terms of the agreement, Bayer made an upfront payment to the Company upon
signing the agreement, and pays additional annual license fees and support for research and
development funding at the Company. Furthermore, Bayer pays exclusivity fees for using the
HuCAL® technology on up to ten potential targets, as weil as milestone fees on antibodies
delivered by the Company that meet pre-agreed success criteria, Any antibody-based prod-
ucts developed in the collaboration trigger development-related milestone and royalty pay-
ments by Bayer to the Company. In the course of the agreement, Bayer has thus far taken two
exclusive licenses on antibodies from MorphoSys, and cross-licensed their HKB-11 cell line
against installation of HuCAL COLD? at selected Baver sites.-



Biogen lIdec, inc., U.S.A.

Boehringer Ingelheim
GmbH
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(Biogen Idec). Under the agresment, the two companies coliaborated in applying the Company’s
proprietary EST technology for generating antibodies against expressed Sequence tags to
validate drug targets in Biogen’s genomics programs. The agreement included an option for
Biogen to develop selected antibodies identified during the collaboration as therapeutics. In
return, MorphoSys received a technology access fee, as well as research and development
funding. In December 2001, Biogen expanded the agreement to include an additional amount
of ESTs beyond those defined in the original agreement. In addition, the duration of the origi-
nal license granted to Biogen was extended. The research agreement was successfully con-
cluded at the end of September 2004. Biogen ldec retains limited rights in certain HuCAL®-
derived antibodies.

In December 2000, the Company signed a collaboration agreement with Biogen Idec, Inc. IOQ ‘
|

In February 2003, MorphoSys and Boehringer Ingelheim GmbH, entered into a therapeutic
antibody collaboration and cross-license agreements. Under the terms of the agreements,
MorphoSys received an exclusive, worldwide license to patents owned or controlled by
Boehringer Ingelheim to develop, make and sell therapeutic and diagnostic antibodies target-
ing the ICAM-1 molecule. Boehringer Ingelheim will receive exclusive commercial licenses to
therapeutic antibodies against two undisclosed targets, which MorphoSys will generate utiliz-
ing its HuCAL GOLD® antibody technology.

In November 2003, Boehringer Ingelheim exercised its first option for the developmentof a
therapeutic antibody. As a result, MorphoSys will develop a therapeutic antibody for
Boehringer Ingelheim against an undisclosed target molecule for the treatment of inflamma-
tory diseases such as asthma and rheumatoid arthritis.

In August 2004, Boehringer Ingelheim exercised its second option forthe development of a
therapeutic antibody. Both parties initiated a new program for the development of a therapeu-
tic antibody against an undisclosed target moleculé involved in cardiovascular diseases.
MorphoSys will generate this antibody using its proprietary HuCAL GOLD® technology.
Boehringer Ingelheim will be responsible for the pre-clinical and clinical development and
subsequent marketing of any resultant products on which MorphoSys could earn milestones
and royalties.
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IIG - Bristol-Myers Squibb  In August 1998, the Company and Bristol-Myers Squibb Company (formerly DuPont Pharma-
ceuticals Company) entered into a cooperation agreement under which Bristol-Myers Squibb
acquired a non-exclusive license to MorphoSys’s HuCAL® antibody library technology. Under

Lo Bein! Meens Sreib Corpany the agreement, Bristol-Myers Squibb applied HuCAL® technology in its pharmaceutical dis-
covery programs for target characterization and validation. In July 2000, the parties extended
this research license and agreed to collaborate in developing a system for fully automated
high-throughput antibody generation, called AutoCAL™. The amended agreement provided
for Bristol-Myers Squibb’s continued use of the HuCAL® libraries and for the installation of
AutoCAL™ at Bristol-Myers Squibb’s facilities in Wilmington (Delaware, U.S.A.). Milestones
were achieved in 2000 and 2001 with the successful generation of research antibodies against
target molecules provided by Bristol-Myers Squibb using AutoCAL™.

Centocor, Inc., U.S.A.  In December 2000, the Company signed a subscription and license agreement with Centocor,
Inc. (“Centocor”). The intention of the collaboration is to facilitate the research, discovery and
. development of novel antibody therapeutics. Centocor will have access to the HuCAL?® tech-
VTG nology at various sites. In addition, the Company will generate antibodies against Centocor
targets. Under the agréement, the Company will receive committed technology license fees,
exclusivity fees, research and development funding, and milestone payments. Centocor will
be responsible for the development and marketing of any potential drugs. Should Centocor
market any drugs as a result of the collaboration, the Company will receive royaity payments.
The original contract had duration of 5 years and was to end in December 2005. In December
. 2004, both parties extended their agreement until the end of 2007. The extension agreement
provides for increased levels of research and development funding by Centocor to MorphoSys,
and an upfront payment by Centocor to MorphoSys for the extension.

F. Hoffman-La Roche, [n September 2000, the Company entered into a collaboration and license agreement for the

Switzerland  development of human therapeutic antibodies against a Roche target. Under the terms of the
agreement, the Company receives a license payment, development-related milestone payments,
and royalties on marketed products, The Company will apply its (HuCAL®) Fab technology to
the generation and optimization of antibodies for the Roche target. Roche will be responsible
for the clinical development, regulatory approval and worldwide marketing of any resulting
products.

R oty
£ .

GPC Biotech AG, In April 1999, the Company signed a collaboration and license agreement with GPC Biotech
Munich, Germany AG (“GPC AG”), Munich, Germany. The objective of the collaboration is to utilize the Company’s
technologies to generate human antibodies against GPC targets and to deliver such antibody
g%?@é{i; . products to GPC for confirmation of achievement of predefined success criteria. The Company
s Cmen received upfront research and development funding/exclusivity payments from GPC as well
as the potential for milestone and royalty payments.
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In September 2000, the Company signed a collaboration and license agreement with Immuno-
Gen, Inc., U.S.A. The parties will collaborate in the discovery and development of human mon-
oclonal antibodies against certain specified targets. ImmunoGen, Inc. will be responsible for
developing one or more antibodies generated by the Company into a marketable product. Under
the agreement, the Company will receive a license payment, as well as development-related
milestone payments and royalties on marketed products.

The existing agreement between the two companies was expanded in June 2001, whereby the
expanded agreement provided for a research license from the Company to ImmunoGen for
the Company’s HuCAL® antibody library technology for the generation of research antibodies
for use in functional genomics programs at ImmunoGen, Inc., in order to help validate new
targets. The expanded agreement has duration of four years.

In May 2004, MorphoSys AG and Novartis' AG (“Novartis”) announced a collaboration to dis-
cover and develop antibody-based biopharmaceuticals as therapeutic agents, in order to ad-
dress unmet medical need across a variety of diseases. MorphoSys brings validated and robust
human antibody technologies (HuCAL GOLD?¥) to Novarti's new strategic research directions,
building a collaboration that will identify and develop novel therapeutic agents rapidly and
efficiently. MorphoSys scientists will work directly with Novartis scientists across the global
sites of the Novartis Institutes for BioMedical Research (NIBR), including the new world head-
guarters in Cambridge, MA, U.S.A. The MorphoSys HuCAL GOLD® technology will be an inte-
gral part of Novarti’s drug discovery and development efforts. During the three-year term of
the égreement, which may be extended up to a total of five years, Novartis will fund internal
research at MorphoSys that will generate and optimize HuCAL GOLD® antibodies against tar-
gets identified by Novartis. In addition, Novartis will have access to the current MorphoSys
HuCAL GOLD® library at two of its sites. Additionally, under the terms of this collaboration
Novartis will be MorphoSys's first partner to receive a non-exclusive option on internalization
of the entire MorphoSys technology platform, which would trigger an additional payment by
Novartis to MorphoSys. Novartis made an approx. € 9 million investment in MorphoSys by pur-
chasing non—interest—bearing"convertible bonds from MorphoSys. In addition, MorphoSys will
receive over US$ 30 million in committed R&D funding and technology license fees over the
first three years., MorphoSys also stands to receive technology license payments, research
and developmental milestones, and royalties on marketed antibody products.

In July 2004, MorphoSys AG and Novoplant GmbH announced the signing of a collaboration
for the development of therapeutic antibodies in animal health applications. Under the three-
year agreement, Novoplant received a license for the development and commercialization of
therapeutic antibodies as feed components for use in veterinary medicine. Novoplant will pay a
technology access fee to MorphoSys in addition to annual licensing fees. Additionally, MorphoSys
receives milestone fees and royalties for the subsequent development and marketing of any re-
sulting products. In the context of the cooperation, Novoplant will use MorphoSys’s HuCAL GOLD®
technology to generate antibodies against viruses, parasites and pathogenic micre-organisms.
The addition of such MerphoSys antibodies to animal feed stock may offer protection against
infectious diseases in the respective animal’s gastrointestinal tract. MorphoSys retains all
rights in any human therapeutics or diagnostics emerging from the collaboration.

j8gs
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In December 2003, the Company announced a collaboration and license agreement with
Pfizer, Inc. (“Pfizer”). The intention of the collaboration is to facilitate the research, discovery
and development of novel antibody therapeutics. The Company will apply its HuCAL GOLD®

-technology to the generation and optimization of antibodies for multiple Pfizer targets. Under

the agreement, the Company received a committed upfront fee, research support, and depend-
ing aon collaboration progress, milestone payments and royalties. Pfizer is responsible for the
clinical development, regulatory approval and worldwide marketing of any resulting products.

In May 2000, the Company signed a cooperation and license agreement with ProChon Biotech
Limited (“ProChon”), Rehovot, Israel. The. firms will collaborate in the development of human
therapeutic antibodies against a ProChon target. The fees payable to the Company include pay-
ments representing a license payment, as well as program-related milestones upon achieve-
ment of certain success-related criteria. ProChon will also pay royalties to the Company on
marketed products derived from the collaboration. In May 2002, the two companies expanded
their existing agreement whereby MorphoSys acquired the rights to a portfolio of anti-cancer
antibodies in development at ProChon. The agreement gave MorphoSys the exclusive right to
develop and commercialize the antibodies for therapeutic applications in the field of oncology,
and in particular against the target FGFR-3.

In July 2003, the agreement was amended. It is intended that MorphbSys continues with ProChon
to develop up to 4 antibodies with the MorphoSys HuCAL GOLD® library, but MorphoSys will
return all rights concerning FGFR-3 antibodies to PraChon.

In September 2001, Oridis Biomed (“Oridis”) and the Company entered into a wide-ranging
agreement under which the Company gained preferred access to Oridis’s tissue collection,
residing at the Institute of Pathology, University of:Graz, Austria, and Oridis gained access to
Company’s HuCAL GOLD® technology. The goal of the collaboration was the characterization
and validation of new therapeutic targets. The Company applied its HuCAL® technology to
make antibodies to candidate targets, which Oridis used to carry out high-throughput protein
expression analysis on a range of human tissues. In return, Oridis received a license to the
Company’s HuCAL® technology, and gained access to certain antibodies from the Company.
The Company received a first right of negotiation to all antibody products resulting from the
collaboration. The company and Oridis paid each other license fees to access the other’s tech-
nology. The research agreement ended at the end of 2004, and was not extended.
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In December 2001, the Company and Schering AG (“Schering”) formed a strategic alliance for
the development of antibody therapeutics and in vivo diagnostics. As part of the agreement,
Schering and the Company will combine their resources over the three-year collaboration term
to exclusively pursue a minimum of five therapeutic and several in vivo diagnostic projects.
Furthermore, the two partners will jointly undertake research to identify additional potential
therapeutic and diagnostic targets emerging from Schering’s genomics program.

Over the lifetime of the agreement, the Company will receive license fees, milestone payments
and royalties on any end products emerging from the collaboration. Additionally, Schering
purchased 357,880 shares at an average price of € 66.79 per share in February 2002 as part
of their strategic commitment to the partnership.

In December 2004, both parties extended the collaboration agreement by at least two more
years, until the end of 2008, with the option of a further extension period of one year beyond
this time frame.

In February 2002, MorphoSys and XOMA Technology Ltd./XOMA Ireland Ltd. (“XOMA”) con-
cluded mutual license agreements for their antibody technologies. Under the terms of these
agreements, MorphoSys received a license for itself and for its collaboration partners for the
past and future use of XOMA antibody expression technology for the development of antibody
products in connection with the phage display-based HuCAL® antibody library (the “XOMA
license”). In return, XOMA received a five-year license from MorphoSys to use the MorphoSys
HuCAL GOLD® antibody library, which XOMA will use for its own target molecule identifica-
tion and for its research programs. Moreover, an option is included for the development of
therapeutic antibodies. MorphoSys acquired the XOMA license by issuing 363,466 shares
arising from a capital increase in 2003.

Subsequent Events

“On January-20, 2005, MorphoSys acquired- Biogenesis Ltd. (Poole, U.K.) and its sister company,---

Biogenesis, Inc. (NH, U.S.A.}. The final agreements specified the purchase of 100% ownership
of the two companies by MorphaS3ys AG for a total of GBP 5.25 million, less net debt of approx-
imately GBP 700,000. The total cost for financial advisors, legal counsel and other cost was
estimated to be at € 0.8 million. The two Biogenesis companies will become wholly owned
subsidiaries of MorphoSys AG. Further information relating to the business combination
including operational disposals, intangibies goodwill, and carrying amounts of assets and lia-
bilities for disclosure purposes was deemed impracticable due to the closing of the transac-
tion immediately after the Company’s year-end statutory accounts were closed for 2004. '
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Summary of Significant Differences Between German GAAP and IFRS

In accordance with § 292a HGB, the Company has an exemption from publishing its financial
statements in accordance with the German Commercial Code, which represents generally ac-
cepted accounting principles in Germany (“German GAAP”). The accom‘panying financial state-
ments are in conformity with principles of consolidated financial statement of the European
Union (principle 83/349/EWG). German GAAP varies in certain significant respects from IFRS.
Accordingly, the Company has recorded certain adjustments, principally relating to revenue
recognition and the recording of certain costs, in order to present the accompanying financial
statements in accordance with IFRS.

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with International Finan-
cial Reporting Standards (“[FRS”), which differ in certain respects from German generally
accepted accounting principles (“German GAAP”) as prescribed by the German Commercial
Code. The following is a summary of the significant differences between applied IFRS and
German GAAP that may affect the Company’s net income and equity for the periods presented.

Intangible assets—Under [FRS, certain expenses (i.e. internal costs associated with obtaining
patents) are capitalized as intangible assets and amortized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Under German GAAP, such costs are expensed as incurred. The capital-
ization of certain acquired license rights are accounted for according to an expert valuation
under IFRS. Under German GAAP, the splits are based on the net present value or acquisition
cost.

Amortization life of acquired license rights— Under IFRS, these rights are amortized over
their estimated useful economic life of 10 years. Under German GAAP, the amortization period
of 8 years follows the rates used for tax purposes.
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Revenue recognition—Under IFRS, more stringent revenue recognition criteria exist which
can result in differences in the periods in which revenue is recognized under German GAAP.

Stock-based compensation—The Company accounts for stock option and convertible bonds
grants in accordance with IFRS 2 and recognizes compensation expense. Under German
GAAP, compensation expense is not recognized.

Private placement and initial public offering costs—Under IFRS, certain costs in connection
with a private placement or an initial public offering of equity are recorded as a reduction of
additional paid-in capital. Under German GAAP, such costs are expensed as incurred.

Unrealized holding gains and losses on derivative financial instruments—Under IFRS, unre-

alized gains and losses on derivatives are recorded-as other income/expense. Under German
GAAP, increased market value is not recorded.

Non-current liabilities —IFRS requires that long-term liabilities be recorded with the present
value of the future payments using an interest rate commensurate with the risk involved.
Under German GAAP, the long-term liabilities are recorded with their repayment amounts.
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116 Roli-Forward of Fixed Assets (Appendix 1)

Acquisition and Production Cost

01/01/2004 Additions Disposals 12/31/2004
€ € € €
I. Property and Equipment
Office and Laboratory
Equipment 3,605,233 1,426,886 46387 ____________ 4 985732

4,872,560 1,505,102 6,331,275
If. Intangible Assets
Patents , S724871 . A088S R 143 141 T
License Rights L 12140808 T 12,140,398
Software 682 180,759 - 1,366,441

17,050,951 221,644 - 17,272,595




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

117
Accumulated Depreciation Net Book Values
01/01/2004 Depreciation Disposals 12/31/2004 12/31/2003 12/31/2003
€ € € € € €
2,777,510 523,749 3,273,553 1,712,179 827,723
3370157 657,829 4,000,280 1,502,403

521331

A T

975,665

12,790,091 3,203,540

Lamessaganzzs S BASS267 9671131 10898,904
et oo 280190 2IBIBE T 1078326 . 288,115 405,492
2,543,015 1,980,243 - 4,523,258 12,749,337 14,507,936
Chart of Consolidated Entity as of December 31, 2004 (Appendix 2)
Exchange Rate At
12/31/2004; One Share of Equity in Profit/Loss
Unit of Foreign Capital Foreign in Foreign
Currency Currency in € in % Currency Currency
Company Consolidated
(ARBILTTOM PAreNt COMPBNY) | e eoeoeeeeeeees e e e e
MorphoSys U.S.A., Inc.,
Charlotte, North Carofina, U.SA. ... uss 136100 100 24050 (245,051)
MorphoSys 1P GmbH,
Munich, Germany e € N 100 23,891 N
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AUDIT OPINION

Audit Opinion

We issue the following opinion on the consolidated financial statements and the Group's
management report:

"We have audited the consolidated financial statements, comprising of the balance sheet,
statements of operations, statement of changes in stockholders’ equity and statement of cash
flows, as well as the notes to the consolidated financial statements, prepared hy MorphoSys
AG, Martinsried, Germany, for the business year from January 1 to December 31, 2004. The
preparation and the content of the consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s executive board. Our responsibility is tc express an opinion whether the con-
solidated financial statements are in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with German
auditing regulations and generally accepted standards for the audit of financial statements
promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftspriifer (IDW). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit such that it can be assessed with reasonable assurance whether
the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatements. Knowledge of the
husiness activities and the economic and legal environment of the Company and evaluations
of possible misstatements are taken into account in the determination of audit procedures.
The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal control system and the evidence support-
ing the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements are examined on a
test basis within the framewark of the audit. The audit includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management and Company’s executive
board, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.




AUDIT OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the net
assets, financial position, and results of operations and cash flows of the Group for the husi-
ness year in accordance with [FRS.

Our audit, which also extends to the Group's management report for the business year from
January 1 to December 31, 2004, has not led to any reservations. In our opinion, on the whole
the Group’s management report together with the other disclosures in the consolidated finan-
cial statements provides a suitable understanding of the Group's position and suitably pre-
sents the risks of future development.

In addition, we confirm that the consolidated financial statements and the Group’s manage-
ment report for the business year from January 1 to December 31, 2004, satisfy the conditions
required for the Company’s exemption from its obligation to prepare consolidated financial
statements and the Group’s management report in accordance with German law.”

Munich, January 27, 2005

Ernst & Young AG
Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft

von Petrikowsky Gallowsky
Wirtschaftspriifer Wirtschaftspriifer
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (U.S. GAAP)

Consolidated Balance Sheets (U.S. GAAP)

in 000's € 12/31/2003
Assets

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,531 6,652
""Mé"ék‘é{a'b'i‘e"é'é'c“u"r}'éiéé """"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 24,699 16,508
""""""""""" 2,305 a2
""""""""" 822 T oae
Totatl Current Aséets ~ 40,357 '''''''''''''' 2 6,221
_..v_.FTFE’Be.FEXEQQ.EHQ?FJ”E‘?QE.NE‘F ..................................................... 2,619 1,908

Patents,

Other Assets S L .
Total Assets

Liabilities and Stockhoiders’ Equlty B T
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 335 259
_ Current Portion of License Payable 910 e
" Current P Portion of Deferred Revenué o 4;5-2-7 AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA 4 272
:'Accrued Empioyee Benefits 1588 ------------------- 949
_Other Accrued Expenses and Lisbilies 2515 1,524
" Total Current Liabilities 15,6?5 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ ilc'shé.l“
Nen-Current Liabilities

License Payable, Net of Current Portion 880 1,65]

Deferred Tax L»ab hty

" Total Non-Current Liabilities T 6342 “7',554-
Stockholders’ Equity

Common Stock, € 3.00 Par Value;

Ordinary Shares Authorized 9,597,400 and 8,626,344;

Ordinary Shares Issued 5,438,852 and 4,901,332;

Ordinary Shares Outstanding 5,408,790 and 4,841,570;
_ for 2604 and 2003 respectively 36 14,704

Treasury Stock (30,062 and 59, 762 shares for 2004 and
...2003 respectively), at Cost o (0L 222
Addltlona\ Pald In Capltal i ’ 78,650 68624
_Accumulated Other Comp(ehenswe lncome ) 453 .................. 913
Accumulated Deficit 7 ©(53,552) (54,036)
Total Stockholders Equity 41865 30,183
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity 58,282 45,758




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS {U.S. GAAR)

Consolidated Statement
of Operations (U.S. GAAP)

121

in 000's € 12/31/2003

Revenues 21,955 15,308
Operating Expenses

Research and Development T 12,410 8,998
) Sales General and Admumstra't’l‘ve e 7903 7601
_ StockBased Compensation T 4 2,175
T Total Operating Expenses CrTmmmmmmmmmm 2 >1“,-7“4-2- .............. 18774
Profit/Loss from Operations ' 213 (3,466)

lnterest Income ) B 286 212
e Expense et e S
impairment of Marketable Securities S 754
" Other income (Expense), Net ' T T e T 734
“Profit/(Loss) before Taxes - - - . - . T 484 (4,148)

_fi)relgn Income Tax Expense - - -
Net Brofiase e e (4,148)
Profit/(Loss) per Share {in €):

Basic - 0.0% {0.96)

TDiuted T 009 (0.96)
Shares Used in Camputing Net Profit/(Loss) per Share:

Basic 31 467 4,332,438
Tpiuted T 5169965 4,332,438




BALANCE SHEET IN ACCORDANCE WITH GERMAN GAAP

1z Balance Sheet in Accordance
with German GAAP (HGB)

MorphoSys AG Financial Statements as of December 31, 2004
and December 31, 2003

12/31/2003

Assets

A. Fixed Assets
I. Intangible Assets

1. Franchises, Trademarks, Patents Licenses, and .
Similar Rights and Licences to Such Rights 6,628,787 7,877,584

1l. Tangible Assets

1. Land, Leasehold Rights and Buildings,

Including Leasehold Improvements 518,777

. 2,330,995 1,502,402

IIl. Financial Assets

1. Shares in Subsidiary Companies = o 184,916 184,916
_..2.Lozns to Affillated Companies ...24009,332 25,000,000
24,194,248 25,184,916

B. Current Assets

I. Inventories

1Raw M_q?g_r_ia!s, Sup_pljgs and Production Materials o 83,380 40,755
_...2. Work in Progress N R 116,037 119,360
.3 Advanced Payments e 19,240 8

218,657 160,115

{l, Receivables and Other Assets

1. Trade Accounts Receivable

......... all Due within One Year i 2197630 1,992,350
2. Other Assets, Due after One Year
€ 7,892 (Prior Year; € 7555y 233,572 1,188,655
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 2,431,202 3,181,005
IIl. Securities
e e TTOBSUTY S100K e e 11,083 21,934
L 2Omer Securiies L 26820091 6627664
24331224 16,649,578
IV. Cash on Hand and Cash in Banks 7,292,353 6,782,279
C. Prepaid Expenses 405,934 397,981

. 67,833,400 61,735,860
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in € 12/31/2003
Liabilties and Shareholders’ Equity
A. Equity
|. Capital Subscribed 16,316,556 14,703,996
II. Capital Surplus 68,007,357 59,291,294
iil, Earnings Reserves
Reserve for Treasury Stock 11,033 21,934
IV. Accumulated Deficit (32,780,353) (32,167,506)
51,554,593 41,849,718
B. Accruals
Other Accruals 3,170,854 1,980,495
T 3,170,854 1,980,495
C. Liabilities
1. Bonds, thereof Convertible € 49,914 (Prior Year: € 63,400 151,800

2. Trade Accounts Payable
labilities Due to Affilisted Companies ..

4, Other Liabilities Due within One Year
€ 1,922,198 (Prior Year: € 1,313,747)
thereof for Taxes € 730,773 (Prior Year: € 177,721)

444444444 thereof for Sociel Security € 154,897 (Prior Year: € 117,933 2,922,198 3,313,747
T 3,555,617 8,186,076

D. Deferred Income 9,562,336 9,719,571

67,833,400 61,735,860




124

PROFIT AND L0OSS STATEMENT IN ACCORDANCE WIiTH GERMAN GAAP

Profit and Loss Statement in Accordance

with German GAAP (HGB)

MorphoSys AG Financial Statements for the Period from January 1

to December 31, 2004 and 2003

12/31/2003

LSS 21,645,477 14,975,087
2. Costof Sales T 15,710,529 13,766,099
3. GCrossProfitonSales ] 5934943 1,208,988
4. Selling Expenses o 784617 608,039

5. General Administration Expenses 6597703 6,354,501

Other Operating Expenses

338,988

247,41

6

7. Other Operating Income o (1,936,781) (100,551)
8. Expenses from Transfer of Losses 1155419 1260330
B e
10. Other Interest and Similar Income (271507)  (974,366)
11, Result from Ordinary Activities ™ ’ {623,748) (5,192,245)
e A e AR, B0 w.
13, Net Losy (623,748)  _ (5,191,831)

16. Accumulated Deficit

(32,780,353)

75)

(32,167,506)




OECLARATION OF CONFORMITY

Declaration of Conformity

with Regard to the German Corporate Governance Code in the
Business Year 2004

At the meeting on December 9, 2004, the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board
approved the following declaration of conformity pursuant to sec. 161 of the German Act on
Stock Corporations (AktG):

MorphoSys AG complies with all recommendations of the German Corporate Governance
Code~in the version of May 21, 2003 ~with the following exceptions:

- The stock option program for the Board of Management does not provide a cap for unfore-
seen developments within the meaning of Code sec. 4.2.3, sent. 6.

— The present D&O insurance policy at MorphoSys AC includes a deductible for Management
and Supervisory Board members (Code sec. 3.8, para. 2), the magnitude of which, however,
may be insufficient as it relates to the requirements of the German Corporate Governance
Code.

. With these two exceptions, MorphoSys AG has also complied with the recommendations of
the German Corporate Governance Code in the time period since its declaration of conformity
of December 2003,

Martinsried/Planegg, December 9, 2004
MorphoSys AG

For the Management Board:

3 9 S

Dr. Simon E. Moroney Dave Lemus
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

For the Supervisory Board:

in

Dr. Gerald Mdller
Chairman
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION REPORT

Corporate Governance and
Remuneration Report

MorphoSys considers good corporate governance to be a foundation
for strengthening investor confidence in the Company. There were no
changes to the German Corporate Governance Code in 2004. However,
there are a large number of legislative initiatives being discussed,

which could have an impact on corporate governance in and outside of

Germany. Mereover, as a resuit of the internationalization of capital

markets, internal control and capital market transparency require-

ments have increased.

I
Sune 2004

MorphaSys awarded for Crrpoe

rale Go

Traditionally, corporate governance has enjoyed a very high priority at MorphoSys. MorphoSys

closely orients its own internal policies to the German Corporate Governance Code. During the

course of each year, one of the Management Board members is responsible for monitoring com-
pliance with the code and identifying any deviations from the recommendations. In the event of
deviation, the declaration of conformity is adjusted accordingly.

Corporate Governance Award

During the year 2004, in a comparative study into corperate governance practice in German
companies listed on the stock exchange, MorphoSys AG achieved first place among all small
and mid-cap companies. Moreover, MorphoSys was the only small and mid-cap from the Prime
All Share index to be awarded the rating “exemplary.” MorphoSys achieved fifth place in the
overall assessment. The study covered all companies from the DAX, MDAX, TecDAX and SDAX
as well as a further 80 German companies not included in any recognized stock exchange
index of the Deutsche Bdrse. In making its choice, the Cologne-based company ergo Unter-
nehmenskommunikation assessed a variety of factors, including the declarations of conform-
ity, company annual reports and websites of more than 229 companies.
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Declaration of Conformity

In December 2004, the Management and Supervisory Boards of MorphoSys AC submitted
their declaration of conformity with the recommendations of the Government Commission
German Corporate Governance Code, in accordance with Article 161 of the German Stock
Corporation Act. MorphoSys fully complies with the supplemental version of the German
Corporate Governance Code of May 2003, with the exception of two points relating to bind-
ing recommendations.

The declaration of conformity was resolved by the Management Board and Supervisory Board
and published on the Company's website in December 2004 (see also declaration of conformity,
page 125 of this report).

In addition to the binding recommendations of the Code, MorphoSys will implement all non-
binding suggestions of the German Corporate Governance Code in 2005 with one exception.
More specifically, the MorphoSys AG Annual Shareholders’ Meeting will not be broadcast online
(2.3.4), as the legal basis for such a broadcast must be resolved at the next Annual Sharehold-
ers’ Meeting in 2005.

Management and Control Structures

MorphoSys is subject to the German Stock Corporation Act. With the Management Board and
Supervisory Board as company organs, MorphoSys has a dual management and supervisory
board structure,

Management Board

The Management Board of MorphoSys AG is composed of two members and has a Chairman.
Since the departure of Dr. Thomas von Riiden in September 2004, the position on the
Management Board for research and development has been vacant. In the interim, the duties
entailed in this position have been distributed between the two other members of the
Management Board.

Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board is comprised of six members, all of whom represent the Company’s
shareholders. All Supervisory Board members have many years of experience in the biotech-
nology and pharmaceutical industry and are duly elected by the shareholders at the Com-
pany’s Annual Shareholders’ Meeting. Dr. Gerald Moller, Dr. Daniel Camus and Dr. Geoffrey
N. Vernon were re-elected during the 2004 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting. Dr. Metin Colpan
was elected to the Supervisory Board to replace outgoing member Dr. Jorg Reinhardt. All
members have terms of office until the end of the 2008 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting, save
Prof. Jiirgen Drews and Prof. Andreas Plickthun, whose terms end after the 2006 Annual
Shareholders’ Meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION REPORT

The Supervisory Board of MorphoSys AG presently has two subcommittees, the Remunera-
tion/Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee. The Remuneration/Nomination
Committee makes proposals on the appointment of Management Board members and negoti-
ates Management Board contracts and also approves bonus payments, salary adjustments,
etc. The Chairman of this Committee is Dr. Gerald Mdller, Chairman of the Supervisory
Board. Other members include Dr. Metin Celpan and Prof. Jiirgen Drews. The Remuneration/
Nomination Committee met twice in 2004. The Audit Committee comprises two members,
Dr. Geoffrey N. Vernon as Chairman and Dr. Danie] Camus. The Audit Committee’s duties are
codified in a Company Audit Committee Charter. The Audit Committee met eight times in the
past fiscal year.

During 2004, the Supervisary Board also monitored the efficiency of its work using a system-
atic and documented methodology.

Remuneration Report

Management Board Remuneration

The remuneration of the Management Board is performance-based and comprises a fixed and
a variable component. The appropriateness of the Management Board’s remuneration is sub-
ject to an annual review and is compared to the results of the Annual German Biotechnology
Industry Remuneration Study (GRS Study) and other, more international benchmarking
sources.

Company goals, such as the achievement of financial or strategic targets, are specified by the
Supervisory Board together with the Management Board at the heginning of each fiscal year.
Achieving these goals forms in part a basis for assessing achievement of the variable compo-
nent of each member’s remuneration. Furthermore, each Management Board member’s personal
targets are set at the beginning of each year. At the end of each year, the Supervisory Board
evaluates the level of attainment of these goals, which then comprises the remaining variable
remuneration component of compensation. More specifically, half of the variable bonus com-
pensation depends on the extent to which the Company goals have been reached; the other
half depends an the extent to which personal goals have been reached.

Additionally, members of the Management Board participate in a stock option and/or convert-
ible bonds program. The Annual Shareholders’ Meeting approves such programs, while the
Supervisory Board specifies the amount allocated to the Management Board.

The remuneration is disclosed for each individual member of the Management Board divided
into fixed, variable and other compensation. For the 2004 fiscal year, the remuneration of the
Management Board amounted to a total of € 954,741 (2003: € 1,078,934). For individual dis-
closure of the compensation of the Management Board please see page 107.
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Supervisory Board Remuneration

In the 2004 fiscal year, the members of the Supervisory Board received a total of € 169,500
excluding reimbursements of travel expenses (2003: € 152,500), which was in accordance
with the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting resolution of May 11, 2004. This amount is composed
of fixed remuneration and attendance fees. For individual disclosure of the compensation of
the Supervisory Board please see page 107

The German Corporate Governance Code proposes that remuneration for the Supervisory Board
should include components based on the fong-term success of the Company. In previous years,
the members of the Supervisory Board of MorpheSys AG participated in a convertible bonds
program approved by shareholders at the Company’s Annual Shareholders’ Meeting. A verdict
from the Federal Supreme Court in 2004 raised legal doubts on the appropriateness of such
options and convertihle bonds programs for Supervisory Board members in Germany. For this
reason, the Company shall replace the convertible bonds program with a new success- and
revenue-related compensation program in the form of a phantom stock program at the next
Annual Shareholders” Meeting.

In the past fiscal year, no consultancy contracts were concluded with members of the Super-
visory Board. Furthermore, no members of the Management Board or Supervisory Board
were granted company loans.

Stock Options and Convertible Bonds Plans

The present stock options and convertible bonds plans were adopted by the MorphoSys AG
Annual Shareholders’ Meeting an June 6, 2002. A general description of the various programs
in place can be found in the notes to the consolidated financial statements (page 92 and follow-
ing pages). The tahle below represents the potential value attached with the granting of
options and convertible bonds to the Management Board in 2004:

Potential Value of  Potential Value of

the Convertible the Convertible

Bond Givena 5% Bond Givena 10%

Member of Number of Increase in the Increase in the
Management Board Convertible Bonds Conversion Price Expiry Date Share Price* Share Price*
Dr. Simon E. Moroney 7,474 _ €£3840 12/31/2006 € 26,946 € 57,5657
Dave Lemus 6,228 €38.40 12/31/2006 € 22,453 € 47,962

* Based on the MorphoSys share price on December 31, 2004
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o oupervisory Board Report

Throughout fiscai year 2004, the Supervisory Board of MorphoSys AG
focused on the Company’s performance and strategy. The Supervisory
Board was involved in all major Company decisions, advising the
Managing Board and monitcring the Company’s performance.

Supervisory Board Meetings and Committees

Al six meetings during the course of the fiscal year 2004, the Management Board reported on the
Company’s strategy and plans, on business and financial developments, and on key business events.
In addition to these meetings, the Management Board also presented periodic written reports to
the Supervisory Board about important developments that took place. As Chairman of the Super-
visory Board, [ was regularly kept up to date on major issues and upcoming management decisions.

More specifically, the Supervisory Board focused on the Company’s strategic business plan, progress
reports for the two operating business units, the annual budget for 2005, corporate governance

topics, and mergers and acquisitions opportunities. To the extent that corporate law or the existing
. Management Board Rules of Procedure require approval for certain actions to be taken hy the

Management Board, such approvals were given by the Supervisory Board itself or subcommittees.

Presently, two different committees exist: the Audit Committee and the Remuneration/Nomination
Committee. The camposition of these committees can be found on page 128. The Audit Committee
met eight times, the Remuneration/Nomination Committee met two times during the year.

During the first half of 2004, MorphoSys was in negotiations with Novartis AC regarding a collab-
oration agreement. In this context, the member of the Supervisory Board, Dr. Jérg Reinhardt,
simultaneously Director of Development and member of the Executive Committee at Novartis
Pharma AG, informed the Supervisory Board about a conflict of interest. Subsequently, Dr.
Reinhardt teft the Supervisory Board meetings during all discussions about the ongoing negotia-
tions, and at no stage received any documentation relating thereto.

In May 2004, Dr. Reinhardt refrained from seeking re-election due to an increase in his other commit-
ments. | would ke to use this opportunity to thank Dr. Reinhardt on behalf of the Supervisory Board
for his valuable insights and contributions to the Company. At the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting on
May 11, 2004, Dr. Daniel Camus, Dr. Geoffrey N. Vernon and myself were re-elected as members of
the Supervisory Board. Dr. Metin Colpan was appointed as a new Supervisory Board member.

Changes in the Management Board

On 3 September 2004, MorphoSys announced the departure of Dr. Thomas von Riiden from the

Company's Management Board. Until a successor is appointed, the Company will continue to be

‘ managed by the other two Board members, Dr. Simon E. Moroney and Dave Lemus. T would like to
thank Dr. von Riden for his efforts on behalf of MorphoSys over the last several years, and wish

him all the best in his future endeavors.
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Corporate Governance

As stated in the latest declaration of conformity, which was approved by the Management Board and
the Supervisory Board on December 9, 2004, MorphoSys complies with all except two of the code’s
recommendations: the present D&0 insurance policy includes a deductible for Management and
Supervisory Board members, the magnitude of which may be insufficient as it relates to the require-
ments of the German Corporate Governance Code. Additionally, the stock option program for the
Board of Management does not provide a cap for unforeseen developments. For more detailed infor-
mation, please refer to the corporate governance and remuneration report on pages 126-129.

Audit of the Annual Financial Statements

The Company’s independent statutory auditors, chosen at the 2004 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting
and appointed by the Audit Committee, are Ernst & Young Deutsche Allgemeine Treuhand AG,
Munich. They have audited the MorphoSys Group’s annual financial statements and notes thereto,
the Company’s management report, the annual financial statements and related footnotes of
MorphoSys AG according to German accounting standards (HGB). Additionally, the Company’s sys-
tems for internal control were also subjected to audit. The consolidated financial statements were
audited according to German and international standards (TFRS). The auditors confirmed that the
consolidated annual financial statements are an accurate and fair reflection of the financial situa-
tion, the results of business activity, and the Group’s cash flow, in accordance with the accounting
principles as defined by IFRS. The auditors’ opinion was unqualified. The consolidated financial
statements according to [FRS were supplemented by a Group management report and further
notes in accordance with Article 292a of the German Commercial Code (HCB). The submitted IFRS
consolidated financial statements exempted the Company from the obligation to produce consoli-
dated statements according to German law, which was confirmed by the auditors.

The Management Board submitted the financial statements described above promptly and prior to
the relevant Supervisory Board meeting. The Audit Committee thoroughly examined these docu-
ments, and the Supervisory Board also reviewed them. The annual financial statements were dis-
cussed in depth at the Supervisory Board meeting on February 23, 2005. The Company’s auditors
attended the Supervisory Board meeting, reported on the audit and answered all questions from
the Supervisory Board. Following the Supervisory Board's review of the annual financial state-
ments and the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Supervisory Board accepted the audi-
tors’ report and conclusions in accordance with Article 172 of the German Stock Corporation Act
(AKtG). After its final review, the Supervisory Board approved the financial statements without
objection or amendment.

On behalf of my colleagues on the Supervisory Board, | wish to thank the Management Board and
all the staff for their hard work and commitment during the fiscal year under review.

Martinsried/Planegg, February 2005

ol

Dr. Gerald Maéller
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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Dr. Geratd Mdller
{Chairman)
Heidelberg, Germany

ing Director HBM BioCapital
Management GmbH

Chairmian of the Remuneration/
Nomination Committee

Member of the Supervisory
Board of:

BioAgency AG, Germany
(Chairman}

MTM AG, Germany {Deputy
Chairman)

STM Gmbtf, Germany {Chairman)
4sigma*, Bermuda (Chairman)
Ferraris Group plc*, UK.
(Director)

Pelikan Technologies, Inc.*, US A.
(Chairman)

* Membership in comparable domestic
and foreign supervisory boards of
commercial enterprises

Supervisory Board of MorphoSys'

Prof. Dr. jlirgen Drews
{Deputy Chairman)

Fiorida, U.8.A, and Feldafing.
Gerrnany

Maraging Partner, Bear Stearns
Heaith Innoventure Fund LLC

Meamber of the Remuneration/
Nomination Comimittee

Member of the Supervisory
Board of:

GPC Biotech AG, Germany
(Chairman}

TeGenero AG, Germany
(Chairman)

Genaissance Pharmaceuticals,
Inc.*, U.S.A. (Chairman)
Human Genome Sciences, Inc.”,
U.S.A. (Director)

AG
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Dr. Daniel Camus

{Memben)

Paris, France

Senior Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Gificer, Bontricité
de France

Member of the Audit Committes

Dr. Metin Colpan
(Member sivce May 11, 2004)

Essen, Germany
Supervisary Director,
GIAGEN, N.V., Netherlands

Member of the Remuneration/
Noreination Committee

Member of the Supervisory
Board of:

EnBW, Germany

Dalkia Holding™*, France

EDF International*, France
(Chairman)

Dr. jorg Reinhardt
Ehrenkirchen, Germany
Director of Development and
Member of the Exec
at Movartis Priarma AG

Member of the Supervisory Board of

nod
e s

MorphaSys until May 11,

tive Committee

Member of the Supervisory
Board of:

Ingenium Pharmaceuticals AG,
Germany

GPC Biotech AG, Germany
QIAGEN, N.V.*,

Netherlands

Prof. Dr. Andreas Plackthun
{Member)
Zurich, Switzerland

Dr. Geoffrey N. Vernon
{Member)

Tavistock, UK.

Executive Chairman, 7iggus

Holdings Lid.

Chairman of the Audit Commitiee

Member of the Supervisory
Board of:

Molecular Partners AG*,
Switzerland (Director)

Member of the Supervisory
Board of:

Advanced Medical Solutiong
Ld.x, UK

Bionex Ltd.*, UK.

Bioniche Pharma Group Ltd.”,
UK.

BMR Ltd.*, {reland

Genable Ltd.*, Treland
KetoCytonics, Inc.*, U.S.A.
Medisys plc*, UK.

Talia Technologies Ltd.”, UK.
XL TechGroup, Inc, US.A.

XTL Biopharmaceuticals Lid.*,
UK.
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GLOSSARY

Glossary

Affinity - Binding strength between binding partners, e.g.
antibody/antigen

Antibiotics - Substances that destroy or inhibit the growth
of microorganisms, particularly disease-causing bacteria

Antibody - Proteins of the immune system that recognize
antigens thereby triggering an immune response

Antibody library - A collection of genes that encode cor-
responding human antibodies

Antigen - Foreign substance stimulating antibody producti-
on; binding partner of antibody

Angiogenesis - Growth of new blood vessels into tissue
Autoimmune Disease - Disease caused by an immune

response by the body against one of its own tissues, cells,
or molecules

BLA - Biologics License Application; document submitted to
introduce a biologic product

CD38 ~ Cell surface marker; CD stands for cluster of diffe-
rentiation

Clinic - Clinical stage of drug development; tests on human
patients

Corporate Governance - System of relations between the

shareholders, Board of Directors and management of a com-
pany

EMEA - European Medicines Evaluation Agency

Expression - Conversion of genetic information in a corres-
ponding protein

FDA - Food and Drug Administration; U.S. Federal Agency
for the Supervision of Food and Drugs

Gene ~ Part of DNA encoding a defined structure (e.g. a
protein) or a function

Genome - Total DNA of an organism (genes, genetic signa-
ling structures as well as additional DNA sections)

Genomics - Analysis of compasition and interaction of
genetic information

Glycosylation - The modification of a protein by adding
sugar molecules to particular amino acids in the protein

Gald standard - Best and most reliable method or techno-
logy currently available; industry standard

GRS Study - Annual German Biotechnology Industry
Remuneration Study

HGB - German accounting standards
HuCAL™ - Human Combinatorial Antibody Library.
Proprietary antibody library enabling rapid generation of

specific human antibodies for all applications

Human - Of human origin

{CAM-1 ~ Intercellular adhesion molecule-1

IFRS - International Financial Reporting Standards; Future
EU-wide standards produced by the IASB

Immunization - Generation of antibodies by administering
antigen

In vitro ~ in a test tube
In vive - in a living organism

IPO - Initial Public Offering; first time a company offers it
shares to the public




GLOSSARY

Library - Here: collection of a multitude of different mole-
cules (gene library, peptide library, protein, especially anti-
body library) for screening and/or selection

Life Sciences - All branches of science that study all
organisms, especially living ones

Lymphoma ~ Cancer that begins in celis of the immune sys-
tem of the lymphatic system

Market capitalization - Value of a company’s cutstanding
shares, as measured by shares times current price

Milestone - Predefined events relating to the development
of the substance into a drug

Monoclanal antibody - Homogeneous antibody originating
from a single clone, produced by hybridoma cell

Multiple myeioma - Type of cancer that develops in a sub-
set of white blood cells called plasma cells formed in the

bene marrow

Multiple scierosis - Disease of the central nervous system
characterized by the destruction of nerve fibers

Peptide ~ Short chain of amino acids

Phage - Abbreviation for bacteriophage, a virus that infects
bacteria

Phage display technology - Screening technology; presen-
tation of peptides/proteins of surface of phages

Pre-clinic - Pre-clinical stage of drug development; tests in
animal models as well as in laboratory essays

Protein - Polymer consisting of amino acids, e.g., antibo-
dies, enzymes

Proteome -~ Protein complement expressed by a ggnome
Psoriasis - Chronic, immune system-related disease, cau-

sing inflammation and damage to involved tissues, primarily
the skin
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R& D - Research and development

Reagent - A substance used in research and diagnostic
applications

Recombinant - Formed by (rejcombination of parts of one
or different starting DNA molecules

Royslities - Percentage share of ownership of the revenue
generated by drug preducts

Screening - Searching in libraries for molecules with desi-
red properties

8,G&A - sales, general and administrative

Specificity - Property of e.g. antibodies to discriminate
between different, but similar, antigens

Target - target molecule for therapeutic intervention, e.g.
on surface of diseased cell

Transpiant rejection - The body’s attempt to destroy the
transplanted organ

U.S. GAAP - Generally accepted accounting principles in
the U.S.
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February

MorphoSys enters new anti-
body markets

MorphoSys announces the for-
mation of its new business unit
“Antibodies by Design,” which
markets HUCAL® antipodies
for non-therapeutic applica-
tions. Customers in industrial
and academic research who
require highly specific research
antibodies as tools for their
research projects will benefit
immediately from the advan-
tages of HUCAL® technology.

) NOVARTIS

May

MorphoSys and Novartis
forge strategic antibody
alfiance

At the heart of the collabora-
tion, which is the largest in the
history of MorphoSys, is the
development of antibody-based
biopharmaceuticals against a
range of diseases with unmet
medical needs. To underscore
the significance of the collabo-
ration, Novartis invested
approximately € 9 million in
MorphoSys's equity.

MorphoSys appoints a new
member of the Supervisory
Board

With the appointment of Or,
Metin Colpan, founder and
ex-Chief Executive Officer and
Managing Director of QIAGEN,
MorphoSys appoints to its
Supervisory Board a new mem-
ber with substantial life science
reagents experience,

June

MorphoS8ys is granted core
patent in the U.S.A,

The patent granted by the U.S.
Patent & Trademark Office
protects the firm's CysDisplay™
technology, which is a central
component of MorphoSys's
proprietary HuCAL GOLD®
antibody library. CysDisplay™
technology is ideally suited for
high-throughput applications.

July

Collaboration in the fieid of
veterinary medicine

A collaboration with Novopfant
GmbH highlights new applica-
tion areas for HuCAL GOLD®
technology. Novoplant uses the
technology from MorphoSys
to identify antibodies against
viruses, parasites, and other
pathogenic agents. The addi-
tion of antibodies to feed stock
for poultry, pigs, or cattle may
protect these animals against
illnesses of the gastrointesti-
nal tract.




September

MorphoSys enters the
TecDAX index

MorphoSys is listed in the
TecDAX index for the first
time on September 20. The
TecDAX tracks the perfor-
mance of the 30 largest and
most liguid shares of tech-
nology firms of the Prime
Standard listed at the Frank-
furt Stock Exchange.

MorphoSys enters a mar-
keting venture in Japan
The closing of an agreement
with the Japanese GeneFrontier
Corporation is an important
step into Japan, the world's
second largest life science
market. The first revenues for
MorphoSys in the Far East are
- thereby generated.

October

Positive 9-month figures

In the publication of the first
nine months, MorphoSys also
provides an outlook for 2005.
in the first nine months of
2004, the firm achieved a net
profit of € 1.3 million and
revenues increased by 42%.

Animal data for the firm's
cancer project MOR202
MorphoSys antibodies that
can stop tumor growth in
multiple myelomas in animal
models show first promising
pre-clinical data, which is
presented at a symposium in
Iretand. The fully human anti-
body from the HUCAL GOLD®
library is directed against the
target molecule CD38, which

. is strongly over-represented

on the surface of certain can-
cer cells.

December

The first MorphoSys anti-
body is approved for clinical
development

An antibody generated by
MorphoSys working in a part-
ner project with GPC Biotech
AG receives clearance to be-
gin clinical studies in Switzer-
fand. The study, which spans
three European countries,
started at the end of january
2005,

Extension of contracts with
Schering and Centocor
Prior to year-end, MorphoSys
extended its collaborations
with two important partners:
the pharmaceutical company
Schering, and Centocor, Inc.
for a further three years.




T

s 1
e

i bt it o i,




UV VLG IR RNV O




